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Dear Members,

Your Directors’ present the 44th Annual Report on the business and 
operations of your Company, together with the audited accounts for the 
year ended 31st March, 2025.

1.	 Financial Performance

	 The financial performance of the Company during the year under 
review is summarized below:

` Lakhs

Particulars Financial year
2024-25

Financial year
2023-24

Revenue from 
Operations

20,331.09 19,909.45

Other Income 1,509.19 980.20

Total income 21,840.28 20,889.65

Less: Expenses other 
than finance costs 
and depreciation / 
amortization

17,522.31 16,832.98

Less: Finance costs 222.62 240.15

Less: Depreciation and 
amortization expenses

1,564.42 1,436.23

Profit before 
exceptional items and 
Tax

2,530.93 2,380.29

Exceptional items - Profit/ 
(loss) (net)

81.56 -

Profit before Tax 2,612.49 2,380.29

Tax expense - -

Profit after Tax 2,612.49 2,380.29

Other comprehensive 
income / (loss), net of tax

(168.94) 82.25

Total comprehensive 
income for the year

2,443.55 2,462.54

Earnings Per Share 
(Basic and Diluted)

0.40 0.36

	 During the financial year (“FY”) 2024-25, your Company has 
achieved a turnover of ` 20,331.09 Lakhs as against ` 19,909.45 
Lakhs in previous Year. Net profit after tax of the Company has 
increased to ̀  2,612.49 Lakhs as compared to previous year’s net 
profit after tax of ` 2,380.29 Lakhs which is an increase of approx. 
9.76 % over the previous year.

	 There has been no fundamental change in the nature of business 
of the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2025.

2.	 Share Capital

	 During the year, the Company has not issued or allotted any 
securities. The issued and paid-up share capital of the Company 
as on 31st March, 2025 stands at ` 131,85,19,798/- (Rupees one 
hundred thirty one crores eighty five lakhs nineteen thousand 
seven hundred ninety eight only) divided into 65,92,59,899 (sixty 
five crores ninety two lakhs fifty nine thousand eight hundred 
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ninety nine) Equity Shares of face value of  ` 2/- (Rupees two 
only) each.

3.	 Dividend

	 Your directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended 
31st March, 2025.

4.	 Transfer to reserves

	 The Board of Directors have decided to retain the entire amount 
of profit for FY 2024-25 appearing in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

5.	 Material Changes and Commitments affecting Financial 
Position of the Company having occurred since the end of 
the year and till the date of this report

	 No material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company have occurred between the end of the 
year i.e. 31st March, 2025 and date of this Directors’ Report.

6.	 Management Discussion and Analysis

	 A detailed review of the operations, performance and future 
outlook of the Company and its businesses is given in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this 
Annual Report.

7.	 Litigations against the Company

7.1	 Litigation on the transaction with Brookfield for sale of 
Undertakings

7.1.1	 ITC Limited and its subsidiary Russell Credit Limited, members 
of the Company holding then 8.72% (at present 8.10%) of the 
equity share capital, had filed a petition under Section 241 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 on 22nd April, 2019 against the Company, 
for oppression and mismanagement along with two applications 
for urgent hearing and for waiver of the requirement of minimum 
threshold of 10% shareholding in relation to the transaction with 
BSREP III India Ballet Pte. Ltd. or its affiliates (“Brookfield”) for sale 
of hotel undertakings before the NCLT in May 2019. After hearing 
both the parties, the Ld. Tribunal allowed the Waiver Application 
of ITC Limited & ANR. vide their order dated 24th January, 2024. 
Company and its Promoters viz. Mr. Vivek Nair & Mr. Dinesh Nair 
have filed separate Appeals before NCLAT, Delhi challenging the 
order dated 24th January, 2024 of NCLT, Mumbai. The matter is 
being heard at NCLAT, Delhi.

7.1.2	 Two minority members i.e. ITC Limited and Life Insurance 
Corporation of India (LIC) had filed complaint with Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) against the aforesaid transaction 
with Brookfield, alleging violation of the provisions related to 
related party transactions and oppression and mismanagement 
by the majority members against minority members. Later LIC 
withdrew from contesting this case. On 23rd July, 2019, SEBI 
passed its detailed, reasoned and speaking order in the matter of 
“Complaints Filed by Minority Shareholder of Hotel Leela Venture 
Limited”.

	 Aggrieved by the aforesaid Impugned Order, ITC filed an 
appeal before the Hon’ble Securities Appellate Tribunal (“SAT”) 
challenging the findings in the Order.
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	 On 14th August, 2019, ITC sought interim relief in the nature of 
a direction from the Hon’ble SAT that till the Appeal is finally 
heard, the Promoters of the Company and JM Financial Asset 
Reconstruction Company Limited should be restrained from 
voting in respect of the proposed sale of the Undertakings, failing 
which the captioned Appeal would be rendered infructuous. 
The Hon’ble SAT did not find it proper to grant a stay with 
respect to the Postal Ballot Notice and / or the voting process. 
The final judgement of the Hon’ble SAT was pronounced on  
26th  September 2019, wherein the appeal of ITC was rejected. 
Subsequently, ITC filed a statutory appeal in the Supreme Court 
of India and reply has been filed by all the respondents. The 
matter will be listed in due course of time before the Supreme 
Court of India.

7.2	 Litigations with Airports Authority of India

	 There are some ongoing disputes regarding the exorbitant 
demand of lease rentals and royalty in the form of Minimum 
Guaranteed Amount with Airports Authority of India (AAI) [as 
referred in the Lease Deed executed between the Company and 
AAI] which is in relation to the Mumbai Hotel land, admeasuring 
18,000 sq. meters and the adjacent land of 11,000 sq. meters. The 
Company had earlier initiated proceedings for appointment of an 
Arbitrator in the High Court of Bombay in 2017. AAI simultaneously 
initiated Eviction Proceedings against the Company before the 
Eviction Officer at Mumbai. However, there is a stay to the Eviction 
Proceedings, as granted by the Bombay High Court that continues 
to operate till date. The arbitration application and appeals filed 
by the Company in respect of 18,000 sq. meters and 11,000 sq. 
meters land have been heard by the Bombay High Court on  
20th February, 2025 and the judgement is reserved for orders. 
There are few litigations in regard to the subject matter that are 
pending in the Bombay High Court and the Hon’ble Supreme 
Court. The cases will be taken up in due course of time.

	 The above disputes were parallelly referred to the Settlement 
Advisory Committee duly constituted by the Board of AAI 
since 2019. The Company in the various meetings held with 
them, put forth their submissions against the demand raised 
by them arbitrarily and requested for the renewal of lease for 
further period. The Company has received an offer letter dated  
1st December, 2023 from AAI for the renewal of lease of land for 
18,000 sq. meters subject to certain terms and conditions for 
which Company has made representation. The Company is now 
awaiting response from AAI for concluding settlement discussion.

7.3	 Litigations on the Company’s land in Hyderabad

	 The Company had entered into an MOU on 9th April, 2014, with 
PBSAMP Projects Private Limited (PBSAMP) for sale of land 
owned by the Company in Hyderabad admeasuring 3 acres and 
28 guntas for a consideration of ` 85 crores. As per the MOU, 
the Company had agreed to settle all pending litigations on the 
land and obtain permission under the Urban Land Ceiling Act for 
change in land usage from hotel to residential and for permission 
to alienate the land within 180 days from the date of MOU. As per 
the MOU, PBSAMP had advanced ` 15.5 crores to the Company 
and the Company settled two claims out of this amount. However, 
the Company could not settle remaining claims and could not 
get permission from the State Government under the Urban Land 
Ceiling Act for change in land usage and to alienate the land. 

There were only two suits pending in the Hyderabad City Civil 
Court against the Company, wherein the certain individuals are 
claiming to be the owners of certain portion of the aforesaid land. 

	 PBSAMP terminated the MOU on completion of 180 days from the 
date of MOU and demanded refund of ` 15.5 crores together with 
interest @ 21% per annum. Since the Company could not make 
payment, they initiated legal proceedings against the Company 
and secured an arbitral award in their favour. As per the arbitral 
award dated 8th September, 2019 an amount of ` 35 Crores 
inclusive of interest needed to be paid to the Claimant within 90 
days of the award. The Company filed an appeal under Section 
34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 against the said 
impugned award before City Civil Court at Hyderabad which was 
dismissed. PBSAMP filed an Execution Petition before the City 
Civil Court, Hyderabad for execution of the said arbitral award. 
The Company has paid an amount of ` 44,42,05,254/-, including 
the outstanding interest, to PBSAMP. The matter was decided by 
the City Civil (Executing) Court in Hyderabad vide its order dated 
2nd November, 2023 that was passed in favour of the Company 
against which, a Civil Revision Petition was preferred by PBSAMP 
against the Company before the High Court of Telangana. The 
matter was then remanded to the City Civil (Executing) Court in 
Hyderabad vide its order dated 22nd April, 2024, against which, 
the Company has currently preferred a Special Leave Petition in 
the Supreme Court of India, challenging the merits of the order 
dated 22nd April, 2024, passed by the High Court of Telangana. 
The Special Leave Petition filed by the Company is currently 
pending before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India for judicial 
consideration.  

 	 Meanwhile, the Company had sold the aforesaid land at 
Hyderabad in January, 2024 for a total consideration of  
` 84,42,05,254/- by executing the “Agreement of Sale-Cum-
Irrevocable General Power of Attorney” in favour of M/s. Sri 
Venkateswara Constructions represented by Sri Kadiyala Subba 
Rao, its Managing Partner on “as is where is basis” along with the 
condition stipulated in the Agreement of Sale for taking over the 
liabilities in all the pending litigations filed against the Company 
and all rival claims of diverse parties in respect of the said Land. 
The said consideration includes an amount of ` 44,42,05,254/- 
already paid by the purchaser towards the settlement of the claim 
of PBSAMP on the said land which in respect of discharge of the 
Company’s liability towards PBSAMP as per the Arbitral Award 
dated 8th September, 2019. 

8.	 Details of significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and the Company’s operations in future

	 No significant and material orders have been passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and the Company’s operations in future. However, attention 
of the Members is drawn to the legal proceedings pending against 
the Company as mentioned at Para No. 7 of this Board Report.

9.	 Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

9.1	 Directors

	 As on the date of this Report, the Company has Nine (9) Directors 
consisting of Five (5) Independent Directors, Two (2) Executive 
Directors and Two (2) Non-Executive Directors.
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9.1.1	 Appointment of Directors

	 The Board of Directors on the recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee at their meeting held on 22nd 

May, 2025 have re-appointed Mr. Vivek Nair (DIN: 00005870) 
as the Chairman and Managing Director and Mr. Dinesh Nair  
(DIN: 00006609) as the Co-Chairman and Managing Director of 
the Company for a period of five years respectively commencing 
from 3rd October, 2025 upto 2nd October, 2030 not liable to retire 
by rotation subject to approval of the Members of the Company 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

	 The necessary resolutions for their re-appointment forms part of 
the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

9.1.2	 Director retiring by rotation

	 Mrs. Salini Madhu Nair (DIN: 00011223) is liable to retire by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and offers herself 
for re-appointment.

	 We seek approval of members for appointment of Mrs. Salini 
Madhu Nair as Non-Executive Director of the Company liable to 
retire by rotation.

9.1.3	 Declaration by Independent Directors and statement on 
compliance of code of conduct

	 The Company has received necessary declarations from each of 
the Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, that he / she meets the criteria of Independence 
laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Independent Directors 
have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or 
situation, which exists or may be reasonably anticipated, that 
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with 
an objective independent judgement and without any external 
influence. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that 
they have complied with the Code for Independent Directors 
prescribed in Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Company’s “Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel”.

	 In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the 
conditions of independence specified in Section 149(6) of the Act 
and Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and there has been no change 
in the circumstances affecting their status as independent 
directors of the Company. All the Independent Directors possess 
integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency). All 
of the Independent Directors have registered themselves with the 
data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian 
Institute of Corporate Affairs and passed online proficiency self- 
assessment test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate 
Affairs in terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

9.1.4	 Woman Director

	 Your Company has complied with the provisions of Section 149 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
with respect to appointment of Woman Director. Your Company 

has four Women Directors among them two are Independent 
Directors, viz. Ms. Saija Nair and Ms. Niranjana Unnikrishnan.

9.2	 Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

	 The Company has following persons as Key Managerial Personnel 
in accordance with section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

Sr.
No.

Name of the
Person

Designation

1 Mr. Vivek Nair Chairman and Managing Director

2. Mr. Dinesh Nair Co-Chairman and Managing Director

3. Mr. Umesh 
Dombe

Chief Financial Officer

4. Ms. Savitri Yadav Company Secretary

10.	 Meetings of the Board

	 Regular meetings of the Board are held to discuss and decide 
on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. 
The schedule of the Board / Committee meetings to be held in 
the forthcoming year are circulated to the Directors in advance to 
enable them to plan their time schedule for effective participation 
in the meetings.

	 During the FY 2024-25, the Board of Directors met four times i.e. 
on 24th May, 2024, 9th August, 2024, 12th November, 2024 and 11th 

February, 2025. Detailed information on the meetings of the Board 
is included in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’, which forms 
part of this Annual Report.

11.	 Committees of the Board

11.1	 Audit Committee

	 The Audit Committee met four times during the year under review. 
As on the date of this Report, the Committee comprises of six 
Directors, i.e. five Independent Directors and one Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director as a member.

	 The details with respect to the composition, roles, terms of 
reference, etc. of the Audit Committee are given in the ‘Report on 
Corporate Governance’ of the Company which forms part of this 
Annual Report.

	 There are no recommendations of the Audit Committee which 
have not been accepted by the Board.

11.2	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two times 
during the year under review. As on the date of this Report, 
the Committee comprises of six Directors, i.e. five Independent 
Directors and one Non-Executive Non-Independent Director as 
members.

	 The details with respect to the composition, roles, terms of 
reference, etc. of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
are given in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ of the 
Company which forms part of this Annual Report.
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11.3	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

	 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met once during the 
year under review. As on the date of this Report, the Committee 
comprises of six Directors, i.e. five Independent Directors and 
one Non-Executive Non-Independent Director as members.

	 The details with respect to the composition, roles, terms of 
reference, etc. of the Committee are given in the ‘Report on 
Corporate Governance’ of the Company which forms part of this 
Annual Report.

11.4	 Risk Management Committee

	 The Risk Management Committee met twice during the year  
under review. As on the date of this Report, the Committee 
comprises of four Independent Directors, one Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director and one Senior Executive who is Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company as members.

	 The details with respect to the composition, roles, terms of 
reference, etc. of the Committee are given in the ‘Report on 
Corporate Governance’ of the Company which forms part of this 
Annual Report.

12.	 Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration

	 The Company has formulated and adopted the “Nomination, 
Appointment and Remuneration Policy” for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of 
the Company in accordance with the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Rules made there under and SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The said Policy of the Company, provides: (i) Criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director, (ii) Policy on Diversity of Board of Directors, (iii) Policy 
on Remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management of the Company and (iv) Succession Plan for 
Board of Directors and Senior Management.

	 The Policy on Remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management of the Company as well as 
the weblink of the same is provided in the ‘Report on Corporate 
Governance’.

13.	 Performance Evaluation of the Board

	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 17(10), 19(4) and Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, a Board Evaluation Policy has been framed and approved 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board.

	 The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of its 
own performance, the Independent Directors individually as well 
as the evaluation of the working of the Committees of the Board. 
The performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried out by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The performance 
evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors 
was carried out by the Independent Directors.

	 The purpose of the Board evaluation is to achieve persistent and 
consistent improvement in the governance of the Company at 
the Board level. The Board intends to establish and follow “best 

practices” in Board governance in order to fulfill its fiduciary 
obligation to the Company.

	 The Company has in place a structured questionnaire, which has 
been prepared after taking into consideration inputs received 
from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s 
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board 
and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance 
of specific duties, obligations and governance. The Directors 
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

14.	 Directors’ Responsibility Statement

	 Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Directors, hereby state and confirm that:

	 (a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ending 
31st March, 2025, the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures;

	 (b)	 they have selected such accounting policies and applied 
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for 
that period;

	 (c)	 they have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

	 (d)	 they have prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis;

	 (e)	 they have laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the Company and such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

	 (f)	 they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.

15.	 Report on Corporate Governance

	 A Report on Corporate Governance for the year under review, as 
required under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V, Part C of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 forms part of this Annual Report.

16.	 Auditors

16.1	 Statutory Auditors and Auditors’ Report

	 Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, the Members, at the 41st Annual General Meeting of 
the Company held on 24th August, 2022, had re-appointed  
M/s. N. S. Shetty & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 
No. 0110101W) as the Statutory Auditors for the second 
consecutive term of five years, from the conclusion of the 41st 

Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 46th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027.
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	 The Statutory Auditors were present at the last Annual General 
Meeting.

	 During the period under review, even though there are no audit 
qualifications or adverse remarks, there are audit observations on 
the financial statements. The explanation for the same has been 
provided in Note No. 37.1 and 37.3 of the Financial Statements. 
The said notes are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
comments.

16.2	 Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report

	 In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
made thereunder, M/s. RAAM & Associates LLP, Company 
Secretaries (Unique Code No. L2021MH011800) were appointed 
as Secretarial Auditors of the Company to conduct the Secretarial 
Audit of records and documents of the Company for FY 2024-
25 and their report is annexed as Annexure I to this report. The 
Secretarial Auditor has made certain observations in their report. 
Para 7 and 20.2 of the Board’s Report explains the status and 
the same may also be treated as the response to the Secretarial 
Auditors’ observations.

16.3	 Appointment of Secretarial Auditor

	 Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation 
of Audit Committee approved the appointment of M/s. RAAM 
& Associates LLP, Company Secretaries (Unique Code No. 
L2021MH011800), a peer reviewed firm of Company Secretaries 
in Practice as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of 
five consecutive years, commencing from FY 2025-26 up to FY 
2029-30, to conduct the Secretarial Audit, subject to approval 
of the members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. The necessary resolutions for the appointment of 
M/s. RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries forms part of 
the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

16.4	 Compliance with Secretarial Standards

	 The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the Company has 
complied with applicable Secretarial Standards.

16.5	 Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

	 During the year under review, no frauds have been reported by 
the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
requiring disclosure in the Board’s Report.

17.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

	 A CSR Policy has been adopted by the Board; however, CSR 
Committee has not been formed. The Board has decided to 
discharge the functions of CSR Committee till the amount 
required to be spent on CSR activities exceeds the limits provided 
under section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 for any financial 
year.

	 The brief outline of the CSR Policy of the Company and the 
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during 
the year under review are set out in Annexure II of this report 
in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 

	 The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company at 
https://www.hlvltd.com/assets/investors_relations/Policy%20
on%20Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility.pdf 

18.	 Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

	 The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism 
for directors and employees to report genuine concerns or 
grievances. The details of which are available in ‘Report on 
Corporate Governance’ forming part of this Annual Report.

19.	 Risk Management

	 The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk 
Management Committee to frame, implement and monitor the risk 
management plan and policy for the Company. The Committee is 
responsible to ensure that appropriate methodology, processes 
and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks associated 
with the business of the Company and to monitor and oversee 
implementation of the risk management policy, including 
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems. The 
Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial 
risks and controls. The major risks identified by the businesses 
and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating 
actions on a continuing basis.

	 The Risk Management Policy of the Company includes a  
framework for identification of internal and external risks 
specifically faced by the Company, in particular including  
financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability, information, cyber 
security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the 
Committee, measures for risk mitigation including systems and 
processes for internal control of identified risks and business 
continuity plan.

	 The development & implementation of risk management policy 
has been caused in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
which forms a part of the Annual Report.

20.	 Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

20.1   All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in the 
ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis except the 
transaction with Leela Lace Holdings Private Limited, a promoter 
group company for renewal of Leave and License Agreement 
for Admin Building. The said transaction was not in the ordinary 
course of business but at arm’s length basis and neither crossed 
the threshold limits provided under Rule 15 (3) (iii) of Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 nor material 
under regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The transaction is approved 
by the Audit Committee and Board. Details of the transaction 
pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in form 
AOC-2 is attached as Annexure III forming part of this Report.

20.2	 All the Related Party Transactions were placed before the 
Audit Committee for prior approval except the appointment of  
Ms. Anisha Rajani (daughter of Mr. Ashok Rajani, Independent 
Director), who was appointed as Assistant Manager – Sales on 
probation without the prior approval of Audit Committee, however 
prior approval of audit committee was obtained before confirming 
her appointment. The appointment of Ms. Anisha Rajani was 
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done in the ordinary course of business and her remuneration is 
at arms’ length also her appointment does not affect the criteria of 
independence for Mr. Ashok Rajani laid down under section 149 
(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

20.3	 As per the policy on Related Party Transactions, the Audit 
Committee granted omnibus approval for the transactions which 
are repetitive in nature. The related party transactions were 
placed before the Audit Committee on quarterly basis for review, 
pursuant to omnibus approval.

20.4   The policy on related party transactions as approved by the board 
of directors has been uploaded on the website of the company. 
The web link of the same has been provided in the ‘Report on 
Corporate Governance’.

21.	 Internal Financial Control Systems and their adequacy

	 Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements, commensurate with 
the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The Company 
has laid down standards, processes and structures which 
enable implementation of internal financial control across 
the organization and ensure that the same are adequate and 
operating effectively. Financial Controls are operative for all the 
business activities of the Company and no material weakness in 
the design or operation of any control was observed. During the 
year the internal financial controls as laid down are adequate and 
were operating effectively.

	 The Company had appointed M/s. Murali & Venkat, Chartered 
Accountants, as Internal Auditors for FY 2024-25 who reviewed 
the internal control systems of the Company and reported 
thereon. The reports of the Internal Auditors were reviewed by the 
Audit Committee on quarterly basis.

22.	 Annual Return

	 The annual return of the Company as required under section 
92(3) and section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 will be 
made available on the website of the Company at https://www.
hlvltd.com/investor_relation.html. 

23.	 Loans, Guarantees or Investments

	 The Company, being engaged in the hotel business, is classified 
as providing ‘infrastructure facilities’ in terms of the Schedule VI 
to the Companies Act and is exempted from the compliance for 
loans made, guarantees given, and security provided in terms of 
Section 186 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 Therefore, particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under 
Section 186 are not provided.

24.	 Disclosure under Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Work place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013

	 Your Company has zero tolerance towards any action on the 
part of any employee which may fall under the ambit of ‘Sexual 
Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold 
and maintain the dignity of every woman employee in the 

Company. The Company’s policy provides for protection against 
sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention 
and redressal of such complaints. All employees (permanent, 
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 
The Company has complied with provisions relating to the 
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013.

25.	 Employee Remuneration

	 The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median 
employee’s remuneration and other details in terms of sub- 
section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is attached as Annexure IV 
forming part of this Report.

	 The statement containing particulars of employees as required 
under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is open for inspection at 
the Registered Office of the Company during working hours up to 
the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. In terms of Section 
136 of the Act, the Reports and Accounts are being sent to the 
Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the aforesaid 
particulars of employees. A copy of this statement may be 
obtained by the Members by writing to the Company Secretary.

26	 Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption, Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo and Other Disclosures

	 The disclosures to be made under sub-section (3) (m) of 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 by your Company are 
furnished below:

26.1	 Conservation of Energy

	 Energy Conservation, sustainability and efforts to make the hotel 
more “Green” have been the main drive throughout the year. 
Major efforts / steps taken towards this are:

	 •	 Energy-efficient lighting like LED and energy efficient 
electrical equipment’s are installed extensively.

	 •	 High efficiency HVAC systems used/retrofitted extensively 
have reduced electrical consumption.

	 •	 Computerized Power Monitoring is implemented to 
monitor and control power consumption.

	 •	 Main chiller plants and steam boilers have been tuned for 
best efficiency, to conserve energy.

	 •	 The hotel is equipped with condensate recovery unit for 
generating hot water and the rooms are equipped with 
energy- saving devices during non-occupancy.

	 •	 The hotel is equipped with in house recycled drinking 
water glass bottling plant which cater all the guest rooms 
and restaurants.

	 •	 STP treated water has been used for cooling tower /Garden 
and also Rainwater Harvesting has been implemented.
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	 •	 The Company has 3 windmills with a capacity of 4.5 MW 
power, in the State of Maharashtra. Windmills continue to 
produce renewable energy for use in its own hotel.

	 •	 We are in the process to set up solar power panels at 
the roof top of the building to get the additional power 
generation to cater maximum utilization of renewable 
power.

26.2	 Technology Absorption

	 In the opinion of the Board, the required particulars pertaining 
to technology absorption under Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, are not applicable, as hotel is a service industry 
and the Company does not have any significant manufacturing 
operations.

26.3	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

	 The foreign exchange earnings of the Company during the year 
stood at ` 5,980.79 lakhs (previous year ` 5,270.62 lakhs) and 
foreign exchange outgo during the year stood at ` 306.94 lakhs 
(previous year ` 349.90 lakhs).

27	 Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

	 For details refer para on “Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF)” in ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ forming part of this 
Annual Report.

28	 Other Disclosures /Reporting

	 Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in 
respect of the following items as there were no transactions/ were 
not applicable pertaining to these items during the year under 
review:

28.1	 The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling 
within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 during the period under review.

28.2	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting 
or otherwise.

28.3	 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of 
the Company under any scheme.

28.4	 Details of Employee Stock Options

28.5	 Shares held in Trust for the benefit of employees where the voting 
rights are not exercised directly by employees

28.6	 Issue of Debenture, Bonds or any other Convertible Securities

28.7	 Issue of warrants

28.8	 Receipt of remuneration or commission from any of the 
subsidiaries by the Executive Directors of the Company.

28.9	 During the financial year under review, your Company had no 
joint ventures or subsidiaries nor it has incorporated or acquired 
any company.

28.10	 Maintenance of Cost Records as specified by the Central 
Government under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is 
not required by the Company.

28.11	 During the year under review, there were no proceedings that 
were filed by the Company or against the Company, which are 
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, 
as amended, before National Company Law Tribunal or other 
Courts.

28.12	 During the year under review, there were no instances of onetime 
settlement with any Banks or Financial Institutions.

29	 Acknowledgements

	 The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation for the 
assistance and support received from the lenders, government, 
regulatory authorities, customers, business associates and 
vendors.

	 Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere thanks 
to all the members and stakeholders for the faith and confidence 
reposed in the Company and the management.

	 Your Directors attach immense importance to the contribution 
of the employees and sincerely thank them for sharing the 
Company’s vision and philosophy and for the dedication and 
commitment.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vivek Nair
Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00005870
 

Mumbai, 22nd May, 2025
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Annexure I
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,
HLV Limited
The Leela, Sahar,
Mumbai – 400059.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate governance 
practices by HLV LIMITED (hereinafter called the “Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, 
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there 
under;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the 
rules made there under;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws 
framed there under;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and 
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; (Not applicable as there was no reportable event 
during the financial year under review)

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

	 a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

	 b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
(Not applicable to the company for the financial year 
under review)

	 d)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 
(Not applicable to the company for the financial year 
under review)

	 e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with 
client;

	 f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of 
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the 
company for the financial year under review)

	 g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back 
of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the 
company for the financial year under review)

	 h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 
(Not applicable to the company for the financial year 
under review)

	 i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 [SEBI (LODR), 2015]; and

	 j)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories 
and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

(vi)	 We have relied on the representations made by the Company 
and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the 
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws 
and Regulations to the Company. The list of major heads/groups 
of Acts, laws and Regulations as applicable to the Company are 
listed below;

	 a.	 The Factories Act, 1948;

	 b.	 The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013;

	 c.	 Entertainment Tax;

	 d.	 Luxury Tax Act;

	 e.	 Employees Compensation (Amendment) Act, 2009;



HLV Limited      9

	 f.	 Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

	 g.	 Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;

	 h.	 Environment (Protection) Act, 1986;

	 i.	 Hazardous Chemicals Rules;

	 j.	 Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management & 
Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016;

	 k.	 Income Tax and other Indirect Tax Laws;

	 l.	 GST Act and Rules Made thereunder;

	 m.	 Indian Contract Act,1872;

	 n.	 Motor Vehicle Act, 1988;

	 o.	 Maharashtra State Profession Tax, 1975 & Rules made 
thereunder;

	 p.	 Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954;

	 q.	 Food, Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and Rules, 2011 
with allied rules and regulations;

	 r.	 The Legal Metrology Act, 2009;

	 s.	 The Legal Metrology Act (packaged Commodities) Rules, 
2011;

	 t.	 All Environmental Related Acts & Rules;

	 u.	 All Applicable labour laws and other incidental laws related 
to labours and employees appointed by the company 
either on its payroll or on contractual basis as related to 
wages, gratuity, provident fund, ESIC, compensation etc;

	 v.	 All other laws applicable to the Hospitality and Hotel 
Industry and in particular Food and Beverages

	 w.	 Other applicable laws

	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses 
of the following:

	 a)	 Secretarial Standards with regards to Meeting of Board of 
Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by 
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

	 b)	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with 
stock exchanges;

	 To the best of our knowledge and belief, during the year under 
review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned 
above.

	 We further report that:

	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors and Women Director in terms of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR), 2015.

	 There were no changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors during the period under review.

	 Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings (including meetings of the committees), agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance as per the 
Companies Act, 2013. Further, a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting.

	 All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings 
are carried out either unanimously or majority of the Board of 
Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

	 We further report that:

	 There are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company 
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.

	 The members may note that:

	 1.	 During the financial year under review there were no 
special business passed by the members at the 43rd 
Annual General Meeting held on 25th September, 2024.

	 2.	 During the Financial year under review, there were no 
resolutions passed through Postal Ballot.

	 3.	 Litigations against the company:

	 (I)	 Litigation on the transaction with Brookfield for sale of 
Undertakings

	 (i)	 ITC Limited and its subsidiary Russell Credit Limited, 
members of the Company holding then 8.72% (at present 
8.10%) of the equity share capital, had filed a petition 
under Section 241 of the Act, on 22nd April, 2019 against 
the Company, for oppression and mismanagement 
along with two applications for urgent hearing and for 
waiver of the requirement of minimum threshold of 10% 
shareholding in relation to the transaction with BSREP III 
India Ballet Pte. Ltd. or its affiliates (“Brookfield”) for sale 
of hotel undertakings before the NCLT in May 2019. After 
hearing both parties, the Ld. Tribunal allowed the Waiver 
Application of ITC Limited & ANR. vide their order dated 
24th January, 2024. Company and its Promoters viz.  
Mr. Vivek Nair & Mr. Dinesh Nair have filed separate 
Appeals before NCLAT, Delhi challenging the order dated 
24th January, 2024 of NCLT, Mumbai. The matter is being 
heard at NCLAT, Delhi.

	 (ii)	 Two minority members i.e. ITC Limited and Life Insurance 
Corporation of India (LIC) had filed complaint with 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) against 
the aforesaid transaction with Brookfield, alleging violation 
of the provisions related to related party transactions 
and oppression and mismanagement by the majority 
members against minority members. Later LIC withdrew 
from contesting this case. On 23rd July, 2019, SEBI passed 
its detailed, reasoned and speaking order in the matter of 
“Complaints Filed by Minority Shareholder of Hotel Leela 
Venture Limited”
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		  Aggrieved by the aforesaid Impugned Order, ITC filed an 
appeal before the Hon’ble Securities Appellate Tribunal 
(“SAT”) challenging the findings in the Order.

		  On 14th August, 2019, ITC sought interim relief in the 
nature of a direction from the Hon’ble SAT that till the 
Appeal is finally heard, the Promoters of the Company and  
JM Financial Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 
should be restrained from voting in respect of the proposed 
sale of the Undertakings, failing which the captioned 
Appeal would be rendered infructuous. The Hon’ble 
SAT did not find it proper to grant a stay with respect to 
the Postal Ballot Notice and / or the voting process. The 
final judgment of the Hon’ble SAT was pronounced on  
26th September, 2019, wherein the appeal of ITC has been 
rejected. Subsequently, ITC filed a statutory appeal in the 
Supreme Court of India and reply has been filed by all the 
respondents. The matter will be listed in due course of time 
before the Supreme Court of India.

	 (II)	 Litigations with Airports Authority of India

		  There are some ongoing disputes regarding the exorbitant 
demand of lease rentals and royalty in the form of Minimum 
Guaranteed Amount with Airports Authority of India (AAI) 
[as referred in the Lease Deed executed between the 
Company and AAI] which is in relation to the Mumbai Hotel 
land, admeasuring 18,000 sq. meters and the adjacent 
land of 11,000 sq. meters. The Company had earlier 
initiated proceedings for appointment of an Arbitrator in 
the High Court of Bombay in 2017. AAI simultaneously 
initiated Eviction Proceedings against the Company before 
the Eviction Officer at Mumbai. However, there is a stay to 
the Eviction Proceedings, as granted by the Bombay High 
Court that continues to operate till date. The arbitration 
application and appeals filed by the Company in respect of 
18,000 sq. meters and 11,000 sq. meters land have been 
heard by the Bombay High Court on 20th February, 2025 
and the judgement is reserved for orders. There are few 
litigations in regard to the subject matter that are pending 
in the Bombay High Court and the Hon’ble Supreme Court. 
The cases will be taken up in due course of time.

		  The above disputes were parallelly referred to the 
Settlement Advisory Committee duly constituted by the 
Board of AAI since 2019. The Company in the various 
meetings held with them, put forth their submissions 
against the demand raised by them arbitrarily and 
requested for the renewal of lease for further period. The 
Company has received an offer letter dated 1st December, 
2023 from AAI for the renewal of lease of land for 18,000 sq. 
meters subject to certain terms and conditions for which 
Company has made representation. The Company is now 
awaiting response from AAI for concluding settlement 
discussion.

	 III)	 Litigations on the Company’s land in Hyderabad

		  The Company had entered into an MOU on 9th April, 
2014, with PBSAMP Projects Private Limited (PBSAMP) 
for sale of land owned by the Company in Hyderabad 
admeasuring 3 acres and 28 guntas for a consideration 
of ` 85 crores. As per the MOU, the Company had 
agreed to settle all pending litigations on the land and 
obtain permission under the Urban Land Ceiling Act for 
change in land usage from hotel to residential and for 
permission to alienate the land within 180 days from the 
date of MOU. As per the MOU, PBSAMP had advanced  
` 15.5 crores to the Company and the Company settled two 
claims out of this amount. However, the Company could 
not settle remaining claims and could not get permission 
from the State Government under the Urban Land Ceiling 
Act for change in land usage and to alienate the land. 
There were only two suits pending in the Hyderabad City 
Civil Court against the Company, wherein the certain 
individuals are claiming to be the owners of certain portion 
of the aforesaid land.

		  PBSAMP terminated the MOU on completion of 180 
days from the date of MOU and demanded refund of  
` 15.5 crores together with interest @ 21% per annum. 
Since the Company could not make payment, they initiated 
legal proceedings against the Company and secured an 
arbitral award in their favour. As per the arbitral award dated  
8th September, 2019 an amount of ` 35 Crores inclusive of 
interest needed to be paid to the Claimant within 90 days 
of the award. The Company filed an appeal under section 
34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 against the 
said impugned award before City Civil Court at Hyderabad 
which was dismissed. PBSAMP filed an Execution Petition 
before the City Civil Court, Hyderabad for execution 
of the said arbitral award. The Company has paid an 
amount of ` 44,42,05,254/-, including the outstanding 
interest, to PBSAMP. The matter was decided by the City 
Civil (Executing) Court in Hyderabad vide its order dated  
2nd November, 2023 that was passed in favour of the 
Company against which, a Civil Revision Petition was 
preferred by PBSAMP against the Company before the 
High Court of Telangana. The matter was then remanded to 
the City Civil (Executing) Court in Hyderabad vide its order 
dated 22nd April, 2024, against which, the Company has 
currently preferred a Special Leave Petition in the Supreme 
Court of India, challenging the merits of the order dated 
22nd April, 2024, passed by the High Court of Telangana. 
The Special Leave petition filed by the Company is 
currently pending before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of 
India for judicial consideration.

		  Meanwhile, the Company had sold the aforesaid land at 
Hyderabad in January, 2024 for a total consideration of 
` 84,42,05,254/- by executing the “Agreement of Sale-
Cum-Irrevocable General Power of Attorney” in favour 
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of M/s. Sri Venkateswara Constructions represented by 
Sri Kadiyala Subba Rao, its Managing Partner on “as is 
where is basis” along with the condition stipulated in 
the Agreement of Sale for taking over the liabilities in all 
the pending litigations filed against the Company and  
all rival claims of diverse parties in respect of the said 
Land. The said consideration includes an amount of  
` 44,42,05,254/- already paid by the purchaser towards the 
settlement of the claim of PBSAMP on the said land which 
in respect of discharge of the Company’s liability towards 
PBSAMP as per the Arbitral Award dated 8th September, 
2019.

4.	 Appointment of Ms. Anisha Rajani d/o Mr. Ashok Rajani, 
Independent Director

	 Ms. Anisha Rajani, daughter of Mr. Ashok Rajani, an Independent 
Director of the Company, was appointed as Assistant Manager - 
Sales with effect from 3rd October, 2023 on probation.

	 The said appointment was carried out without obtaining prior 
approval of the Audit Committee, as mandated under Regulation 
23(2) of the SEBI (LODR), 2015. However, approval of Audit 
Committee was obtained before confirming her appointment.

RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries,
Unique code No. L2021MH011800 

PR: 5768/2024

Amit K Trivedi, Partner
FCS: 11522    CP No.: 7059
UDIN: F011522G000407346

Date: 22nd May, 2025

Place: Mumbai

This report is to be read with our letter which is annexed as Annexure A 
and forms an integral Part of the Report.

Annexure A
To,
The Members,
HLV Limited
The Leela, Sahar,
Mumbai – 400059.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial record of applicable laws is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents 

of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe 

that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening 

of events etc.

5.	 The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards applicable to the Company is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries,

Unique code No. L2021MH011800 
PR: 5768/2024

Amit K Trivedi, Partner
FCS: 11522    CP No.: 7059
UDIN: F011522G000407346

Date: 22nd May, 2025

Place: Mumbai
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Annexure II

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES FOR THE F.Y. 2024-25

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

	 Our CSR approach is inspired by a duty to our stakeholders to be a socially responsible partner with the highest integrity and ethics. We 

believe that our commitment towards socially sustainable practices generate real value for our shareholders, clients, employees, and society 

at large. We apply high environmental and social standards to our business to support a sustainable future. We seek to keep improving the 

environmental performance through the efficient use of resources and by applying world-class green practices across the board from hotel 

design and construction to procurement and operational policies.

	 The Company has developed and implanted its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy. The CSR Policy sets out the commitment and 

approach towards Corporate Social Responsibility. It outlines the objectives, focus areas of CSR activities, guiding principles for selection, 

CSR expenditure, implementation and monitoring of CSR activities. The CSR Policy also provides for role/functions of CSR Committee.

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee: Not Applicable

	 The Board of Directors of the Company will be discharging the functions of CSR Committee till the amount required to be spent on CSR 

Activities exceeds the limits provided under Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013.

3.	 Provide the web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed 
on the website of the Company

	 -	 CSR Committee: Not Applicable

	 -	 CSR Policy: https://www.hlvltd.com/assets/investors_relations/Policy%20on%20Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility.pdf

	 -	 CSR Projects: Not Applicable

4.	 Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) 

of rule 8, if applicable: Not applicable

5.	 (a)	 Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section(5) of Section 135: ` 43.94 Lakhs

	 (b)	 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) Section 135: ` 0.88 Lakhs

	 (c)	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous Financial Years: Nil

	 (d)	 Amount required to be set off for the Financial Year, if any: Nil

	 (e)	 Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year (5(b)+5(c)- 5(d)): ` 0.88 Lakhs

6.	 (a)	 Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): ` 1 Lakh

	 (b)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

	 (c)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

	 (d)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year [6(a)+6(b)+6(c)]: ` 1 Lakh

	 (e)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Spent 

for the Financial Year 

(in `)

Amount Unspent (in `)

Total Amount transferred 

to Unspent CSR Account as per  

sub-section (6) of section 135

Amount transferred to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-section (5) 

of section 135

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

` 1 Lakh Not Applicable

http://www.hlvltd.com/assets/investors_relations/Policy%20on%20Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility.pdf
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	 (f)	 Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. No Particular Amount (in `)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 ` 0.88 Lakh

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ` 1 Lakh

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] ` 0.12 Lakh

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, 

if any

Nil

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] ` 0.12 Lakh

7.	 Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three Financial Years: Nil

8.	 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial 
Year: No

9.	 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-section (5) Section 135: Not 
applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vivek Nair
Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00005870
 

Mumbai, 22nd May, 2025
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Annexure III
FORM NO. AOC - 2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in  
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transactions under third proviso thereto

[(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)]

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis - NIL

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis - NIL

Note: However, details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis but not in the ordinary course of business are as follows :

Name(s) of 
the related 
party and 
nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions

Duration of the 
contracts/

arrangements/ 
transactions

Salient terms of the 
contracts or arrangements 
or transactions including the 
value, if any

Justification for 
entering into 
such contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions

Date of

approval by 
the Board

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any

Date on which the 
special resolution 
was passed in 
general meeting as 
required

under first proviso 
to section 188

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h)

Leela Lace 
Holdings 
Private Limited 
(LLHPL), a 
promoter 
group 
company

Renewal of 
Leave and 
License 
Agreement

Five (5) Years •	 Renewal of Leave and 
License Agreement to 
use and occupy ground 
floor (Chargeable 
Area 15,673.74 sq. ft.) 
for laundry and fully 
furnished Commercial 
office space (Chargeable 
Area 12,094.47 sq. ft.) 
at 1st, 2nd and 3rd Floor in 
the building owned by 
LLHPL. 

•	 License fees @ of ` 201 
per sq. ft. p.m. for Ground 
Floor and ` 121 per sq. 
ft. p.m. for 1st, 2nd and 3rd 
Floor.

•	 At an interest free 
refundable security 
deposit equivalent to 6 
months’ License Fees 

•	 Annual escalation of rent 
– 5 % per year

The building 
which is used for 
laundry and office 
is adjacent to the 
Hotel Building 
and it adds to 
operational 
efficiency. The 
license fee is 
comparable to the 
market rates in the 
area.

9th August, 
2024

Nil Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vivek Nair
Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00005870
 

Mumbai, 22nd May, 2025
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Annexure IV
DETAILS OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employees’ remuneration and other details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

Sr. No. Requirements Disclosure

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the 
median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the FY 2024-25

Mr. Vivek Nair, Chairman & Managing Director, (CMD) – 21.08

Mr. Dinesh Nair, Co-Chairman & Managing Director, (CCMD) – 21.08

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each 
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the FY 2024- 
25

Mr. Vivek Nair, CMD - NIL 

Mr. Dinesh Nair, CCMD - NIL

Mr. Umesh Dombe, Chief Financial Officer - 15%

Ms. Savitri Yadav, Company Secretary - 15%

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration 
of employees

4.19 %

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
Company

There were 409 permanent employees as on 31st March, 2025.

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries 
of employees other than the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its comparison with the 
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration 
and justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration

•	 During FY 2024-25, the average percentage increase in the salaries of the 
Company’s employees, excluding Managerial Personnel – 7.65%

•	 During FY 2024-25, the average percentage increase in salary of Managerial 
Personnel – Nil

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company.

Yes, it is confirmed.
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1.	 Overview of Industry

	 Globally, 2024 has been an eventful year. The year witnessed 

unprecedented electoral activity on the political front, with more 

than half of the global population voting in major elections across 

countries. Meanwhile, adverse developments like the Russia-

Ukraine conflict and the Israel-Hamas conflict increased regional 

instability. These events impacted energy and food security, 

leading to higher prices and rising inflation. Cyberattacks also 

became more frequent and severe, with growing human and 

financial consequences due to the increasing digitisation of 

critical infrastructure. Geopolitical tensions, have reshaped global 

trade. Geopolitical risks and policy uncertainty, especially around 

trade policies, have also contributed to increased volatility in 

global financial markets. The global economy exhibited steady 

yet uneven growth across regions in 2024. A notable trend was 

the slowdown in global manufacturing, especially in Europe 

and parts of Asia, due to supply chain disruptions and weak 

external demand. In contrast, the services sector performed 

better, supporting growth in many economies. Inflationary 

pressures eased in most economies. However, services inflation 

has remained persistent. Although commodity prices have 

stabilised, the risk of synchronised price increases persists. 

With growth varying across economies and last-mile disinflation 

proving sticky, central banks may chart varying paths of monetary 

easing. Nonetheless, global economic growth has remained fairly 

moderate. The global economy grew by 3.3 per cent in 2023. 

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has projected growth of 

3.2 per cent and 3.3 per cent for 2024 and 2025, respectively. 

Over the next five years, global growth is expected to average 

around 3.2 per cent, which is modest by historical standards. 

While the overall global outlook remains steady, growth varies 

across different regions. (Economic Survey 2024-25, Department 

of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance).

	 In this global context, India displayed steady economic growth. As 

per the first advance estimates of national accounts, India’s real 

GDP is estimated to grow by 6.4 per cent in FY25. Growth in the 

first half of FY25 was supported by agriculture and services, with 

rural demand improving on the back of record Kharif production 

and favourable agricultural conditions. The manufacturing sector 

faced pressures due to weak global demand and domestic 

seasonal conditions. Private consumption remained stable, 

reflecting steady domestic demand. Fiscal discipline and strong 

external balance supported by a services trade surplus and 

healthy remittance growth contributed to macroeconomic stability. 

Together, these factors provided a solid foundation for sustained 

growth amid external uncertainties. The services sector continues 

to perform well in FY25. A notable growth in Q1 and Q2 resulted 

in 7.1 per cent growth in H1 FY25. Across sub-categories, all the 

sub-sectors have performed well. The robust performance of 

the services sector is also reflected in high-frequency indicators 

(HFIs). PMI services have been in an expansionary zone during 

H1 FY25, supported by growth in new orders, rise in output, 

improvement in sales and enhanced employment generation. 

The hospitality sector performed well, with hotel occupancy rates 

in H1 FY25 similar to the previous year. Average daily rates and 

revenue per room increased due to higher corporate and leisure 

travel. Air cargo activity grew in double digits, while port traffic 

remained stable. Information Technology (IT) companies also 

performed better than the previous quarter. (Economic Survey 

2024-25, Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance) 

	 The global tourism industry continued its strong resurgence in 

2024, nearly achieving full recovery from the pandemic’s impact. 

As per UNWTO Barometer January 2025, international tourist 

arrivals are estimated to have reached 1.4 billion in 2024, marking 

an 11% growth over 2023 and 99% of pre-pandemic levels. 

Europe remained the most visited region with a 52% share, 

surpassing 747 million international arrivals, a 5% increase vis-

a-vis 2023, and slightly exceeding its 2019 benchmark, while the 

Americas registered 214 million travellers, a 7% increase vis-a-

vis 2023, and reached 97% of pre-pandemic levels. The Middle 

East registered 1% growth over the previous year, however, 

surpassing 2019 arrivals by 32%, while Africa also outperformed 

pre-pandemic levels by 7% and 12% had a increase vis-a-vis 

2023. The Asia-Pacific (APAC) region made significant strides 

toward recovery, recording 316 million international arrivals with 

an overall share increase to 22% in 2024 as against 18% in 2023. 

While still lagging behind 2019 numbers at 87% recovery, the 

region’s growth on y-o-y basis was steepest at 33% accelerated 

by a revival in key markets. Total export revenues from tourism 

(including passenger transport) are estimated at a record USD 

1.9 trillion in 2024, about 3% higher than before the pandemic 

and 4% more than in 2019 (real terms). According to the United 

Nations World Tourism Organisation (UNWTO), international 

tourist arrivals are projected to increase by 3% to 5% compared 

to 2024, indicating a normalisation of growth following the sharp 

post-pandemic rebound. Confidence within the industry remains 

high — UNWTO’s January 2025 Confidence Index reports 

that 64% of surveyed travel professionals anticipate stronger 

performance this year than in 2024. This optimism is underpinned 

by key enablers such as enhanced air connectivity and the 

simplification of visa processes, both of which are expected to 

further support the sector’s expansion (Source: UNWTO, World 

Tourism Barometer, January 2025). The World Travel & Tourism 

Council (WTTC) forecasts that 2025 will be a landmark year for the 

industry. The sector’s global economic contribution is expected 

to reach a record breaking $11.7 trillion — up from $10.9 trillion 

in 2023 and $10.3 trillion in 2019. This represents a 6.7% increase 

over the previous year and a 13% rise compared to pre-pandemic 

levels. However, the industry continues to face external risks, 

including trade tensions and geopolitical instability, which may 

influence traveller behaviour and discretionary spend potentials. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Travellers are expected to prioritise value driven options and intra-

regional trips. According to CBRE’s 2025 Global Hotel Outlook, 

the Asia-Pacific region is set to experience modest revenue per 

available room (RevPAR) growth, fuelled by rising wealth and 

demand that is outpacing relatively slow new supply.

	 FY 2024-25 marked another landmark year for Indian tourism, 

driven by strong fundamentals such as a youthful population, 

rising employment, growing disposable incomes, and solid 

domestic demand. Improved infrastructure, greater connectivity, 

and increased investments have further accelerated the sector’s 

momentum. The Union Budget 2025–26 allocated ` 2,541 crore 

($ 291 million) for the tourism sector, with a focus on infrastructure 

upgrades, skill development, and easing travel. Key initiatives 

include the development of 50 leading tourist destinations, 

improved transport connectivity, and expanding the e-visa 

programme. As of December 2024, e-visas were available to 

citizens from 167 countries under 9 categories — making travel 

to India simpler and more accessible. The Ministry of Tourism 

advanced its flagship schemes such as Swadesh Darshan, 

PRASHAD, UDAN, and Dekho Apna Desh, encouraging regional 

and cultural tourism. Foreign tourist arrivals reached 9.7 million in 

2024 as against 9.23 million in 2023. This year’s arrival denoted a 

recovery of 88% of the 2019 high of 10.9 million, signalling steady 

progress toward full recovery. According to the India Hotel Market 

Review 2024 by Horwath HTL, national occupancy stood at 63.9% 

for 2024 as compared to 62.1% in 2023. While the occupancy is 

still marginally below the 2019 level of 64.5%, Revenue per day 

was 82% higher than 2019 indicating market growth both in terms 

of capacity and size. The average daily rate (ADR) rose to ̀  7,951, 

marking a 7.5% y-o-y increase and revenue per available room 

(RevPAR) rose to ` 5,078, marking 10.7% year on year increase.

2.	 Outlook

	 The Indian hotel industry enters 2025 on a strong footing, 

supported by sustained domestic travel, infrastructure upgrades, 

and rising interest from international markets. Continued 

economic growth, rising disposable incomes, and evolving travel 

aspirations especially among millennials and Gen Z are fuelling 

demand for both leisure and business stays. The continued advent 

of spiritual tourism, weddings in India, and strong M.I.C.E activity 

(Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and Exhibitions) surrounding 

large state of the art conventions centres are providing a strong 

impetus to growth. According to industry estimates, demand for 

branded hotel rooms in India is expected to continue outpacing 

supply growth which remains moderate. India’s hospitality 

industry presents a significant potential for market penetration 

with just 0.1 branded room inventory per 1,000 people.

	 While heightened trade tensions and global geopolitical risks 

weigh strongly on the economy, the government’s continued 

support through tourism-friendly policies, infrastructure spending, 

and ease-of-travel initiatives are expected to keep the sector 

on a stable growth trajectory. Backed by robust fundamentals, 

favourable supply-demand dynamics, and a maturing hospitality 

ecosystem, the Indian hotel industry is well-positioned for a 

strong and sustainable performance in 2025 and beyond. 

3.	 Business Review

	 During the FY 2024-25 occupancy levels at the Company’s Hotel 

were at 74 % as against 76% in the previous year. On an average, 

298 rooms were sold per day. Average room rate was ` 11,105 in 

the FY 2024-25 as against ` 10,193 in the FY 2023-24. During the 

FY 2024-25 RevPAR has improved upto ` 8,255 against ` 7,846 in 

the FY 2023-24. 

4.	 Awards and Accolades

	 The Leela Mumbai has received the following award and 

accolades during the FY 2024-25:

	 “Le Cirque” accorded with the Wine Spectator Award of 

Excellence for housing one of the most outstanding wine lists – 

Wine Spectator Award of Excellence 2024

	 “Le Cirque Signature” recognized as Best European – Premium 

Dining (Mumbai Suburbs) – Times Food & Nightlife Awards 2025

5.	 A.	 Sales & Marketing alliances

	 The Company continues to enjoy the following marketing 

arrangement through Brookfield for which the Company pays a 

fee to Brookfield based on the marketing expenses:

	 a.	 Global Hotel Alliance

	 Global Hotel Alliance is today the world’s largest alliance of 

independent luxury hotel brands. Based on the airline alliance 

model, the alliance currently has more than 30 member brands, all 

with their own unique character, encompassing over 550 upscale 

and luxury hotels, spread across 75 countries. GHA uses a shared 

technology platform to operate an award winning, multi- brand 

loyalty program, DISCOVERY. Currently the total DISCOVERY 

membership base has crossed 14 million worldwide members. 

DISCOVERY is about making your stay and travel unforgettable. 

Discovery program believes that rewarding members with 

authentic, memorable experiences is much more valuable than 

collecting points. With this in mind, DISCOVERY instead rewards 

travelers with Local Experiences. Designed by our local experts, 

these specially curated experiences offer members the access 

to a large selection of exclusive activities which are not easily 

available to the general public.

	 b.	 Preferred Hotels & Resorts

	 The Preferred Hotels & Resorts represents over 850 independent 

and distinctive hotels, resorts & residences across 85 countries. 

Through its five global collections – Legend, LVX, Lifestyle, 

Connect, and Preferred Residences– Preferred Hotels & Resorts 

connects discerning travelers to the singular luxury hospitality 
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experience that meets their needs and life and style preferences 

for each occasion. Preferred Hotels & Resorts brings strategic 

advantage through its Global Sales team comprising of 80 sales 

associates covering Corporate, Group & Leisure segments in 30 

global offices.

B.	 Sales, Marketing and PR Representations

	 The Company continues to avail the services of Sales 

representation companies across key geographies in the world 

through Preferred Hotels & Resorts. This company is assigned 

the responsibility to engage with the major tour operators and 

retail agencies in their respective source markets.

6.	 Opportunities, Threats, Risks and Concerns

	 The hotel business is dependent on global and domestic 

economic conditions. Further, your Company has the risk of heavy 

dependence on only one Hotel at Mumbai. There is also the risk 

of dependence mainly on higher luxury segment. However, the 

Company’s hotel enjoys premium over many other competitors 

due to its location and service reputation.

7.	 Risk Management-Leveraging our experience

	 Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business 

process. The Company has a robust risk management framework 

to identify, assess, and mitigate potential threats. Risks are 

continuously monitored and effectively controlled through 

ongoing efforts to conceive and implement mitigation strategies.

	 Pertinent policies and methods are being reviewed and modified 

to mitigate such risks.

	 The Company has taken several measures to protect the safety 

and security of its customers. In addition to the physical security 

measures, the Company has also taken sufficient insurance 

cover to meet the financial obligations which may arise from any 

untoward incidents.

	 To counter the risk of competition, your Company focuses on 

providing exceptional services consistently.

	 The deal with litigation matters of the Company which are crucial 

in nature more particularly described in Para 7 of Directors Report, 

the Company has engaged reputed legal practitioners on behalf 

of the Company. 

8.	 Efficient Internal Control systems

	 The Company has a well-structured internal audit function. Under 

the guidance and supervision of an independent Audit Committee, 

independent and reputed firm of Chartered Accountants conduct 

regular audits and review adherence to control systems and 

procedures.

	 The effectiveness of internal controls is reviewed through the 

internal audit process.

	 The focus of these reviews is as follows:

	 -	 Identification of weaknesses and areas of improvement

	 -	 Compliance with defined policies and processes

	 -	 Safeguarding of tangible and intangible assets

	 -	 Management of business and operational risks

	 -	 Compliance with applicable statutes

	 The Audit Committee of the Board oversees the adequacy of 

the internal control environment through regular reviews of the 

audit findings and monitoring implementation of internal audit 

recommendations.

9.	 Human resources and industrial relations

	 A focused attention on attracting the best talent available in the 

market, which could help the Company to drive a culture oriented 

towards high performance and excellence. The Company has 

implemented an effective customer feedback system which is 

yielding good results. This platform helps the team to align all its 

efforts in delivering relevant high-quality services to the guests 

whilst seeking to constantly improve on standards. Industrial 

relations throughout the year were cordial. As on 31st March, 

2025, the total manpower was 829 (including contract labour and 

fixed term contractors).

10.	 Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Initiatives

	 Your Company recognizes the need to minimise the adverse 

impact of its operations, on the environment. The Company 

maintains large gardens in and around its hotel. The Company has 

made substantial investments for improving energy efficiencies 

and fresh and waste water management.

11.	 Health and Safety Management System

	 Health and Safety Management System in the Company aims to 

reduce, eliminate or control workplace hazards and associated 

risks of illness or injuries to the employees, customers and 

contractors who might be affected by the Company’s activities.

	 Your Company is committed to ensure healthy and safe working 

environment for all concerned and to improve the Health 

and Safety parameters. Under a well-designed program, the 

Company:

a.	 complies with the requirements of all relevant statutory, regulatory 

and other provisions.

b.	 Provides and maintains safe & healthy work place through 

operational procedures, safe systems and methods of work.

c.	 Provides sufficient information, instruction, training and 

supervision to enable all employees to identify, minimize and 

manage hazards and to contribute positively to safety at work.
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d.	 Organizes audits and mock drills on site to ensure that 

operations are in compliance with health and safety management 

requirements and for emergency preparedness.

e.	 ensures that appropriate resources are available to fully implement 

health and safety policy and continuously review the policy’s 

relevance with respect to legal and business development.

f.	 seeks continuous occupational health and safety improvements 

through the establishment of safety management objectives, 

targets and programs.

12.	 Expansion / upgradation Plans

	 A proposal for setting up a new luxury resort and hotel at Vellimon 

(Asthamudi Lake) near Kollam, Kerala had been approved by the 

Board of the Company on 12th February, 2024. The new resort 

and hotel will be constructed on land admeasuring approximately 

12.92 acres equivalent to 52,285.39 sq. mts. taken on lease for 

a period of 30 years from Rockfort Estate Developers Private 

Limited, a promoter Group Company at Vellimon (Asthamudi 

Lake) near Kollam, Kerala. Preliminary work is going on like 

boundary wall construction and Panchayat approval etc.

13.	 Analysis / highlights of operating performance, financial 
results and Balance Sheet

	 The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as 

amended from time to time.

	 The financial statement of your Company forms part of this annual 

report and the analysis / highlights are given below:

	 At present, the Company operates only one hotel “The Leela, 

Mumbai” with 394 guest rooms.

	 Revenue:

	 The revenue from operations was ̀  20,331.09 lakhs in FY 2024-25 

against ` 19,909.45 lakhs in FY 2023-24.

	 Revenue from Food & Beverages increased by 5.05 %.

	 Room Revenue increased by 5.65 % mainly due to increase in 

room rates.

	 Other income was ̀  1,509.19 lakhs in FY 2024-25 as compared to 

` 980.20 lakhs in FY 2023-24.

	 Total revenue was ` 21,840.28 lakhs in FY 2024-25 against  

` 20,889.65 lakhs in FY 2023-24.

	 Operating Expenses:

	 Food & Beverages consumption increased by 2.64 % as 

compared to last year.

	 Employee Benefit expenses, including contract employee cost 

increased by 8.69 % as compared to last year.

	 Finance costs and interest liability:

	 Finance cost was ` 222.62 lakhs as compared to ` 240.15 lakhs 

in the previous year.

	 Depreciation and Amortization:

	 Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year was  

` 1,564.42 lakhs as against ` 1,436.23 lakhs in previous year.

	 Other expenses:

	 Other expenses for the year amounted to ` 10,090.55 lakhs as 

against ` 9,835.56 lakhs in the previous year.

	 Profit/ (Loss) after Tax:

	 The Company earned a profit of ` 2,612.49 lakhs during the  

FY 2024-25 as against a profit of ` 2,380.29 lakhs during the 

previous year.

	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

	 The net Property, Plant, Equipment, capital work in progress, 

intangible assets, investment property and assets held for sale as 

on 31st March, 2025 was ` 30,646.08 lakhs as against ` 29,537.79 

lakhs as on the last day of the previous year.

	 Secured and Unsecured Loans:

	 The details of the Company’s debts (in `  lakhs) are as follows:

Particulars 31.3.2025 31.3.2024

Secured Loans:

Long Term Debt 499.99 143.86

Short Term Debt including 
current maturities of Long Term 
Debt

1,318.89 1,015.56

Interest accrued on borrowings 0.93 0.96

Total 1,819.81 1,160.38

	 Share Capital:

	 The share capital of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 was  

` 131,85,19,798/- divided into 65,92,59,899 Equity Shares of the 

face value ` 2/- each, same as in the previous year.

	 Reserves:

	 In view of previous years’ losses, Company has decided to retain 

the earnings to adjust with the previous years’ losses, therefore, 

the Company decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves 

for the year under review.
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	 Dividend:

	 In view of previous year’s losses and Company’s liabilities 

towards disputes with Airport Authority of India, Company 

decided to retain the earnings to adjust with the previous 

years’ losses, hence do not recommend any dividend for the  

FY 2024-25.

	 Net worth:

	 The details of Company’s net worth (in ` lakhs) are as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Share Capital 13,185.20 13,185.20

Free Reserves 13,195.39 13,195.39

Securities Premium Account 67,772.08 67,772.08

Total 94,152.67 94,152.67

Less:

Accumulated Loss 65,159.72 68,054.02

Intangible Assets / Intangible 
Assets under development

23.04 21.18

Total 65,182.76 68,075.20

Net worth 28,969.91 26,077.47

	 Financial Ratios and Return on Net-worth:

	 Key financial ratios and their definitions are given below:

Sr.
No.

Particulars  Year ended                                            
31st March, 

2025 

 Year ended                      
31st March, 

2024
1 Current Ratio (in times) 1.78 1.8

2 Debt-Equity Ratio (in 
times)

0.088 0.074

3 Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio (in times)

16.58 15.31

4 Return on Equity Ratio 
(in %)

5.73% 5.52%

5 Inventory turnover ratio (a) 3.66 4.36

6 Trade Receivables turnover 
ratio (in days)

14.87 14.11

7 Trade payables turnover 
ratio (in days)

1.32 1.51

8 Net capital turnover ratio 
(in times)

2.01 2.27

9 Net profit ratio (in %) 11.96% 11.39%

10 Return on Capital 
employed (in %)

6.06% 5.91%

11 Return on investment (in 
%)

0.00% 0.00%

12 Interest Service Coverage 
Ratio (in times)

177.45 109.43

13 Operating profit margin 
(in %)

13.64% 14.42%

	 a)	 Interest Service Coverage Ratio equals to Profit before tax 

added by interest on borrowings, Provision for impairment 

of assets and Depreciation and Amortization expenses 

divided by Interest on borrowings.

	 b)	 Operating profit margin equals Profit / (Loss) before 

depreciation and amortisation expenses, Interest, Tax and 

Exceptional items less Other Income divided by Revenue 

from operations.

	 c)	 The definitions of other ratios are given in Note 37.14 of the 

Notes to Financial Statements.

14.	 Cautionary Statement

	 Statements made in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Report describing the Company’s objectives, projections, 
estimates, predictions and expectations may be ‘forward-looking 
statements’, within the meaning of applicable securities laws and 
regulations. As “forward-looking statements” are based on certain 
assumptions and expectations of future events over which the 
Company exercises no control, the Company cannot guarantee 
their accuracy nor can it warrant that the same will be realized 
by the Company. The Company assumes no responsibility to 
publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements 
on the basis of any subsequent developments or events or for 
any loss any investor may incur based on the “forward-looking 
statements”.
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A report on compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as 

prescribed by SEBI in Chapter IV read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given 

below:

1.	 Company’s Philosophy

	 The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is 

founded upon a rich legacy of fair, ethical, accountable and 

transparent governance practices. Maintaining high standards 

of Corporate Governance has been fundamental to the 

business of your Company since its inception. The Company 

has also implemented several best Corporate Governance 

practices as prevalent globally. The Company has committed 

itself to the philosophy of good Corporate Governance in all 

its dealings, utmost integrity in its conduct and in compliance 

with the highest standards of corporate values and ethics. The 

Company considers Corporate Governance as a continuous 

journey to provide a congenial environment to harmonise the 

goals of maximizing the stakeholders’ value and maintaining a 

customer centric focus in all its dealings with the outside world, 

besides keeping important segments of the society adequately 

informed. The Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior 

Management adopted by the Board of Directors in terms of 

Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has further enhanced the 

standards of Corporate Governance in the Company.

2.	 Board of Directors

2.1	 Size and Composition of the Board

	 As on 31st March, 2025 the Company’s Board of Directors 

consisted of Nine Directors out of which two were Executive 

Directors, two were Non-Executive Directors and five were 

Independent Directors, among them the Company has four 

women directors, out of which two are Independent Director.

	 The composition of the Board and category of directors as on  

31st March, 2025 is as follows:

Name of 
Directors

Category

 Mr. Vivek Nair Promoter, Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Dinesh 
Nair

Promoter, Co-Chairman & Managing Director

Mrs.Salini 
Madhu Nair

Promoter, Non-Executive Non- Independent 
Director

Ms. Amruda 
Nair

Promoter, Non-Executive Non- Independent 
Director

Mr. Ashok 
Rajani

Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Vinay H. 
Kapadia 

Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Shereveer 
Vakil

Non-Executive Independent Director

Ms. Saija Nair Non-Executive Independent Director

Ms. Niranjana 
Unnikrishnan

Non-Executive Independent Director

2.2	 Board Meetings and Attendance

	 During the financial year 2024-25 the Board of Directors met four 

times i.e. on 24th May, 2024, 9th August, 2024, 12th November, 

2024 and 11th February, 2025. The intervening gap between two 

Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulations 17 of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. Meetings were scheduled well in advance and 

the Notice, detailed Board agenda, management reports and 

other explanatory Board notes were circulated well in advance 

and in exceptional cases tabled at the meeting to all the Board 

members to enable them to take informed decisions. 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	 Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings, at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the number of other public limited 

companies and Committees where they are Directors / Members are tabulated below:

Name Attendance at Board 
Meetings

Attendance 
at AGM 

held on 25th 
September,

2024

No. of 
Directorships 

in
companies 
as on 31st 

March, 2025 
(including the 
Company)*

No. of Committee positions 
held in listed companies 

(including the Company)**

No. of 
Shares and 
convertible 
instruments 

held by 
Directors

Name of other 
Listed Company (s) 

in which Director 
holds

Directorship- 
Category of 

Director

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
held during 
the tenure 

of the 
Director in 

2024-25

No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended 

during the 
financial 

year 2024-25

Chairman of 
Committees

Member of 
Committees

Mr. Vivek Nair 4 3 YES 4 0 0 5,14,960 -

Mr. Dinesh 
Nair 

4 3 YES 6 0 0 4,81,680 -
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Name Attendance at Board 
Meetings

Attendance 
at AGM 

held on 25th 
September,

2024

No. of 
Directorships 

in
companies 
as on 31st 

March, 2025 
(including the 
Company)*

No. of Committee positions 
held in listed companies 

(including the Company)**

No. of 
Shares and 
convertible 
instruments 

held by 
Directors

Name of other 
Listed Company (s) 

in which Director 
holds

Directorship- 
Category of 

Director

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
held during 
the tenure 

of the 
Director in 

2024-25

No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended 

during the 
financial 

year 2024-25

Chairman of 
Committees

Member of 
Committees

Mrs. Salini 
Madhu Nair

4 3 YES 14 0 0 360 -

Ms. Amruda 
Nair

4 3 YES 5 0 2 3,00,000 -

Ms. 
Niranjana 
Unnikrishnan

4 4 YES 1 1 1 0 -

Mr. Vinay H. 
Kapadia

4 4 YES 1 1 1 5,000 -

Ms. Saija 
Nair

4 4 YES 3 0 2 0 -

Mr. Ashok 
Rajani

4 4 YES 6 0 2 0 -

Mr. 
Shereveer 
Vakil 

4 4 YES 1 0 2 0 -

	 *	 It covers private, public and listed Companies.

	 **	 “Committees” considered for this purpose are those specified in Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, i.e. Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

2.3	 Inter-se relationships among directors

	 Mr. Vivek Nair, Mr. Dinesh Nair, Mrs. Salini Madhu Nair and Ms. Amruda Nair are relatives. None of any other Director is related.

2.4	 Familiarization Program for Independent Directors

	 The Company has familiarized the Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities, code of conduct in the 

Company, nature of industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc. The details of the familiarization programs 

imparted to the independent directors is available on the website of the Company at https://www.hlvltd.com/assets/investors_relations/

Familiarisation%20Programme.pdf .

2.5	 Skills / expertise / competence of the Board of Directors

	 The Company’s Board of Directors has identified the following skills / expertise /competencies to function and discharge their responsibilities 

effectively:

	 -	 Industry knowledge;

	 -	 Accounts and Finance;

	 -	 Corporate Governance;

	 -	 Legal and compliance;

	 -	 Strategic expertise;

	 -	 Marketing; and

	 -	 General Management.
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Name of Director Skill/ Expertise/ Competencies
Industry 

knowledge
Accounts 

and Finance
Corporate 

Governance
Legal and 

compliance
Strategic 
expertise

Marketing General 
Management

Mr. Vivek Nair √ √ √ - √ √ √

Mr. Dinesh Nair √ √ √ - √ √ √

Mrs. Salini Madhu Nair √ - - - √ √ √

Ms. Amruda Nair √ √ √ - √ √ √

Mr. Ashok Rajani √ √ √ - √ - √

Ms. Saija Nair √ √ √ - - √ √

Mr. Shereveer Vakil √ - √ - √ √ √

Ms. Niranjana Unnikrishnan - √ √ √ √ - √

Mr. Vinay Kapadia √ √ √ √ √ - √

	 The Directors possess experience and knowledge in diverse fields, such as hoteliering, marketing, business development, banking, finance, 

legal, administration, corporate governance, etc. They collectively also display integrity, interpersonal skills, interest in the organisation, its 

business and the people and take active participation at deliberations in the meeting.

2.6	  Disclosures and confirmations:

	 ●	 None of the Directors of the Company is serving as Director in not more than seven listed entities. None of the Executive Directors of 

the Company are Independent Directors of more than three listed entities.

	 ● 	 None of the Independent Directors of the Company are Independent Directors of more than seven listed entities.

	 ● 	 None of the Directors of the Board serves as member of more than ten Committees, nor is Chairman of more than five committees of 

Board across all listed entities, in which he/she is a Director.

	 ● 	 Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public companies as on 31st March, 2025, have been made by the 

Directors.

	 ● 	 In the opinion of the Board, all Independent Directors of the Company are persons of integrity and possess relevant experience and do 

not hold more than 2% shareholding/ voting power in the Company. They are not related to any of the promoters, Directors, holding, 

subsidiary or associate companies and fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 

Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management.

	 ● 	 The Company has received necessary declaration from each of the Independent Directors, under Section 149(7) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, that he / she meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 

of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

	 ● 	 All the Independent Directors have been appointed for a period of five years and are not liable to retire by rotation. The terms and 

conditions of their appointment have been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.hlvltd.com/investor_relation.html .

	 ● 	 During the year, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 11th February, 2025, which was attended 

by all the Independent Directors.

3.	 Audit Committee

	 The Audit Committee of the Board is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including the scope and terms of reference.

	 The powers and role of the Audit Committee are also in consonance with Regulation 18 and Part C of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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3.1	 Composition:

	 As on 31st March, 2025, the Committee had six Members 
comprising of five Independent Directors and one Non- Executive 
Director. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent 
Director. The members of Committee are financially literate 
and have experience in banking, finance, accounting and legal 
matters.

	 The Chairman & Managing Director, Co-Chairman & Managing 
Director and Chief Financial Officer were permanent invitees for 
the meetings during FY 2024-25. The Statutory Auditors and 
Internal Auditors also attended the meetings. The Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

	 The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last 
Annual General Meeting held on 25th September, 2024. During 
the year under review, the Committee met four times i.e. on  
24th May, 2024, 09th August, 2024, 12th November, 2024 and  
11th February, 2025. The Committee generally meets on the day of 
the Board meeting, except when otherwise considered expedient. 

3.2	 Committee meetings and attendance of the members

	 The particulars of members of the Committee and the details of 

meetings attended by its members during the FY 2024-25 are as 

follows:

Name of the 
Director

Designation Category of 
Directorship

No. of Meetings 
during the year

Held Attended

Ms. Niranjana 
Unnikrishnan

Chairman Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

4 4

Ms. Saija Nair Member Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

4 4

Ms. Amruda 
Nair

Member Non 
Executive 
Director

4 3

Mr. Ashok 
Rajani

Member Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

4 4

Mr. Vinay H. 
Kapadia 

Member Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

4 4

Mr. Shereveer 
Vakil 

 Member Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

4 4

3.3	 Role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee

	 The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter-alia, 

include the following:

3.3.1	 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the 

disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial 

statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

3.3.2	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of 

appointment of auditors of the Company;

3.3.3	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services 

rendered by the statutory auditors;

3.3.4	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements 

and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the board for 

approval, with particular reference to:

	 •	 matters required to be included in the director’s 
responsibility statement to be included in the board’s 
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 
134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

	 •	 changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and 
reasons for the same;

	 •	 major accounting entries involving estimates based on the 
exercise of judgment by management;

	 •	 significant adjustments made in the financial statements 
arising out of audit findings;

	 •	 compliance with listing and other legal requirements 
relating to financial statements;

	 •	 disclosure of any related party transactions;

	 •	 modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

3.3.5	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial 

statements before submission to the board for approval;

3.3.6	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / 

application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 

issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized 

for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / 

prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 

agency, monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights 

issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, and 

making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up 

steps in this matter;

3.3.7	 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and 

performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

3.3.8	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the 

Company with related parties;
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3.3.9	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

3.3.10	Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it 

is necessary;

3.3.11	Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management 

systems;

3.3.12	Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and 

internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

3.3.13	Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, 

including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 

and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting 

structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

3.3.14	Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and 

follow up thereon;

3.3.15	Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the 

internal auditors in to matters where there is suspected fraud or 

irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material 

nature and reporting the matter to the board;

3.3.16	Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, 

about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

3.3.17	To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to 

the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non- 

payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

3.3.18	To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

3.3.19	Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing 

the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the 

candidate;

3.3.20	Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of 

reference of the audit committee;

3.3.21	Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/ 

investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding 

rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, 

whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / 

investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this 

provision;

3.3.22	Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of 

schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the 

Company and its shareholders.

The audit committee also reviews the following information:

(1)	 Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and 

results of operations;

(2)	 Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued 

by the statutory auditors;

(3)	 Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

(4)	 Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief 

internal auditor;

(5)	 Statement of deviations:

	 a.	 quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of 

monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock 

exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32 (1);

	 b.	 annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice in 

terms of Regulation 32 (7).

The Audit Committee also looks into the matters that are specifically 

referred to it by the Board of Directors besides looking into the mandatory 

requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013.

4	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is constituted in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

4.1	 Composition:

	 As on 31st March, 2025 the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee had six Members consisting of five Independent 

Directors and one Non Executive Director. The Chairman of the 

Committee is a Non Executive, Independent Director. During the 

year under review, the Committee met two times, i.e. on 24th May, 

2024 and 11th February, 2025. The Chairman of the Committee 

was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on  

25th September, 2024. The Company Secretary acts as the 

Secretary to the Committee.

4.2	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings and 

Attendance

	 The particulars of members of the Committee and their attendance 

during the FY 2024-25 are as follows:

Name of the 
Director

Designation Category of 
Directorship

No. of Meetings 
during the year

Held Attended

Mr. Ashok 
Rajani

Chairman Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 2

Ms. Saija Nair Member Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 2
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Name of the 
Director

Designation Category of 
Directorship

No. of Meetings 
during the year

Held Attended

Ms. Amruda 
Nair

Member Non- 
Executive 
Director

2 1

Ms. Niranjana 
Unnikrishnan 

Member Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. Vinay H. 
Kapadia 

Member Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. Shereveer 
Vakil 

Member Non 
Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 2

4.3	 Role and terms of reference of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee

	 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee’s role and terms 

of reference are in accordance with the provisions of Section 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 and Part D 

of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 The role and terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia include 
the following:

4.3.1	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 

attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the 

board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the 

directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

4.3.2	 For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, 

knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of 

such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities 

required of an independent director. The person recommended to 

the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have 

the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of 

identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

	 a.	 use the services of an external agencies, if required;

	 b.	 consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, 
having due regard to diversity; and

	 c.	 consider the time commitments of the candidates.

4.3.3	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of 

independent directors and the board of directors;

4.3.4	 Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

4.3.5	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and 

who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with 

the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors 

their appointment and removal;

4.3.6	 Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the 

independent director, on the basis of the report of performance 

evaluation of independent directors;

4.3.7	 Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, 

payable to senior management.

4.4.	 Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors

	 Based on the Policy of Performance Evaluation of Board, 

approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

the Board, the performance evaluation criteria for independent 

directors are as follows:

	 Role and Accountability

	 a.	 Exercising Independent judgement / view on potential 
conflict of management, board members and the promoters 
and safeguarding interests of minority shareholders

	 b.	 Understanding of nature and role of Independent Directors’ 
position

	 c.	 Offer constructive contribution to the Board’s discussions 
and deliberations based on his / her expertise and domain 
knowledge

	 Objectivity

	 a.	 Non-partisan appraisal of issues

	 b.	 Own recommendations given professionally without 
tending to majority or popular views

	 Personal Attributes

	 a.	 Commitment to role and fiduciary responsibilities as a 
Board member.

	 b.	 Attendance at the Meetings and preparedness for the 

meetings.

5.	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

	 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been constituted 

in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 and Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, including the scope, role and terms of reference.

5.1	 Composition:

	 As on 31st March 2025, the Committee comprises of six members, 

five Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director. The 

Chairman of the Committee is a Non Executive, Independent 

Director. During the year under review, the Committee met once 
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on 24th May, 2024. The Chairperson of the Committee was present 

at the last Annual General Meeting held on 25th September, 2024. 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

5.2	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meetings and   

Attendance

	 The particulars of members and the meetings attended by the 

members during the FY 2024-25 are given below:

Name of the 
Director

Designation Category of 
Directorship

No. of Meetings 
during the year

Held Attended

Mr. Vinay H. 
Kapadia 

Chairman Non Executive, 
Independent 
Director

1 1

Ms. Saija Nair Member Non Executive, 
Independent 
Director

1 1

Ms. Amruda Nair Member Non Executive 
Director

1 1

Mr. Ashok Rajani Member Non Executive, 
Independent 
Director

1 1

Ms. Niranjana 
Unnikrishnan 

Member Non Executive, 
Independent 
Director

1 1

Mr. Shereveer 
Vakil 

Member Non Executive, 
Independent 
Director

1 1

	 The Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer and has 

been regularly interacting with the Registrar & Share Transfer 

Agents (RTA), to ensure that the complaints / grievances of the 

shareholders / investors are attended to without delay and where 

deemed expedient, the complaints are referred to the Chairman 

of the Committee or discussed at its meetings.

5.3	 Role and terms of reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee

	 The role and terms of the committee inter-alia include the 
following:

5.3.1	 Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company 

including complaints related to transfer/ transmission of shares, 

non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 

issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc;

5.3.2	 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by 

shareholders;

5.3.3	 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the 

Company in respect of various services being rendered by the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

5.3.4	 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the 

Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and 

ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/ annual reports/ 

statutory notices by the shareholders of the company; 

5.3.5	 Resolving grievances of debenture holders related to creation of 

charge, payment of interest/principal, maintenance of security 

cover and any other covenants;

5.4	 Number of Shareholders’ complaints received and redressed 

during the year 2024-25

Opening 
Balance

Received 
during the 

year 2024-25

Resolved 
during the 

year 2024-25

Closing 
Balance

0 20 20 0

	 The above complaints were related to dematerialization of share 

and IEPF matters. None of the Complaints were pending for a 

period exceeding 30 days.

	 During the year, the Registrar processed 50 requests 
for dematerialization of 49,185 shares. No request for 
rematerialization was received. The Company did not receive 
any request for transfer of shares. As such, there were no valid 
requests pending for share transfers at the end of the year.

6.	 Risk Management Committee

	 The Board of Directors constituted the Risk Management 
Committee in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 21 
and Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including the 
scope, role, responsibilities and terms of reference.

6.1	 Composition:

	 As on 31st March 2025, the Committee had six members 
comprising of four Independent Directors, one Non-Executive 
Director and one Senior Executive of the Company. The Chairman 
& Managing Director and Co-Chairman & Managing Director 
were permanent invitees for the meetings during FY 2024-25. The 
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Risk Management 
Committee. During the year under review, the Committee met two 
times, i.e. on 9th August, 2024 and 11th February, 2025.

6.2	 Committee meetings and attendance of the Members

	 The particulars of members of Risk Management Committee 
and the meetings held and attended by the members during the  

FY 2024-25 are given below:

Name of the 
Director / Senior 
Executive

Designation Category of 
Directorship

No. of Meetings 
during the year

Held Attended

Ms. Niranjana 
Unnikrishnan 

Chairman Non Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. Ashok 
Rajani

Member Non Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 2
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Ms. Amruda 
Nair

Member Non Executive 
Director

2 1

Mr. Vinay H. 
Kapadia

Member Non Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. Shereveer 
Vakil 

Member Non Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. Umesh 
Dombe

Member Chief Financial 
Officer

2 2

6.3	 Role and terms of reference of Risk Management Committee

	 The role of the committee, inter alia, includes the following:

6.3.1	 To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall 

include:

	 (a)	 A framework for identification of internal and external risks 
specifically faced by the Company, in particular including 
financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, 
ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or any 
other risk as may be determined by the Committee.

	 (b)	 Measures for risk mitigation including systems and 
processes for internal control of identified risks.

	 (c)	 Business continuity plan.

6.3.2	 To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems 

are in place to monitor and evaluate risks associated with the 

business of the Company;

6.3.3	 To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management 

policy, including evaluating the adequacy of risk management 

systems;

6.3.4	 To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once 

in two years, including by considering the changing industry 

dynamics and evolving complexity;

6.3.5	 To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and 

content of its discussions, recommendations and actions to be 

taken;

6.3.6	 The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the 

Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review by the Risk 

Management Committee.

7.	 Particulars of Senior Management including changes therein 

since the close of the previous financial year.

Sr. No. Name of the Person Designation

1. Mr. Umesh Dombe Chief Financial Officer

2. Mr. Sameer Sud General Manager

3. Ms. Savitri Yadav Company Secretary

	 There has been no changes since the close of the previous 

financial year.

8	 Remuneration of Directors:

8.1      Nomination, Appointment and Remuneration Policy

	 In terms of the provisions of Section 178 (3) of the Act and 

Regulation 19(4) read with Part D of Schedule II and any 

other applicable regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board, 

upon the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (NRC), has approved the Nomination, Appointment 

and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. This Policy 

provides: (i) Criteria for determining qualifications, positive 

attributes and independence of a director, (ii) Policy on Diversity 

of Board of Directors, (iii) Policy on Remuneration of the Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the 

Company and (iv) Succession Plan for Board of Directors and 

Senior Management.

•	 Criteria for determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes & 
Independence of Director are as follows:

	 Qualifications of Independent Director

	 An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, 
experience and knowledge in one or more fields of management, 
finance, law, sales, marketing, administration, corporate 
governance, operations or other disciplines related to the 
Company’s business.

	 Positive attributes of Independent Directors

	 An independent director shall be a person of integrity, who 
possesses relevant expertise and experience and who shall 
uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively 
and constructively; exercise his responsibilities in a bona-fide 
manner in the interests of the Company; devote sufficient time 
and attention to his / her professional obligations for informed 
and balanced decision-making; and assist the Company in 
implementing the best corporate governance practices.

	 Independence of Independent Directors

	 An Independent director should meet the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 concerning independence of directors.

•	 Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and Senior Management

	 The remuneration to the Board of Directors of the Company is 

broadly governed by the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 

and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, a 

director or manager may be paid remuneration either by way of 

a monthly payment or at a specified percentage of the net profits 

of the company (Commission) or partly by one way and partly 

by the other. In the event of losses or inadequacy of profits, the 
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remuneration shall be within the ceilings applicable under the 

Companies Act, 2013 or with the approval of the shareholders and 

Central Government, if any, for payment of higher remuneration.

8.1.1	 Remuneration of Executive/Managing Directors

	 Executive/Managing Directors are eligible to receive a fixed 
remuneration on a monthly basis. The fixed remuneration is 
determined based on market standards and the Company’s 
specific requirements. Apart from the fixed remuneration, the 
Executive/Managing Directors are also eligible for commission 
linked to profit of the Company as may be decided by Board 
on the recommendation of NRC, subject to adequacy of profits 
and approval of the shareholders. They are also eligible for 
perquisites and allowances, retiral benefits (like Provident Fund 
/ Gratuity / Superannuation / Leave encashment, etc.) and other 
benefits like medical policy, car, telephone, etc. as per policy 
of the Company. The Board of Directors on recommendation 
of NRC shall evaluate remuneration of Executive /Managing 
Directors annually based on the performance of the Company, 
the prevailing market trends and the individual performance. The 
Executive/Managing Directors shall not be entitled to any sitting 
fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof. 
The remuneration payable to the Executive/Managing Directors 
shall be comparable with the remuneration paid to the Executive/ 
Managing Directors of other companies which are similar to the 
Company in terms of nature of business, size and complexity.

8.1.2	 Remuneration of non-executive directors

	 The Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, allow a Company 
to pay remuneration including sitting fees to its Non-Executive 
Directors.

	 The Non-Executive and Independent Directors are entitled 
to receive sitting fee for attending meetings of the Board or 
Committees thereof or any other meeting within the limits 
prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 and any other fixed 
remuneration or commission as may be recommended by NRC 
and approved by the Board of Directors and Shareholders within 
the limits as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

	 Non-Executive Directors are paid a sitting fee of ̀  30,000 for every 
meeting of the board or committee thereof attended by them as 
member.

	 The Board has the flexibility to enhance the sitting fees up to the 
maximum limit allowed by the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 

thereunder.

	 Payment of any other fixed remuneration or commission to each 

Non-Executive Director shall be at the discretion of the Board, 

based on the following criteria:

	 •	 Performance of the Company during the particular 

Financial Year

	 •	 Attendance at the meetings of the Board and Committees

	 •	 Reviewing the Industry practices and bench marks

	 •	 Adherence to Corporate Governance norms during the 

discussions and proceedings of the Board / Committees

	 •	 Timely guidance to the Board on important policy matters 

of the Company

	 •	 Extra time that may be devoted and contributions made by 

the Non-Executive Directors

	 Independent Directors are not entitled for any stock options.

	 Non-Executive Directors may also be paid/reimbursed such sums 

either as fixed allowance and /or actual as fair compensation for 

travel, boarding and lodging and incidental and /or actual out of 

pocket expenses incurred by such member for attending Board/ 

Committee Meetings.

8.1.3	 Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 

Management

	 Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel 

are eligible to receive a fixed remuneration on a monthly basis. 

The aim of providing fixed remuneration is to attract and retain 

qualified and talented professionals. The fixed remuneration 

is determined based on market standards and the Company’s 

specific requirements. Remuneration to Key Managerial 

Personnel and Senior Management Personnel, who are members 

of the core management team, excluding the Board of Directors, 

comprising of all members of management one level below the 

Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director/ whole time Director/ 

Manager (including Chief Executive Officer/Manager, in case they 

are not part of the Board) specifically including the functional 

heads, by whatever name called and the persons identified and 

designated as key managerial personnel, other than the board 

of directors, are determined / reviewed / and recommended to 

the Board by NRC considering short and long term performance 

objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its 

goals and the market trends.

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is 

available on the website of Company at https://www.hlvltd.com/

assets/investors_relations/Nomination,%20Appointment%20

and%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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8.2	 Disclosures with respect to remuneration of Directors during 

the FY 2024-25

	 Details of the Remuneration paid to Managing Directors during 

the FY 2024-25 are given hereunder:

Name Salary & 
Allowances (`)

Perquisites Other 
benefits

Total (`)

Mr. Vivek 
Nair, 
Chairman & 
Managing 
Director

1,20,00,000/- - - 1,20,00,000/-

Mr. Dinesh 
Nair, Co-
Chairman & 
Managing 
Director

1,20,00,000/- - - 1,20,00,000/-

	 Services of the Managing Directors may be terminated by either 

party, giving the other party six months’ notice or the Company 

paying six months’ salary in lieu thereof. There is no separate 

provision for payment of severance pay.

9.	 General Body Meetings and Postal Ballot

	 Location, date and time of the Annual General Meetings (AGM) for the last 3 years and Postal Ballot conducted last year are as 
follows:

9.1	 General Body Meetings

Financial Year General Meeting Date / Time Location Special Resolutions passed
2023-24 43rd AGM 25.09.2024 

at 11:00 a.m.
Through video conferencing at the 
Registered Office of the Company

NIL

2022-23 42nd AGM 03.08.2023

at 3.00 p.m.

Through video conferencing at the 
Registered Office of the Company

1.	 Appointment of Ms. Niranjana 
Unnikrishnan as an Independent 
Director

2.	 Re-appointment of Ms. Saija 
Ramchandran Nair as an Independent 
Director

3.	 Change in place of keeping registers 
and records of the Company

2021-22 41st AGM 24.08.2022

at 11.00 a.m.

Through video conferencing at the 
Registered Office of the Company

NIL

	 All the resolutions as set out in the notices were passed unanimously / by requisite majority by the Members of the Company. 

9.2	 Postal Ballot

	 During the FY 2024-25, no resolution was put to vote through postal ballot. No Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through Postal 

Ballot as on the date of this Annual Report. 

10	 Means of Communication

	 The Company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report, General Meeting, Newspapers and the Company’s web-site. 

10.1	 Website: The Company has a functional website. Information, latest updates and announcements made by the Company can be accessed 

at Company’s website: https:// www.hlvltd.com/investor_relation.html . It also includes inter-alia the following:

	 •	 Contact details for investors

	 •	 Investor service forms and instructions

	 •	 Details of Board of Directors and their committees

	 The details of sitting fees paid to Non-Executive Directors during 

the financial year 2024-25 are given below:

Name of the Non-Executive 
Directors

Sitting Fees Paid (` )

Mrs. Salini Madhu Nair 90,000

Ms. Amruda Nair 2,70,000

Ms. Saija Nair 3,60,000

Ms. Niranjana Unnikrishnan 4,20,000

Mr. Ashok Rajani 4,20,000

Mr. Shereveer Vakil 4,20,000

Mr. Vinay H. Kapadia 4,20,000

	 Notes:

	 a.	 The Company did not pay any amount to Directors by way 

of commission.

	 b.	 The Company has not issued any stock options to its 

Directors.
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	 •	 General Meeting / Postal Ballot Notices

	 •	 General Meeting / Postal Ballot Voting Results

	 •	 Annual Reports 

	 •	 Quarterly / Half-Yearly / Annual Financial Results

	 •	 Quarterly Shareholding Pattern

	 •	 Quarterly Corporate Governance Report / Integrated Filing 
Governance

	 •	 News Releases

	 •	 Company Policies

	 •	 Stock Exchange Intimations and other Statutory filings 

10.2	 Financial Results: The financial Results of the Company 
are published in the prescribed proforma within 48 hours of 
the conclusion of the meeting of the Board in which they are 
considered, at least in one English newspaper circulating in the 
whole or substantially the whole of India and in one Vernacular 
newspaper of the State of Maharashtra where the Registered 
Office of the Company is situated. The Company regularly 
publishes its financial results in Free Press Journal and Navshakti.

10.3	 Stock Exchange Intimations: All Price Sensitive information 
and matters that are material to shareholders are disclosed to 
respective Stock Exchanges where the securities of the company 
are listed i.e. BSE and NSE. All submissions to the Exchanges 
including Shareholding pattern, Corporate Governance Report 
and Material events or information as detailed in Regulation 30 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 are disseminated on the Stock Exchanges by 

filing them through the respective electronic filing systems.

11.	 General Shareholder Information

11.1	 Company Information

i) CIN L55101MH1981PLC024097

ii) Registration Date 20th March, 1981

iii) Address of the 
Registered office 
and contact details

HLV Limited
The Leela, Sahar, Mumbai – 400 059 
Tel. +91-22-6691 1182/83
Fax +91-22-6691 1458
E-mail: investor.service@hlvltd.com; 
Website: www.hlvltd.com

iv) The Company’s 
hotel

The Leela, Sahar,
Mumbai – 400 059

11.2	  44th Annual General Meeting

Day / Date Time Venue

23rd 

September, 
2025

11.00
A.M.

The Company is conducting AGM 
through VC / OAVM without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common 
venue pursuant to the MCA and SEBI 
Circulars and as such there is no 
requirement to have a venue for the 
AGM. For details, please refer to the 
Notice of this AGM.

11.3	  Financial Calendar for the Year

Financial Year 1st April to 31st March

Dividend Payment The Company has not 
proposed any dividend for 
the financial year ended 
31st March, 2025.

Book Closure Dates Thursday, 18th September, 
2025 to Tuesday, 23rd 
September, 2025 (both 
days inclusive).

Unaudited Financial reporting for the quarter ending (tentative)

30th June, 2025 August, 2025

30th September, 2025 November, 2025

31st December, 2025 February, 2026

31st March, 2026 May, 2026

Annual General Meeting for the 
year ending 31st March, 2026

August / September, 2026

11.4	  Stock Exchanges

Listing 
on Stock 
Exchanges

Equity Shares:

I)	 BSE Limited
	 Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  

Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001

II)	 National Stock Exchange of India Limited
	 Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051

Listing 
Fees

The Company has paid the annual listing fees to 
the Stock Exchanges for the FY 2024-25.

11.5	 Scrip Information – Equity Shares

Particulars Scrip Code/ 
Information

BSE Limited 500193

National Stock Exchange of India Limited HLVLTD

Demat ISIN allotted by NSDL/CDSL INE102A01024

Face Value `  2/- each
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11.6	 Stock Market Data

	 The monthly high / low prices of the equity shares of the Company from 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025 are given below:

Month BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
High (`) Low (`) Volume (Nos.) SENSEX 

(Closing)
High (`) Low (`) Volume (Nos.) NIFTY50

(Closing)
Apr-24 32.52 27.00 39,79,078 74,482.78 32.80 26.75 29,28,890 22,604.85

May-24 29.00 24.55 14,75,732 73,961.31 28.90 23.90 72,13,461 22,530.70

Jun-24 27.75 23.56 20,71,913 79,032.73 27.60 23.40 97,99,303 24,010.60

Jul-24 25.39 21.40 44,79,775 81,741.34 25.28 21.30 1,38,50,955 24,951.15

Aug-24 22.50 18.91 39,73,821 82,365.77 22.55 18.98 2,01,49,510 25,235.90

Sep-24 21.48 17.26 85,93,810 84,299.78 21.44 17.30 4,08,88,484 25,810.85

Oct-24 21.72 14.77 2,20,42,392 79,389.06 21.75 14.76 12,93,28,054 24,205.35

Nov-24 20.25 16.50 42,62,591 79,802.79 20.30 16.50 2,39,43,814 24,131.10

Dec-24 21.13 18.05 62,63,455 78,139.01 21.20 18.02 5,04,49,989 23,644.80

Jan-25 19.50 15.32 48,15,766 77,500.57 19.60 15.10 3,22,81,738 23,508.40

Feb-25 16.94 12.91 30,08,536 73,198.10 16.92 12.90 2,02,98,980 22,124.70

Mar-25 14.47 11.98 55,86,843 77,414.92 14.44 12.00 2,87,44,763 23,519.35

	 Sources: www.bseindia.com & www.nseindia.com  respective websites

11.7	 Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2025

Slab of Shareholding (No. of Shares) No. of Shareholders % of Total No. of shares held % of Total

Upto 5,000 1,53,518 96.90 7,34,05,956 11.13

5,001 to 10,000 2,701 1.70 2,05,02,651 3.11

10,001 to 20,000 1,220 0.77 1,75,38,166 2.66

20,001 to 30,000 384 0.24 96,09,414 1.46

30,001 to 40,000 185 0.12 65,73,462 1.00

40,001 to 50,000 129 0.08 61,39,202 0.93

50,001 to 1,00,000 175 0.11 1,24,93,408 1.90

Above 1,00,000 123 0.08 51,29,97,640 77.81

TOTAL 1,58,435 100.00 65,92,59,899 100.00

11.8	 No. of Shares held in dematerialized and physical mode as on 31st March, 2025

Sr. No. Particulars No. of Shareholders No. of Shares % of total capital issued

1 Held in dematerialized form in NSDL 54,454 53,33,97,511 80.91
2 Held in dematerialized form in CDSL 1,02,508 12,18,57,032 18.48
3 Held in Physical form 1,473 40,05,356 0.61

Total 1,58,435 65,92,59,899 100.00

11.9	 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2025

Sr. No. Category No. of Shares held % of Holding

1 Promoters (including persons acting in concert) 25,76,00,337 39.07

2 Banks / Public Financial Institutions / Insurance Companies/Government 1,03,01,092 1.56

3 Bodies Corporate / Trusts 23,52,53,121 35.68

4 FIIs 9,17,103 0.14

5 NRIs / OCBs 89,22,606 1.35

6 Resident Individuals 14,38,56,062 21.82

7 IEPF 24,09,578 0.37

Total 65,92,59,899 100.00
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	 As on 31st March, 2025, the Promoters have pledged 9,40,00,000 

equity shares of the Company representing 14.26% of paid up 

capital of the Company.

	 The detailed share holding pattern is posted on the Company’s 

website (www.hlvltd.com) and also filed electronically with BSE 

Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

11.10	 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

	 As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI), 

quarterly audit of the Company’s share capital is being carried out 

by a Practicing Company Secretary with a view to reconcile the 

total share capital admitted with National Securities Depository 

Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

(CDSL) and held in physical form, with the issued and listed 

capital. The report with regard to the same is submitted to BSE 

Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited and is also 

placed before the Board of Directors.

11.11	 Share Transfer System

	 In accordance with Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing (Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended 

from time to time, transfer/ transmission and transposition of 

securities shall be effected only in dematerialised form. Further, 

SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/ HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/

CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022, mandated all listed 

companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only, while 

processing the service request of issue of duplicate securities 

certificate, claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account, renewal/ 

exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/ 

splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities 

certificates/folios, transmission and transposition. In view of the 

same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares 

and avail various benefits of dematerialisation, Members are 

advised to dematerialise the shares held by them in physical 

form.

	 All activities relating to processing of above-mentioned activities 

are undertaken at the Company’s RTA, M/s. MCS Share Transfer 

Agent Limited. The RTA verifies and processes the service requests 

and thereafter issues a ‘Letter of confirmation’ in lieu of physical 

securities certificate(s), to the securities holder / claimant within 

30 days of its receipt of such request after removing objections, if 

any. The ‘Letter of Confirmation’ is valid for a period of 120 days 

from the date of its issuance, within which the securities holder /

claimant has to make a request to the Depository Participant for 

dematerializing the said securities. In case the securities holder 

/claimant fails to submit the demat request within the aforesaid 

period, the RTA / Company will credit the securities to the 

Suspense Escrow Demat Account of the Company.

11.12	 Dematerialisation of shares

	 The trading in equity shares of the Company is permitted 

only in dematerialized form. Considering the advantages of 

trading in demat form, members are encouraged to consider 

dematerialisation of their shares.

	 Shareholders seeking dematerialization / rematerialization of 

their shares need to approach their Depository Participants (DP) 

through whom they will send the physical share certificates to 

the RTA of the Company. Upon receipt of the request and share 

certificates, the RTA would verify the same.

	 The RTA would then request National Securities Depository 

Ltd. (NSDL) / Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) to 

confirm the demat request. The demat account of the respective 

shareholder are then credited with equivalent number of shares. 

In case of rejection of the request, the decision is communicated 

to the shareholder.

	 In respect of rematerialization, upon receipt of the request from 

the shareholder, the DP generates a request and its verification is 

done by the Registrar. The RTA then requests NSDL and CDSL to 

confirm the same. Thereafter, eligible number of shares is issued 

in physical form to the shareholder within 21days.

11.13	 Dispute Resolution Mechanism (SMART Online Dispute 
Resolution [ODR])

	 SEBI vide Circulars dated July 31, 2023 and August 4, 2023, has 

established a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (“ODR 

Portal”) for resolution of disputes arising in the Indian Securities 

Market. Pursuant to above-mentioned circulars, post exhausting 

the option to resolve their grievances with the RTA/ Company 

directly and through existing SCORES platform, the investors 

can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal (https://

smartodr.in/login) and the same can also be accessed through 

the Investor Relations page of Company’s website at https://www.

hlvltd.com/investor_relation.html. 

11.14	 Address for correspondence

	 The correspondence address of the Compliance Officer and the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent are as follows:

	 •	 Compliance Officer:

Name of the 
Compliance Officer

Ms. Savitri Yadav, Company Secretary

Address HLV Limited, 
The Leela, Sahar, 
Mumbai – 400 059

Telephone +91-22-6691 1182/83

Fax +91-22-6691 1212

Designated E-mail ID 
for investor grievances

investor.service@hlvltd.com   
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	 •	 Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA)

		  MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited

		  Unit: HLV Limited

		  3B3, 3rd Floor, B-Wing,

		  Gundecha Onclave Premises Co-op. Society Ltd., 

		  Kherani Road, Saki Naka, Andheri East, Mumbai-400072

		  Tel.  022 – 2851 6021 / 22 / 022- 4604 9717  

		  Email: helpdeskmum@mcsregistrars.com

		  Website: https://www.mcsregistrars.com

12	 Disclosures

12.1	 Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions

	 During the FY 2024-25, there have been no materially significant 

related party transactions that have potential conflict with the 

interests of Company at large.

	 The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on 

dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board 

is available on the website of the Company at  https://www.hlvltd.
com/assets/investors_relations/Policy%20on%20Related%20

Party%20Transactions.pdf. 

12.2 Dividend Distribution Policy

	 Pursuant to Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company had 

formulated a Dividend Distribution Policy which is available on the 

Company’s website at  https://www.hlvltd.com/assets/investors_

relations/Dividend%20Distribution%20Policy.pdf 

12.3	 Disclosure of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
firms/ companies in which directors are interested

	 During the year the Company has not given any loans or advances 

to firms/companies in which directors are interested.

12.4	 Disclosure on Non-compliances by the Company related to 
the Capital Markets

	 During the last three years, there were no strictures or penalties 

imposed by either the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

or the Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority for non- 

compliance of any matter related to the capital markets.

12.5	 Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism

	 Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

and Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has implemented 

the Whistle Blower Policy pursuant to which whistle blowers can 

raise concerns relating to Reportable Matters (as defined in the 

policy) such as fraud, bribery, corruption, illegality, health and 

safety, environmental issues and wastage/ misappropriation of 

Company’s funds/assets, etc. Further, the mechanism adopted 

by the Company encourages the whistle blower to report genuine 

concerns or grievances and provides for adequate safeguards 

against victimization of whistle blower who avail such mechanism. 

The mechanism also provide for direct access to the Chairman 

of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The 

functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is reviewed periodically by the 

Audit Committee.

	 None of the whistle blowers have been denied access to the 

Audit Committee of the Board. The above policy is available on 

the website of the Company at https://www.hlvltd.com/assets/

investors_relations/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf  

12.6	 Subsidiary Company

	 The Company does not have any subsidiary as on 31st March, 

2025. However, the Board of Directors of the Company has 

adopted the policy and procedures with regard to determination of 

Material Subsidiaries. The Policy is available on the website of the 

Company at https://www.hlvltd.com/assets/investors_relations/

Policy%20for%20Determining%20Material%20Subsidiaries.pdf. 

12.7	 Outstanding ADR/ GDR/ Warrants and their impact on equity

	 During the financial year, the Company has not issued any ADR/ 

GDR/any convertible securities.

12.8	 Commodity price risks or foreign exchange risk and 
commodity hedging activities

	 The Company is not dealing in commodities and hence disclosure 

relating to commodity price risks and commodity hedging 

activities is not required.

	 The details of foreign exchange exposure as on 31st March, 2025 

are disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements.

12.9	 Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential 
allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified 
under Regulation 32 (7A)

	 The Company has not raised any funds through preferential 

allotment or qualified institutions placement, therefore the 

disclosures as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) are not 

applicable.

12.10	 Recommendations of the Committees of the Board

	 There are no recommendations of the committees of the Board 

which have not been accepted by the Board.

12.11	 Fees paid to the Statutory Auditors

	 M/s. N. S. Shetty & Co., Chartered Accountants, are the statutory 

auditors of the Company. During the financial year 2024-25, the 

Company has paid ` 12 Lakhs to the auditors as the statutory 

audit fee, ` 3 Lakhs towards tax audit fees and ` 10.77 Lakhs 

towards other services.
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12.12	 Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

	 The Company has established an appropriate mechanism for 

dealing with complaints in relation to Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace, in accordance with the Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013.

	 During the year no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment 

was received. As such, no complaint remained pending at the 

end of the year.

13	 Compliance with mandatory requirements and Adoption of 
Discretionary Requirements:

	 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements 

of Corporate Governance as specified in Part C of Schedule V 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.

	 The status of adoption of discretionary requirements as specified 

in Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided below:

13.1	 Chaiman’s Office:

	 The Board is headed by an Executive Chairman.

13.2	 Woman Independent Director: 

	 The Company has five Independent Directors, including two 

Woman Independent Directors.

13.3	 Separate posts of Chairman and Managing Director or CEO:

	 The Company has not appointed separate persons to the posts of 

the Chairman and the Managing Director.

13.4	 Shareholders’ Rights:

	 The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the 

Company are published in English and Marathi newspapers 

having wide circulation, communicated to the Stock Exchanges 

and are uploaded on the Company’s web-site.

13.5	 Modified opinion in Audit Report:

	 The Company’s financial statement for the financial year 2024-

25 does not contain any modified audit opinion. However, even 

though there is no audit qualification, there are audit observations.

13.6	 Reporting of Internal Auditor:

	 The Internal auditors of the Company report to Audit Committee. 

Executive Summary of the Internal Audit Report is presented to 

the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors are invited to attend 

the Audit Committee meetings for interaction with the Audit 

Committee members and to respond to the queries of the Audit 

Committee.

13.7	 Meetings of Independent Directors: 

	 During the year under review, one Meeting of Independent 

Directors was held on 11th February, 2025 without the presence of 

Non-Independent Directors and members of Management. All the 

Independent Directors were present at the Meeting.

13.8	 Risk Management

	 The Company has a Risk Management Committee with the 

composition, roles and responsibilities specified in regulation 

21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.

14	 Compliance with corporate governance requirements 
specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub- 
regulation (2) of regulation 46

	 The Company has complied with the compliances as specified in 

regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 

regulation 46 of Listing Regulations.

15	 CEO / CFO Certification

	 The CMD and the CFO have issued the certificate as required 

under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on the Financial 

Statements, the Cash Flow Statement and the Internal Control 

Systems for financial reporting. The said certificate is annexed 

and forms part of the Annual Report.

16	 Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management

	 The Company has in place a detailed Code of Conduct for Board 

Members and Senior Management adopted by the Board of 

Directors in terms of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The said Code 

of Conduct is available on the website of the Company. The 

members of the Board and senior management of the Company 

have submitted their affirmation on compliance with the code 

for the effective period. A declaration by the Chairman affirming 

compliance to the Code of Conduct is appended to this Report.

17	 Certificate of Compliance with Corporate Governance and 
disqualification of Directors

	 A certificate from RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries 

regarding compliance with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance forms part of this Annual Report.

	 A certificate from RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries 

that none of the directors on the Board of the Company has been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

directors of companies by Securities and Exchange Board of 

India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority 

forms part of this Report.
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18	 Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

	 The Company has adopted an ‘Internal Code of Conduct for 

Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trades by Designated 

Persons’ (“the Code”) in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (The PIT Regulations).

	 The Code is applicable to Promoters, Members of Promoter 

Group, all Directors and such Designated Employees who 

are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive 

information relating to the Company. The Company Secretary is 

the Compliance Officer for monitoring adherence to the said PIT 

Regulations.

	 The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s 

shares beyond threshold limits. Further, it prohibits the purchase 

or sale of Company’s shares by the Directors and the designated 

employees during the period when the Trading Window is closed 

and while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information 

in relation to the Company. The Company has also formulated 

“Policy for Inquiry” in case of leak of UPSI, which forms part of the 

Insider Trading Code.

	 The Company has also formulated ‘The Code of Practices and 

Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 

Information (UPSI)’ in compliance with the PIT Regulations. 

The Company has also formulated a Policy for Determination of 

“Legitimate Purposes” which forms part of ‘The Code of Practices 

and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 

Information (UPSI)’.

	 The above documents are displayed on the Company’s website 

viz. https://www.hlvltd.com/investor_relation.html .

19	 Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

19.1	 Transfer of unpaid / unclaimed Dividend amount to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund

	 During the year under review, there was no unpaid/unclaimed 

dividend lying in the accounts of the Company which needed 

to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 

(IEPF) pursuant to section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 

(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016.

19.2	 Transfer of Shares to Demat Account of Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (IEPFA) in case of unpaid/ 
unclaimed dividend on shares for a consecutive period of 
seven years

	 Pursuant to the provisions of section 124 (6) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund 

Authority (Accounting, Audit, transfer and refund) Rules, 2016, all 

shares in respect of which dividend has not been en-cashed or 

claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more 

shall be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund (IEPF).

	 The Company, after sending intimation to the shareholders, has 

transferred shares, in respect of which dividend was declared 

upto the financial year ended 31st March, 2011 and remained 

unclaimed, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The 

particulars of shares transferred to IEPF are as follows:

Date of transfer No. of shareholders 
involved

No. of 
shares

Dividend 
unpaid

7th December, 2017 4,456 14,94,308 FY 2009-10

31st October, 2018 3,165 9,48,318 FY 2010-11

	 The voting rights on the shares with IEPF Authority shall remain 

frozen till the rightful owners of such shares claim the shares.

	 As there is no unclaimed dividend lying with the Company, the 

Company is not required to transfer any shares to IEPF Authority 

in future.

	 Shareholders may note that both the unclaimed dividend and 

shares transferred to the IEPF Authority can be claimed back by 

them after following the procedure prescribed under the IEPF 

Rules.

	 Ms. Savitri Yadav, Company Secretary, is the Nodal Officer 

appointed by the Company under the provisions of IEPF.

20	 Disclosure in respect of Equity Shares transferred to 
Unclaimed Share Suspense Account

	 Pursuant to Regulation 39 and corresponding Schedule VI of 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company is required to transfer shares 

which remain unclaimed by the shareholders to an unclaimed 

share suspense account.

	 All the corporate benefits, if any, on the above shares would also 

be transferred to Unclaimed Suspense Account of the Company.

	 After sending reminders to the shareholders at their latest 

available address(es) with the Company, the Company had 

transferred 25,98,970 unclaimed equity shares lying with the 

Company to “Hotel Leelaventure Limited-Unclaimed Share 

Suspense Account” in May, 2015.

	 The shareholders can make their claim with the Company / RTA. 

The RTA/ Company on proper verification of the shareholders’ 

identity and other relevant documents would transfer the shares 

in their favour.
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	 The disclosure as required under Regulation 34(3) read with 

Schedule VI of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) is given below:

Description No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Equity 
Shares

A)	 Aggregate number of 
shareholders and the 
outstanding shares 
lying in the unclaimed 
suspense account as on 
1st April, 2024.

2,055 13,32,985

B)	 Number of shareholders 
who approached the 
Company for transfer 
of shares from the 
unclaimed suspense 
account during the year.

38 49,505

C)	 Number of shareholders 
to whom shares were 
transferred from 
unclaimed suspense 
account during the year.

38 49,505

D)	 Aggregate number of 
shareholders and the 
outstanding shares 
lying in the unclaimed 
suspense account at the 
year ended 31st March, 
2025.

2,017 12,83,480

	 The voting rights on the shares in the suspense accounts shall 

remain frozen till the rightful owners of such shares claim the 

shares.

21	  Directors and Officers Liability Insurance (D&O)

	 As per the provisions of the Act and in compliance with the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the Company has a Directors and Officers (D&O) 

Liability Insurance policy on behalf of all Directors including 

Independent Directors and selected employees of the Company 

for indemnifying them against any liability in respect of any 

negligence, default, breach of duty, misstatement or errors in their 

managerial capacity.

22	 Dispatch of documents in electronic form (GREEN INITIATIVE)

	 In terms of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 

36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, a company can send documents like notice, 

annual report, etc., in electronic form to its shareholders. 

Accordingly, the said documents are sent by e-mail to those 

members who have registered their e-mail addresses with their 

DP / the Company.

	 As part of “Green Initiative”, Members who have not registered 

their e-mail addresses are requested to register their e-mail 

addresses, with the Depository through their concerned 

Depository Participants. Members who hold shares in physical 

form are requested to write to the Company / Registrar for 

registration of e-mail address

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vivek Nair

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00005870

Mumbai, 22nd May, 2025
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DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

To,

The Board of Directors

HLV Limited

Mumbai

I hereby confirm that all the Directors and Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the provisions of the Code 
of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

Vivek Nair
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00005870
Mumbai, 22nd May, 2025

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members

HLV Limited
CIN: L55101MH1981PLC024097

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by HLV LIMITED (‘the Company’), for the year ended 31st March, 

2025 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-Regulations (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was limited 

to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by the Directors and 

the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations 

for the year ended on 31st March, 2025.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which 

the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

		

RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries,

Unique code No.: L2021MH011800,

PR: 5768/2024

Mr. Amit K. Trivedi

Partner  

FCS: 11522 C.P. No.: 7059 

UDIN: F011522G001026217 

Date: 18th August, 2025

Place: Mumbai



HLV Limited      39

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)  

Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members of

HLV Limited

CIN:L55101MH1981PLC024097

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of HLV LIMITED having  

CIN: L55101MH1981PLC024097 and having its registered office at The Leela, Sahar, Mumbai - 400059, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 

produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C 

Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications [including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the 

portal www.mca.gov.in] as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of 

the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred/disqualified from 

being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 

such other statutory authority:

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment

1. Mr. Vivek Nair 00005870 03/10/2022

2. Mr. Dinesh Nair 00006609 03/10/2022

3. Mrs. Salini Madhu Dinesh Nair 00011223 10/02/2020

4. Ms. Saija Ramchandran Nair 03623949 30/05/2018

5. Ms. Amruda Nair 06716791 30/03/2021

6. Mr. Ashok Rajani 00267748 30/03/2021

7. Mr. Shereveer Shereyar Vakil 08068987 03/10/2022

8. Ms. Niranjana Unnikrishnan 10140976 08/05/2023

9. Mr. Vinay Kapadia 07958301 10/11/2023

The eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

	 RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries,

Unique code No.: L2021MH011800,

PR: 5768/2024

Mr. Amit K. Trivedi

Partner  

FCS: 11522 C.P. No.: 7059 

UDIN: F011522G001023335 

Date: 18th August, 2025

Place: Mumbai
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CEO and CFO CERTIFICATION
[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

The Board of Directors

HLV Limited

Mumbai

1.	 We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and to the best of our knowledge 

and belief:

	 (i)	 These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 

misleading;

	 (ii)	 These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 

standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal 

or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

3.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of 

internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, 

deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take 

to rectify these deficiencies.

4.	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:

	 (i)	 significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

	 (ii)	 significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed to the notes to the financial 

statements; and

	 (iii)	 instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee 

having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

	 Vivek Nair	 Umesh Dombe

	 Chairman and Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

Date: 22nd May, 2025

Place: Mumbai
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To the Members of HLV Limited 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HLV Limited  (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, 

the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows 

for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information 

required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at 31st March, 2025, and Profit including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 

that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in notes to the financial statements: -

Note 37.1(a) relating to enhancement in lease rentals and unilateral termination of lease agreement of 18000 sq. mtrs. of land by Airports Authority 

of India (AAI) relating to Mumbai hotel and eviction proceedings initiated by them, ROAR Case, which the Company is legally contesting. Disputed 

amount not provided in the Books for the period up to 31st March, 2025 cumulatively amounts to ` 15,380 lakhs (Previous Year ` 13,359 lakhs).

Note 37.1(b) relating to the demands made by AAI relating to Rent and Minimum Guarantee Fees as royalty including interest in respect of 11000 

sq. mtrs. of land in Mumbai cumulatively amounting to ` 80,705 lakhs up to 31st January, 2019 (Previously ` 28,537 lakhs up to 31st January, 2017) 

not provided in the Books as the liability is disputed and not crystalized as per the legal opinion and the additional cost the company may have to 

incur towards restoration of FSI, which is not ascertainable.

Matter related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note no. 37.3 in the Financial Statements regarding the preparation of financial statements on ‘going concern basis’ for 

the reasons stated therein. However, matters stated in Emphasis of Matter above indicate that there is uncertainty exists that may cast doubt on 

company’s ability to continue as a going concern. As stated in Note no. 37.3, the appropriateness of assumption of going concern depend on 

getting favorable judgments and settlements in respect of disputes with Airports Authority of India including the renewal of lease and continuing the 

Business.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current 

period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our Report:

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

(a)	 Contingent Liabilities in respect of claim made by 
Airports Authority of India (AAI) (Ref. Note No.37.1 to 
37.3 to the financial statement) regarding renewal of 
lease and related expenses.

Obtained Lease Agreements and supplementary Agreement with Airport Authority 
of India (AAI). Correspondence from and with AAI, eviction orders judgment of 
Arbitrator, Judgment of Delhi High court. Petition filed before Supreme Court 
and their judgment. Petition filed before Eviction officer and their revised claim, 
various Legal opinions, case filed before Bombay City Civil Court and Bombay 
High Court and interim orders of Bombay High Court, subsequent developments 
in the court matters including ROAR case, application made before Settlement 
Advisory Committee constituted by the Board of AAI, submissions made before 
them on various meetings, offer letter received from AAI for the renewal of lease 
of land of 18,000 sq. mtr., representation made by the Company against the same 
and subsequent developments and the expense incurred for the renewal of lease 
matters

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of 
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
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internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the 
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect 
of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of 
the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 
143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

	 a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit.

	 b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination 
of those books.

	 c.	 The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

	 d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 e.	 The matter described in paragraph relating to Emphasis of Matter may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the company.

	 f.	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of Directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of 
the Act.

	 g.	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

	 h.	 With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the Act:

	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its Managing 
Directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act and does not exceeds the prescribed limit 
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) of 
the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.
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	 i.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

	 i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements (Refer Note 37.4 to the 
financial statements);

	 ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

	 iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

	 iv.	 (a)	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually 
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  (b)	 The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually 
or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  (c)	 Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come 
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

	 v.	 The Company has neither declared nor paid the dividend during the year.

	 vi.	 The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 is applicable from 1st April, 2023

		  Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below, the Company has used an accounting 
softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
come across any instance of audit trail being tempered with and the audit trail of the prior year has been preserved by the Company 
as per the statutory requirements for record retention, other than the consequential impact of the exception given below:

		  A.	 The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not available at the application layer of the accounting software relating 
to property, plant and equipment, Investment Property and Intangible assets which is for the entire year.

		  B.	 The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was available at the application layer of the accounting softwares relating 
to Accounts, Payroll, Material Management and revenue which is supported by third party service provider. For the above 
softwares Service Organisation Control Type-2/Assurance Report on Controls at Service Organisation report are not available.

		  C.	 The accounting software (Oracle and SQL) used for maintenance of books of accounts of the Company at database level is 
operated by a third-party service provider. In the absence of any information on existence of audit trail (edit logs) for any direct 
changes made at the database levels and non availability of Service Organisation Control Type-2/Assurance Report on Controls 
at Service Organisation report, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature with respect to the database of the said 
software was enable and operated throughout the year.

For N. S. Shetty & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FR No. : 0110101W

Rohit Shetty

Partner

M. No.135463

UDIN : 25135463BMNQVF7797

Place: Mumbai

Date: 22nd May, 2025
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial statements of the Company and taking 
into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course 
of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i.	 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets

	 (a)	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, 
plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, investment properties and relevant details of right of use assets.

		  (B)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b)	 The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased 
manner over a period of three years. Pursuant to the programme, certain fixed assets were physically verified during the year. In our 
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

	 (c)	 Except disputes relating to the title deeds/renewal of lease agreement as detailed hereunder, according to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties 
disclosed in the Financial Statements are held in the name of the Company.

Particulars Number of 
cases

Carrying value as on 
31st March, 2025

(` In lakhs)

Remarks

Building constructed on 
leasehold land at Mumbai                                                                                                                     

One                                     19456.06/- Lease agreement not renewed since 11th January, 
2016 (refer Note-37.1 to the Financial Statements).                                                                                                      

Building (under Investment 
Property) constructed on 
leasehold land at Mumbai

One 3985.72/- Lease agreement not renewed since 14th 
November, 2024 (refer Note-6.2 to the Financial 
Statements)

	 (d)	 The Company has not revalued it’s property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the year.

	 (e)	 No proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under Benami Transaction (prohibition) Act, 

1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii.	 (a)	 The management has conducted physical verification of Inventory at reasonable intervals. In our opinion the frequency of such 
verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on such verification between the physical stock and book records were not 
material and have been properly dealt in the books of account.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital facility from banks on 
the basis of assignment of lease rentals, hence submission of working capital eligibility statement does not arise.

iii.	 The Company has not made investment and not provided any guarantee or security in, companies, firms, limited liability partnership. The 
Company has granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

	 a)	 During the year, the Company has given loan to Company and firms is as follows:

		  -	 Additional amount granted/provided during the year	 –	 ` 675.00 Lakhs

		  -	 Balance outstanding as at the balance sheet date in respect of the loan granted during the year	 –	 ` 1525.00 Lakhs

	 b)	 In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

	 c)	 The Company has granted loans during the year to company, the schedule of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, 
and the repayments or receipts of principal/interest have been regular.

	 d)	 In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days remaining outstanding as at the 
balance sheet date.

	 e)	 No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle 
the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

	 f)	 The Company has not granted loans repayable on demand to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or without specifying any 
terms or period of repayment.
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iv.	 The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security or made investment to the parties covered in Section 185. 
According to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of the investment made, loans 
given, guarantees given and security provided are not applicable to the Company, since it is covered as a Company engaged in infrastructural 
facilities as specified in Schedule VI of the Act. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning from Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules 2014 (as amended) during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

vi.	 The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered 
by the Company.

vii.	  According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of Statutory dues :

	 (a)	 The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authorities.

	 (b)	 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and 
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

	 (c)	 Details of disputed Sales Tax, Service Tax, Luxury Tax and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as at 31st March, 2025 are 
as under:

Name of the statute Nature of Dues Amount
(in lakhs)*

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax, Interest 
and penalty 

2591.24 FY 2007-08 to 2011-12 CESTAT, Bangalore

Maharashtra VAT 2002 VAT with interest and 
penalty

118.88 2007-08,2009-10 and 
2010-11

Jt. Commissioner of Appeals-VAT 
Mumbai

Maharashtra VAT 2002 VAT 39.73 FY 2008-09 VAT Tribunal, Mumbai

Finance Act 1994 Service Tax with 
Penalty

87.48 July 2012 to March 2017 CESTAT, Mumbai

Kerala Tax on Luxury 
1976

Luxury Tax, interest 
and penalty

68.88 2010-11, 2011-12 Deputy Commissioner of 
(Appeals), Thiruvananthapuram

KGST and KVAT Act KGST and KVAT 46.58 FY 2011-12 Matter remanded back to the 
Assessing Officer by High Court. 

Income Tax Act, 1961 TDS 74.83 2013-14 CIT Appeals, New Delhi

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 22.01 2019-20 CIT Appeals, Mumbai

		  * Net of amounts paid under protest.

viii.	 There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments 

under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year.

ix.	 (a)	 The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans / dues to banks and financial institutions.

         	 (b)	 As explained, The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, The Company has taken loan from NBFC and utilised 
the same for the purpose for which they have been taken.

	 (d)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-
term purposes by the Company.

	 (e)	 The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associate 
companies.

	 (f)	 The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate companies. Hence, 
the requirement to report on clause (ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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x.	 (a)	 The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year 
and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures and 
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi.	 (a)	 No material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the period 
covered by our audit.

	 (b)	 During the year and upto the date of this audit report as informed to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 
the Central Government.

	 (c)	 As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

xii.	 The Company is not a nidhi company. Hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

xiii.	 In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the 

requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv.	 (a)	 In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

	 (b)	 We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year.

xv.	 During the year the Company has not entered into non cash transaction with its directors or person connected with directors and hence 

provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 (a)	 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Hence reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(a) to (c) of the order are not applicable.

	 (b)	 There is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.	 The Company has not incurred cash loss during the current year and previous year.

xviii.	 There has been no resignation of statutory auditor of the Company.

xix.	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 

information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on 

our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, there is material uncertainty exists regarding contingent liability of Disputed 

liabilities as on the date of the audit report (refer para Emphasis of matter in  audit report)

	 We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 

facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 

135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For N. S. Shetty & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FR No. : 0110101W

Rohit Shetty

Partner

M. No.135463

UDIN : 25135463BMNQVF7797

Place: Mumbai

Date: 22nd May, 2025
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Annexure - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred in Para 2(g) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HLV Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with 

our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include 

the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 

and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 

override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

31st March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India.

For N. S. Shetty & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FR No. : 0110101W

Rohit Shetty

Partner

M. No.135463

UDIN : 25135463BMNQVF7797

Place: Mumbai

Date: 22nd May, 2025
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								         ` Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment  3  25,583.30  24,805.45 
Right of use assets 4  2,172.24  2,015.72 
Capital work-in-progress 5  1,040.32  103.69 
Investment Property 6  3,985.72  4,086.88 
Intangible assets 7  23.04  21.18 
Financial assets: 

Loans 8  1,525.00  850.00 
Other financial assets 9  2,870.05  2,166.16 

Tax assets (net) 10  1,003.61  536.00 
Other non-current assets 11  1,844.85  3,113.60 
Total non-current assets  40,048.13  37,698.68 
Current assets
Inventories 12  826.15  771.02 
Financial assets 

Trade receivables 13  1,238.97  1,496.22 
Cash and cash equivalents 14  5,959.08  253.49 
Other balances with banks 15  7,872.92  11,150.34 
Loans 16  -    250.00 
Other financial assets 17  2,175.84  1,840.11 

Other current assets 18  5,035.89  3,987.08 
Total current assets  23,108.85  19,748.27 
 Non current assets held for sale  13.70  520.59 
Total assets  63,170.68  57,967.54 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 19  13,185.20  13,185.20 
Other equity 20  33,600.91  31,157.38 
Total Equity  46,786.11  44,342.58 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 21  499.99  143.86 
Lease Liabilities  1,909.86  1,803.58 
Other financial liabilities 22  155.36  143.52 

Provisions 23  762.30  545.59 
Total non-current liabilities  3,327.51  2,636.55 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 24  1,318.89  1,015.56 
Lease Liabilities  376.78  307.63 
Trade Payable: 25
     Outstanding dues of MESE  62.17  95.11 
     Outstanding dues other than of MESE  9,448.35  7,831.48 
 Other financial liabilities 26  718.75  694.71 

 Other liabilities 27  727.40  810.60 
 Provisions 28  354.72  233.32 
Total current liabilities  13,007.06  10,988.41 
Liabilities classified as held for sale  50.00  -   
Total equity and liabilities  63,170.68  57,967.54 
Notes forming part of the financial statements  1 to 39

Balance Sheet as at 31ST March 2025

In terms of our report attached 
For N. S. Shetty & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No : 110101W 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vivek Nair
DIN: 00005870

Chairman and Managing Director

Rohit Shetty
Partner
Membership No. 135463
Mumbai, 22nd May 2025

Dinesh Nair
DIN: 00006609

Co-Chairman and Managing Director

Savitri Yadav 
Company Secretary

Umesh Dombe Chief Financial Officer
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								         ` Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 Year ended                                            
31st March 2025 

 Year ended                                           
31st March 2024

Income 

Revenue from operations  29  20,331.09  19,909.45 

Other income 30  1,509.19  980.20 

Total income  21,840.28  20,889.65 

Expenses 

Food and beverages consumed 31  1,492.29  1,532.83 

Employee benefit expenses and payment to contractors 32  5,939.47  5,464.59 

Finance costs 33  222.62  240.15 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 34  1,564.42  1,436.23 

Other expenses 35  10,090.55  9,835.56 

Total Expenses  19,309.35  18,509.36 

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and Tax  2,530.93  2,380.29 

Exceptional items - Profit/(loss) (net) 36  81.56  -   

Profit before Tax  2,612.49  2,380.29 

Tax expense  37.11  -    -   

Profit after Tax (A + B)  2,612.49  2,380.29 

Other comprehensive income: 

Items that may not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss 

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan  (168.94)  82.25 

Income tax relating to items that may not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss  -    -   

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax  (168.94)  82.25 

Total comprehensive income for the year  2,443.55  2,462.54 

Earnings per share (of ` 2 each):

Basic & Diluted  37.10  0.40  0.36 

Notes forming part of the financial statements  1 to 39

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

In terms of our report attached 
For N. S. Shetty & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No : 110101W 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vivek Nair
DIN: 00005870

Chairman and Managing Director

Rohit Shetty
Partner
Membership No. 135463
Mumbai, 22nd May 2025

Dinesh Nair
DIN: 00006609

Co-Chairman and Managing Director

Savitri Yadav 
Company Secretary

Umesh Dombe Chief Financial Officer
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								         ` Lakhs

Particulars  Year ended                                            
31st March 2025

 Year ended                                           
31st March 2024

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and Tax  2,530.93  2,380.29 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation & amortisation  1,564.42  1,436.23 

Interest charged  222.62  240.15 

(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment   6.62  4.04 

Gain/Loss on derecognition of Financial Instrument/Assets  -    1.58 

Provisions/ liabilities written back  (326.04)  (92.90)

Provision for trade & other receivables  3.49  6.10 

Interest income  (1,008.26)  (711.62)

 462.85  883.58 

Operating Profit before working capital changes  2,993.78  3,263.87 

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets: 

Inventories  (55.13)  (165.32)

Trade and other receivables  253.77  (177.22)

Other financial assets  (402.32)  (1,581.03)

Other assets   (961.58)  (124.98)

Adjustments for increase /(decrease) in operating liabilities: 

Trade payables  1,909.97  893.63 

Other financial liabilities  184.34  356.95 

Other liabilities  (83.20)  (120.10)

 845.85  (918.07)

Cash generated from operating activities  3,839.63  2,345.80 

Less : Direct Tax paid (net of refunds)  (467.64)  36.52 

Net cash flow from operating activities  3,371.99  2,382.32 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Inflows: 

Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment (net of 
purchase)  (including advance receipts) 

 2,710.58 

Decrease in fixed deposits with banks   2,841.66  -   

Interest received  897.57  694.78 

Outflows: 

Increase in Fixed Deposit with bank  -    (5,569.65)

Intercorporate Deposits given - Current and Non Current  (425.00)  (1,100.00)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (net of sale)  
(including advance receipts) 

 (1,098.69)  -   

Net cash flow from investing activities  2,215.54  (3,264.29)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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Particulars  Year ended                                            
31st March 2025

 Year ended                                           
31st March 2024

C.  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

 Inflows: 

 Proceeds from short term and long term borrowings   1,687.23  880.29 

 Outflows :

 Repayment of short term and long term borrowings   (1,027.78)  (608.33)

 Payment of Lease liability  (514.50)  (481.63)

 Interest paid  (26.89)  (38.90)

 Net cash flow from financing activities  118.06  (248.57)

 Net changes in cash and cash equivalents   5,705.59  (1,130.54)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  253.49  1,384.03 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  5,959.08  253.49 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (contd.)

 ` Lakhs

In terms of our report attached 
For N. S. Shetty & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No : 110101W 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vivek Nair
DIN: 00005870

Chairman and Managing Director

Rohit Shetty
Partner
Membership No. 135463
Mumbai, 22nd May 2025

Dinesh Nair
DIN: 00006609

Co-Chairman and Managing Director

Savitri Yadav 
Company Secretary

Umesh Dombe Chief Financial Officer
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 Statement of Changes in Equity 

 ` Lakhs

a)	 Equity Share Capital

As at 1st April, 2023  13,185.20 

Changes in the equity share capital during the year  -   

As at 31st March, 2024  13,185.20 

Changes in the equity share capital during the year  -   

As at 31st March 2025  13,185.20 

` Lakhs

b)	 Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Particulars  Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

 Security 
Premium 

 General 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earnings

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

 Total 

Balance as at 1st April 2023  8,750.00  67,772.08  13,195.39  (61,048.89)  26.27  28,694.85 

Profit/(loss) for the year  -    -    -    2,380.28  -    2,380.28 

Premium on issue of equity shares  -    -   

Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of tax 

 -    -    -    -    82.25  82.25 

Total comprehensive income for the 
year 

 -    -    -    2,380.28  82.25  2,462.53 

Allocations/Appropriations 

Transferred (to)/from reserve  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March 2024  8,750.00  67,772.08  13,195.39  (58,668.61)  108.52  31,157.38 

Balance as at 1st April 2024  8,750.00  67,772.08  13,195.39  (58,668.61)  108.52  31,157.38 

Profit/(loss) for the year  -    -    -    2,612.47  -    2,612.47 

Premium on issue of equity shares  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other comprehensive income for the 
year, net of tax 

 -    -    -    -    (168.94)  (168.94)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    2,612.47  (168.94)  2,443.53 

Allocations/Appropriations 

Transferred (to)/from reserve  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March 2025  8,750.00  67,772.08  13,195.39  (56,056.14)  (60.42)  33,600.91 

In terms of our report attached 
For N. S. Shetty & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No : 110101W 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vivek Nair
DIN: 00005870

Chairman and Managing Director

Rohit Shetty
Partner
Membership No. 135463
Mumbai, 22nd May 2025

Dinesh Nair
DIN: 00006609

Co-Chairman and Managing Director

Savitri Yadav 
Company Secretary

Umesh Dombe Chief Financial Officer
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 1: Corporate Information

HLV Ltd. (“HLVL” or the “Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in India and has its registered office situated at “The Leela Mumbai”, 

Sahar, Mumbai 400 059.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating & managing hotels, palaces and resorts.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 22nd May, 2025.

Note 2: Basis of Preparation, Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements, Material Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting 

Pronouncements:

(i)	 Compliance with Ind AS

	 These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as 

the ‘Ind AS’) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 as amended, and other relevant provisions of the Act.

	 The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

(ii) 	 Basis of preparation

	 These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

	 i)	 Defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value.

	 ii)	 Certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

	 iii)	 Assets held for sale (or disposal groups) –measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

(iii) 	 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

	 The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires, management 

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent 

liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actual results 

may differ from these estimates.

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 

which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

	 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the 

most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements pertain to:

	 (a)	U seful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

		  The Company has estimated the useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the asset, 

the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. The Company reviews the 

useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result 

in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

	 (b)	 Impairment testing:

		  Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that are subject to amortisation /depreciation are tested for impairment when 

events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying 

value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves 

use of significant estimates and assumptions which include turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to 

calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, and future economic and market conditions.

	 (c)	 Income Taxes:

		  Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences can be realized. 

The Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, 
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including management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates 

may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charge in the Statement of 

Profit or Loss.

		  Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law and the potential 

outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from 

expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax 

charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

	 (d)	 Litigation:

		  From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of each being always subject to many uncertainties 

inherent in litigation. A provision for litigation is made when it is considered probable that a payment will be made and the amount 

of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgement is made when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of 

unfavourable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed 

at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts and circumstances.

	 (e)	D efined benefit plans:

		  The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the 

projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in 

the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities 

involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 

assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

(iv)	 Material Accounting Policies:

	 (a)	 Revenue recognition:

		  (i)  	 Income from operations

			   Revenue from operations is accounted on accrual, is net of indirect taxes, returns and discounts. Revenue is measured at the fair 

value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue comprises of sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services. 

Rentals basically consists of rental revenue earned from letting of residential and commercial spaces. Revenue for rental is 

recognised in the period in which services are being rendered.

		  (ii)	 Interest:

			   Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

	 (b)	P roperty, Plant and Equipment:

		  Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of construction, expenses 

directly related to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for making them operational for their intended use and, in 

the case of qualifying assets, the attributable borrowing costs.

		  Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 

reliably.

		  On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all property, plant and equipment recognised 

as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and 

equipment.

	 (c)	 Investment Property:

		  Investment Property are initially measured at cost, including transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, Investment property 

are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
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		  Investment Property are derecognised either when they have disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no 

future economic benefit is expected from the disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 

the asset is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of derecognising.

		  Transfers to or from investment property is made when and only when there is a change in use.

		  On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its investment properties recognised as of 

April 1, 2016 measured as per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

	 (d)	 Intangible Assets:

		  Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairments, if any. An intangible asset is recognised if it is 

probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and its cost can be 

measured reliably.

		  On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised as of April 

1, 2016 measured as per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

	 (e)	 Capital WIP

		  Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use on the 

reporting date and materials at site net of impairment if any.

	 (f)	D epreciation and Amortisation:

		  The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment and investment property over the useful life in the manner prescribed in 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 under straight line method except as under:

		  (i)	 Based on technical evaluation, the useful life of continuous process plant other than windmill has been estimated as 15 years 

(on a single shift basis) and that of motor boat 6 years.

		  (ii)	 Depreciation on additions / deletions during the year are provided on pro-rata basis. Assets purchased / installed during the 

year costing less than ` 5,000 each are fully depreciated.

		  (iii)	 Building constructed on leasehold land are depreciated at the applicable rate on the assumption that the lease would be 

renewed in the normal course. Improvements in the owned building are depreciated over the period of 10 years.

		  (iv)	 Leasehold improvement are depreciated over the expected period of the lease.

		  (v)	 Computer Software and website is amortised in six years and other intangible assets are amortised in five years.

			   The useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and the effects of any changes in estimates 

are accounted for on a prospective basis.

			   Depreciation /amortisation is not provided on non-current assets held for sale or part of the disposal group from the date of such 

assets are classified as held for sale or part of disposal group.

			   Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready 

for its intended use.

	 (g) 	 Investments in subsidiaries:

		  Investment in a subsidiary is a long-term investment and is carried at cost. On transition to Ind AS, previous GAAP carrying amount as 

on that date, i.e. April 1, 2016 is considered as cost.

	 (h)	 Inventories:

		  Stock of food and beverages, stores and operating supplies are stated ‘at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower’. Cost 

comprise fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), cost of conversion and other costs 

in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition computed under weighted average cost method. Due allowance is 

estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary.



58     Annual Report 2024-25

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)

	 (i)	 Employee benefits:

	 	 (i) 	 Short-term benefits:

			   The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by 

employees is recognised during the period when the employee renders the service.

		  (ii)	P ost-employment obligations

			   The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

		  (a)	 The Company makes annual contributions to gratuity fund which is a defined benefit plan.

			   The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated 

annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount 

rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee 

benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and 

changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. 

They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

		  (b)	 Defined contribution plans such as provident fund are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

	 (j)	 Borrowing Costs:

		  Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised. A qualifying asset 

is an asset that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

		  Interest cost for the borrowings is computed under effective interest method.

		  Foreign exchange difference relating to foreign currency borrowings regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost to the extent not 

capitalised is disclosed under finance cost.

	 (k)	 Taxation:

		  (i)	 Provision for current taxation has been made in accordance with the Income Tax laws applicable to the assessment year 

considering the taxable income of both continued and discontinued operations.

		  (ii) 	 Deferred tax is recognized on timing difference being the difference between taxable incomes and accounting income that 

originates in one period and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Where there is unabsorbed depreciation, 

or carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such assets.

	 (l)	 Impairment of assets:

		  The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date, to assess any indication of impairment. If any such indication 

exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the 

assets exceed its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the net selling price or value in use. In assessing value in 

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value, based on an appropriate discounting factor.

		  After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life. A previously 

recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. However, the carrying value after 

reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

	 (m)	 Foreign currency transaction:

		  Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transactions.

		  The monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency as at balance sheet date are translated at rates prevailing at the year-end and 

the resultant net gains or losses are recognized as income or expense in the year in which they arise.
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	 (n)	 Leases :

		  The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to 

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

		  The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to 

extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease 

if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an 

option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create 

an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. 

The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

		  Company as a lessee

		  The Company’s leases assets mainly comprise buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of 

a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 

in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Company 

assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits 

from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

		  As a lessee, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right of-use asset 

is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before 

the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset 

or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

		  The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease 

term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements 

of the lease liability.

		  The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 

discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate. 

Generally, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

		  Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

		  The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

		  The Company has used number of practical expedients when applying Ind AS 116 - Short-term leases, leases of low-value assets and 

single discount rate.

		  The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 

months or less, leases of low-value assets and lease where term of the lease is already expired and not yet renewed. The Company 

recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

		  Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or 

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

		  Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments are presented as follows in 

the Company’s statement of cash flows:

	 	 •	 short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments that are not included in the 

measurement of the lease liabilities are presented within cash flows from operating activities;

	 	 •	 payments for the interest element of recognised lease liabilities are included in ‘interest paid’ within cash flows from operating 

activities; and

	 	 •	 payments for the principal element of recognised lease liabilities are presented within cash flows from financing activities.

		  As practical expedient of Ind AS 116 “Leases”, the company has considered Covid-19-related rent concessions not to be lease 

modification, hence the income towards rent concession is recognised in “Other Income” in the statement of profit and loss account.
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		  Company as a lessor

		  Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the Company does not transfer 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is 

accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease 

are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

	 (o) 	 Government Grants/Incentives:

		  Government grants/incentives that the Company is entitled to on fulfilment of certain conditions, but are available to the Company only 

on completion of some other conditions, are recognised as income at fair value on completion of such other conditions.

		  Grants/incentives that the Company is entitled to unconditionally on fulfilment of certain conditions, such grants/incentives are 

recognised at fair value as income when there is reasonable assurance that the grant/incentive will be received.

	 (p) 	 Income from Joint Development Agreement (JDA):

		  Income from JDA is accounted under percentage of completion method (POCM) as per the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real 

Estate Transactions. Balance cost of land and other expense related to JDA is grouped under Assets held for sale.

	 (q) 	 Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

		  (i)	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a binding present obligation. This may be either legal because it derives 

from a contract, legislation or other operation of law because the Company created valid expectations on the part of the third 

parties by accepting certain responsibilities. To record such an obligation it must be probable that an outflow of resources will 

be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation.

		  (ii)	 Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be 

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 

Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable 

estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

		  (iii)	 Disclosure of the contingent assets are made when it is probable that there is an inflow of future economic benefits. However, 

when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as 

an asset.

	 (r) 	 Exceptional items:

		  The company discloses certain financial information both including and excluding exceptional items. The presentation of information 

excluding exceptional items allows a better understanding of the underlying performance of the company and provides consistency 

with the company’s internal management reporting. Exceptional items are identified by virtue of either their size or nature so as to 

facilitate comparison with prior periods and to assess underlying trends in the financial performance of the company.

	 (s) 	 Statement of Cash Flows:

		  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-

cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for the year are classified by operating, 

investing and financing activities.

	 (t) 	 Earnings per Share:

		  Basic earnings per share is computed, by dividing the profit or loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, 

interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the 

weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share.
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	 (u) 	 Financial Instruments:

		  (1)	 Financial assets

		  (i)	 Initial recognition and measurement

			   Financial assets are recognised when and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

			   When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to 

the acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial 

recognition.

		  (ii)	 Classification:

		  a.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

			   Cash comprises cash/cheques on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances with an 

original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition, highly liquid investment that are readily convertible into 

known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

		  b.	D ebt Instruments

			   The Company classifies its debt instruments, as subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other 

Comprehensive Income or fair value through profit or loss based on its business model for managing the financial assets and 

the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

			   (i) 	 Financial assets at amortised cost

				    Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income 
from these financial assets is included as a part of the Company’s income in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the 
effective interest rate method.

			   (ii)	  Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

				    Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income if these financial assets 
are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest. Movements in the carrying value are taken through Other Comprehensive 
Income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains or losses 
which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain 
or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income on such financial assets is included as a part of the Company’s income in 
the Statement of Profit and loss using the effective interest rate method.

			   (iii)	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

				    Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain 
or loss on such debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship as well 
as interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  c.	 Equity Instruments

			   The Company subsequently measures equity investment at cost.  Dividends from such investments are recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

			D   e-recognition

			   A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 

asset. Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks 

and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has 

not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 

Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continued 

involvement in the financial asset.
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		  (2)	 Financial liabilities

			   Initial recognition and measurement

			   Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

			   All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 
of financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

			   Subsequent measurement

			   After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when 
the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

			   De-recognition

			   A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

		  (3)	 Impairment of financial assets

			   The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and allowance 
for losses on such assessment is made in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 (v)	 Recent accounting pronouncements:

	 a.	 Application of New Accounting Pronouncement:

		  The Company has applied the following Ind AS pronouncement pursuant to issuance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) 
Amendment Rules, 2023 with effect from 1st April, 2023. The effect is described below:

	 	 •	 Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements

			   The amendments requires disclosure of material accounting policies rather than significant accounting policies. In the financial 
statements the disclosure of accounting policies has been accordingly modified. The impact of such modifications to the 
accounting policies is insignificant.

	 	 •	 Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes

			   The definition of deferred tax asset and liability is amended to apply initial recognition exception on assets and liabilities that 
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. There is no impact of the amendment on the financial 
statement.

	 	 •	 Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

			   The amendment has defined accounting estimate as well as laid down the treatment of accounting estimate to achieve the 
objective set out by accounting policy. There is no impact of the amendment on the financial statement.

	 b.	N ew Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective:

	 During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the 

Company.
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 Note 4: Right of use assets

` Lakhs

Particulars  Leasehold 
Building 

 Total 

Gross carrying amount  

As at 1st April 2023  2,436.92  2,436.92 

Additions/Reassessment  -    -   

Disposals/ discards/ adjustments/derecognition   -    -   

Balance as at 31st March 2024  2,436.92  2,436.92 

As at 1st April 2024  2,436.92  2,436.92 

Additions/Reassessment  570.47  570.47 

Disposals/ discards/ adjustments/derecognition   -    -   

Balance as at 31st March 2025  3,007.39  3,007.39 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at 1st April 2023 60.17 60.17

Depreciation for the year  361.03  361.03 

Disposals/ discards/ adjustments/derecognition  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March 2024 421.20 421.20

As at 1st April 2024 421.20 421.20

Depreciation for the year  413.95  413.95 

Disposals / discards/ adjustments/derecognition -  -   

Balance as at 31st March 2025 835.15 835.15

Carrying Value 

As at 31st March 2024 2,015.72 2,015.72

As at 31st March 2025 2,172.24 2,172.24

i)	 The land lease agreement with the AAI has expired and the Company is negotiating for renewal. In the absence of a definitive agreement and 
uncertainty about the timing of the cash flows, this lease is not included in the calculation of Right-of-Use Assets and corresponding Lease 
liabilities. The rental for this land continues to be provided as lease expense on a best estimate.
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Note 5: Capital work-in-progress

` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

Capital work-in-progress  1,040.32  103.69 

Total  1,040.32  103.69 

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule 

Particulars  Amount in CWIP for a period of  Total 

 Less than  
1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than  
3 years 

 As at 31st March 2025  1,027.35  12.96  -    -    1,040.32 

 As at 31st March 2024  103.69  -    -    -    103.69 

Note 6: Investment Property 

` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Gross carrying amount 

 As per last balance sheet  4,978.00  4,978.00 

 Additions  2.14  -   

 Disposals/adjustments  -    -   

 At the end of the year  4,980.14  4,978.00 

 Accumulated depreciation 

 As per last balance sheet  891.12  787.18 

 Depreciation for the year  103.30  103.94 

 Disposals/adjustments/Reclassification 

 At the end of the year  994.42  891.12 

 Net carrying amount  3,985.72  4,086.88 

6.1	 During the Financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company has obtained independent valuation of these property and the value of the 
property as per market rate on that date was ` 6,088.14 lakhs and thereafter no valuation is carried out by the Company.

6.2	 The investment property consist of a building constructed on leasehold land. The lease of the land has expired on November, 2024 and the 
Company has received a letter for extention of lease period for the further 6 months till May, 2025 for renewal. The Company is hopeful of 
renewal of lease. Depreciation on building held in Investment Property is provided at the applicable rate, on the assumption that the lease will 
be renewed.

` Lakhs

Income arising from investment properties  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

Rental income derived from investment properties (excluding rental income derived from investment 
properties Assets held for Sale) 

 811.43  729.28 

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental income  86.41  256.48 

Income arising from investment properties before depreciation  725.01  472.80 

Depreciation  103.30  103.94 

Income arising from investment properties (Net)  621.71  368.86 
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Note 7: Intangible assets 	

` Lakhs

 Computer 
software 

 License / 
franchise fees 

 Website  Total 

 Gross carrying amount  

 As at 1st April 2023  73.35  49.79  26.50  149.64 

 Additions  10.80  -    -    10.80 

 Disposals/ discards/ adjustments  -    -    -    -   

 Balance as at 31st March 2024  84.15  49.79  26.50  160.44 

 As at 1st April 2024  84.15  49.79  26.50  160.44 

 Additions  8.82  -    -    8.82 

 Disposals/ discards/ adjustments/Reclassification  -    -    -    -   

 Balance as at 31st March 2025  92.97  49.79  26.50  169.26 

 Accumulated depreciation 

 As at 1st April 2023  55.66  49.79  26.20  131.65 

 Amortisation for the year  7.50  -    0.11  7.61 

 Disposals/ discards/ adjustments  -    -    -    -   

 Balance as at 31st March 2024  63.16  49.79  26.31  139.26 

 As at 1st April 2024  63.16  49.79  26.31  139.26 

 Amortisation for the year  6.85  -    0.11  6.96 

 Disposals/ discards/ adjustments/Reclassification  -    -    -    -   

 Balance as at 31st March 2025  70.01  49.79  26.42  146.22 

 Carrying Value 

 As at 31st March 2024  20.99  -    0.19  21.18 

 As at 31st March 2025  22.96  -    0.08  23.04 

Note 8: Non-current Loans 
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Intercorporate Deposit to other than related party  1,525.00  850.00 

 (Unsecured, Considered good) 

Total  1,525.00  850.00 
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Note 9: Other non-current financial assets	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Security deposits - considered good  1,438.99  1,170.86 

 Margin money deposits with banks (refer note 15)  28.90  27.57 

 Deposits with banks having maturing after 12 months from balance sheet date * #  1,853.81  1,419.38 

 Less: Impaired #  (451.65)  (451.65)

Total  2,870.05  2,166.16 

* The deposits with bank includes ` 280.76 (P. Y. ` 264.89) Lakhs which is under dispute. The company has filed the suit before Subordinate court 
Ernakulam and therefore the bank has not confirmed the balance in deposit account. The Company is considering the same as good.	

# In FY 2022-23, fixed deposit of ` 451.65 Lakhs adjusted by the bank against the settled loan now impaired. The Company has filed the case 
against the bank in Bombay High Court at Mumbai for the recovery of the same. However, as a matter of prudence, the Company has impaired the 
assets. The Company has not accounted further interest income after impairment.						    

Note 10:  Tax assets (Net)	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Income Tax assets (net) 

 Opening balance for the year  536.00  572.52 

 Less : Tax payable for the year  -    -   

 Add : Taxes deducted/collected at source  467.61  613.15 

 Add/(less) : (Refund)/adjustment for earlier years (net)  -    (649.67)

 Closing balance  1,003.61  536.00 

Note 11:  Other non-current assets	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Balances with Government authorities  200.61  200.61 

 Advance for Property, Plant & Equipment  53.29  1,234.82 

 Deposit adjustable against future rent payments  1,524.34  1,625.89 

 Pre-paid expenses  66.61  52.28 

Total  1,844.85  3,113.60 

Note 12:  Inventories	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Food and beverages  419.74  395.19 

 Stores and operating supplies  406.41  375.83 

Total  826.15  771.02 
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Note 13:  Trade receivables (unsecured)	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Receivables from related parties - considered good  32.79  25.94 

 Other than from related parties : 

 Trade receivables - considered good  1,206.18  1,470.28 

 Trade receivables - credit impaired  235.73  281.22 

 1,474.70  1,777.44 

 Less : Allowance for trade receivables - credit impaired  (235.73)  (281.22)

Total  1,238.97  1,496.22 

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2025 as follows: 

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from date of transactions  Total 

 Less than  
6 months 

 6 months -  
1 year

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than  
3 years 

Undisputed 

-	 Considered good  1,158.67  35.73  28.19  16.23  0.15  1,238.97 

-	 Credit impaired  -    -    -    -    2.07  2.07 

Disputed 

- 	 Considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

- 	 Credit impaired  -    -    -    -    233.66  233.66 

Gross Trade receivable  1,158.67  35.73  28.19  16.23  235.88  1,474.70 

Less : Allowance for trade receivables - 
credit impaired 

 (235.73)

Net Trade Receivable  1,238.97 

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024 as follows: 

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from date of transactions  Total 

Less than 
6 months 

 6 months -  
1 year 

 1 - 2 years  2 - 3 years  More than  
3 years 

Undisputed 

-	 Considered good  1,346.25  100.04  49.93  -    -    1,496.22 

-	 Credit impaired  -    0.27  16.93  1.03  29.33  47.56 

Disputed 

-	 Considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

-	 Credit impaired  -    -    -    -    233.66  233.66 

Gross Trade receivable  1,346.25  100.31  66.86  1.03  262.99  1,777.44 

Less : Allowance for trade receivables - 
credit impaired 

 (281.22)

Net Trade Receivable  1,496.22 
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Note 14:  Cash and cash equivalents	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Cash on hand  15.46  13.31 

 Balances with bank in current account  2,129.93  240.18 

 Short-term deposits with bank  3,813.69  -   

 (with original maturity less than three months) 

Total  5,959.08  253.49 

Note 15:  Other balances with banks	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Short term deposit with bank having maturing before 12 months from balance sheet date  7,872.92  11,150.34 

 Margin money deposits  28.90  27.57 

 7,901.82  11,177.91 

 Less : margin money deposits classified as non-current financial assets (refer note 9)  28.90  27.57 

Total  7,872.92  11,150.34 

Note 16:   Current Loans 
	 ` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Intercorporate Deposits to other than related party  -    250.00 

 (Unsecured, Considered good) 

Total  -    250.00 

Note 17:   Other current financial assets
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Interest receivable on Intercoporate deposit & Others  127.53  16.84 

 Unbilled revenue  149.50  90.16 

 Receivable against assets held for sale  344.13  176.99 

 Security deposits  1,554.68  1,556.12 

Total  2,175.84  1,840.11 
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Note 18:   Other current assets
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Trade advances  230.89  207.38 

 Loans and advances to employees  6.72  6.11 

 Advance rentals  101.55  101.55 

 Insurance claim receivable  5.79  0.14 

 Deffered and Pre-paid expenditure  4,260.72  3,335.72 

 Balances with Government authorities  423.34  331.09 

 Other receivables - considered good  6.88  5.09 

Total  5,035.89  3,987.08 

Note 19:  Equity share capital	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025 

 As at                    
31st March 2024

a)	 Authorised capital 

 	 100,00,00,000 (100,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 2 each with voting rights  20,000.00  20,000.00 

 	 60,00,000 (60,00,000) Redeemable preference shares of ` 100 each  6,000.00  6,000.00 

b)	 Issued share capital 

 	 65,92,59,899 (65,92,59,899) equity shares of ` 2 each with voting rights  13,185.20  13,185.20 

c)	 Subscribed and fully paid up 

 	 65,92,59,899 (65,92,59,899) equity shares of ` 2 each with voting rights  13,185.20  13,185.20 

 13,185.20  13,185.20 

	 d)	 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of shares  ` Lakhs  No. of shares  ` Lakhs

 At the beginning of the year  659,259,899  13,185.20  659,259,899  13,185.20 

 Add/(Less) : Issued/(Buyback) equity shares  -    -    -    -   

 At the end of the year  659,259,899  13,185.20  659,259,899  13,185.20 

 e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

 No. of shares  % of holding  No. of shares  % of holding 

 Universal Hotels and Resorts Private Limited  240,442,344  36.47  240,442,344  36.47 

 JM Financial Asset Reconstruction Company Limited  163,943,459  24.87  163,943,459  24.87 

 Rockfort Estate Developers Private Limited *  -    -    67,515,308  10.24 

 ITC Limited  53,413,884  8.10  49,953,055  7.58 

* The equity shareholding of Rockfort Estate Private Limited for current year 2024-25 is below 5%. Hence the same is not reported. 
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f)	   Shareholding of Promoters 

 Name of the Promoters As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

 No. of 
shares 

 % of 
holding 

 % Change 
during the year 

 No. of 
shares 

 % of 
holding 

 % Change 
during the year 

Universal Hotels and Resorts Private Limited  240,442,344  36.47  -    240,442,344  36.47  -   

Rockfort Estate Developers Private Limited  15,050,308  2.28  (7.96)  67,515,308  10.24  (2.55)

Mr.Vivek Nair  & Mr.Dinesh Nair as trustees 
of Leela Family Trust 

 792,355  0.12  -    792,355  0.12  -   

Mr.Vivek Nair  514,960  0.08  -    514,960  0.08  0.006 

Mr.Dinesh Nair  481,680  0.07  -    481,680  0.07  0.006 

Ms. Amruda Nair  300,000  0.05  -    300,000  0.05  -   

Mrs. Lakshmi Nair  18,330  0.00*  -    18,330  0.00*  -   

Mrs. Madhu Nair  360  0.00*  -    360  0.00*  -   

* the %age is less than two decimals.

Note 20:  Other equity	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024

(a)	 Capital redemption reserve

	 As at 1st April  8,750.00  8,750.00 

	 Increase/(decrease) adjustments  -    -   

	 As at Closing  8,750.00  8,750.00 

(b)	 Security premium

	 As at 1st April  67,772.08  67,772.08 

	 Add: Premium on issue of equity shares  -    -   

	 As at Closing  67,772.08  67,772.08 

(c)	 General reserve

	 As at 1st April  13,195.39  13,195.39 

	 Increase/(decrease) adjustments  -    -   

	 As at Closing  13,195.39  13,195.39 

(d)	 Retained earnings

	 As at 1st April  (58,668.61)  (61,048.89)

	 Add/Less: Profit/(loss) for the year  2,612.47  2,380.28 

	 As at Closing  (56,056.14)  (58,668.61)

(e)	 Other comprehensive income

	 As at 1st April  108.52  26.27 

	 Add/Less: Profit/(loss) for the year  (168.94)  82.25 

	 As at Closing  (60.42)  108.52 

Total  33,600.91  31,157.38 

(i)	 Capital Redemption Reserve represents reserve created for redemption of Preference shares.

(ii)	 Securities premium is created due to premium on issue of shares. These is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act.	
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Note 21:  Non-current borrowings	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024

Secured 

Rupee term loan from others  499.99  143.86 

Total  499.99  143.86 

Current maturities of long term debt (refer note 24) 

Rupee term loan from Others  131.66  135.27 

Total
(shown under current borrowings)

 131.66  135.27 

Details of borrowings
` Lakhs

Particulars Interest rate 
(%) -  

31st March 2025

 As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024 

Details of 
security & 

Repayment 
Schedule

 Rupee loan from others 

 BMW Financial Services (I) Limited - I to IV 8.99% & 9.15%  -    102.32 Refer Note A

 BMW Financial Services (I) Limited - V 10.75%  93.23  107.40 Refer Note B

 Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 7.50%  0.93  6.25 Refer Note C

 Mercedes-Benz Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. 8.75%  49.70  63.16 Refer Note D

 Mercedes-Benz Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. 8.39%  487.79  -   Refer Note E

 631.65  279.13 

 Working capital/Overdraft facility from bank

 Punjab National Bank 8.25%  500.23  0.000 Refer Note F

 Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited MCLR + 3% 
(12.40%)

 687.00  880.29 Refer Note G

 1,187.23  880.29 

 Total Secured Loans  1,818.88  1,159.42 

Note A :

The rupee loan from BMW Financial Services (I) Limited - I to IV is secured against vehicles and is repayable in 60 EMI starting from April 2020. The 
loan is fully repaid during the year.

Note B :

The rupee loan from BMW Financial Services (I) Limited - V is secured against vehicles and is repayable in 60 EMI of ` 2.09 Lakhs starting from 
October 2022 and the balance of ` 52.03 lakhs after paying 60 EMI is to be paid in one installment.

Note C :

The rupee loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is secured against vehicles and is repayable in 36 EMI starting from June 2022.

Note D :

The rupee loan from Mercedes-Benz Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. is secured against vehicles and is repayable in 60 EMI starting from May 2023.
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Note E :

The rupee loan from Mercedes-Benz Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. is secured against vehicles and is repayable in 48 EMI starting from Mar 2025.

Note F :

The Company has availed Overdraft facility from Punjab national Bank of ` 600 Lakhs (P. Y. ` 405 Lakhs) against the security of fixed deposit of  
` 700 Lakhs (P. Y. ` 478.39 lakhs).

Note G :

The Company has availed working capital facility of ` 1,000 Lakhs and taken term loan sanction of ` 3,000 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, 
which is still pending for disbursement.

The said loans are secured against first and exclusive charge on all existing and future current and fixed assets (including lease rentals) of the  
Borrower. Hypothecation of rent receivables from M/s Totalenergies Marketing India Private Limited, M/s Housing Development Finance Corporation 
Limited (now HDFC Bank Limited) and M/s Safran India Private Limited or any other tenants in future of the mortgaged collateral property. Mortgage 
of the Unit No. A-14 and A-15 at Ground Floor, Entire 2nd  Floor, Entire 3rd Floor, Entire 4th Floor and Entire 5th Floor of the building named Leela Galleria 
situated at Andheri Kurla Road, Mumbai - 400 059 held as Investment Property. The loan is secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Nair and 
Corporate guarantee of Leela Fashion Private Limited. The working capital facility is to be reviewed every year.

The term loan of ` 3,000 Lakhs is sanctioned for payment of disputed liability. The Bank will disburse as and when the dispute is settled. The said 
loan is repayable in 120 installment starting from month following the month of first disbursement. The loan carry MCLR + 3% as rate of interest.

Note 22:  Other non current financial liabilities	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Trade/security deposits received  155.36  143.52 

Total  155.36  143.52 

Note 23:  Non current provisions	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Employee benefit obligations: 

  -	 for compensated absences   223.44  214.92 

  -	 for Gratuity (net)  538.86  330.67 

Total  762.30  545.59 

Note 24:  Current borrowings	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Current maturities of long term debt (refer note 21)  131.66  135.27 

 From Bank 

 Working capital/Bank Overdraft facility  1,187.23  880.29 

Total  1,318.89  1,015.56 
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Note 25:  Trade payables	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 To micro enterprises and small enterprises - others (refer note 37.5)  62.17  95.11 

 62.17  95.11 

 To other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  

  - 	 Related parties  224.72  161.80 

  - 	 Others  9,223.63  7,669.68 

Total  9,448.35  7,831.48 

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at 31st March, 2025 is as follows: 

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from date of transactions  Total 

 Less than  
1 year 

 1 - 2 years  2 - 3 years  More than  
3 years 

 Undisputed 

 -	 MSME  62.17  -    -    -    62.17 

 - 	 Others  1,855.94  3.22  -    18.29  1,877.45 

 Disputed 

 - 	 MSME - - - - -

 - 	 Others  2,609.96  2,424.91  2,199.60  336.43  7,570.90 

 Total  4,528.07  2,428.13  2,199.60  354.72  9,510.52 

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at 31st March, 2024 is as follows:

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from date of transactions  Total 

 Less than  
1 year 

 1 - 2 years  2 - 3 years  More than  
3 years 

 Undisputed 

 -	 MSME  95.11  -    -    -    95.11 

 - 	 Others  1,299.10  13.38  9.70  17.02  1,339.20 

 Disputed 

 - 	 MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

 - 	 Others  2,903.90  1,720.62  1,636.43  231.33  6,492.28 

 Total  4,298.11  1,734.00  1,646.13  248.35  7,926.59 

Note 26  Other current financial liabilities	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Interest accrued on borrowings   0.93  0.95 

 Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment  90.91  70.18 

 Liability for expenses  579.51  406.46 

 Overdrawn bank balance  -    167.40 

 Trade/security deposits  47.40  49.72 

Total  718.75  694.71 
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Note 27:  Other current liabilities	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Statutory liabilities  332.30  373.13 

 Deposit adjustable against future rent income  35.83  48.57 

 Advance from customers  359.27  388.90 

Total  727.40  810.60 

Note 28:  Current Provisions 	
` Lakhs

Particulars  As at                   
31st March 2025

 As at                    
31st March 2024

 Employee benefit obligations: 

  - for bonus  124.92  131.89 

  - for compensated absences   229.80  101.43 

Total  354.72  233.32 

Note 29:  Revenue from operations	
` Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Revenue from sale of products: 

 Food & beverages  6,888.58  7,255.30 

 Revenue from sale of services: 

 Room revenue  11,929.36  11,291.09 

 Income from rental & related services  824.88  719.76 

 Other services  688.27  643.30 

 13,442.51  12,654.15 

Total  20,331.09  19,909.45 

Note 30:  Other income 	
` Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Interest Income from Deposit with Bank and ICD  969.09  602.22 

 Interest from Others  39.17  109.40 

 Amortisation of interest on security deposits  72.74  62.55 

 Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)   5.45  -   

 Gain/Loss on derecognition of Financial Instrument/Assets  -    -   

 Change in fair value of investment  -    -   

 Provisions/ liabilities written back  326.04  92.90 

 Miscellaneous income  96.70  113.13 

Total  1,509.19  980.20 
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Note 31:   Food and beverages consumed 	
` Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Opening stock  395.19  308.50 

 Add: Purchases  1,516.84  1,619.52 

 1,912.03  1,928.02 

 Less: Closing stock  419.74  395.19 

Total  1,492.29  1,532.83 

Note 32:   Employee benefit expenses and payment to contractors 	
` Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Salaries & wages  3,668.28  3,358.56 

 Contribution to provident fund and other funds  239.75  300.65 

 Staff welfare expenses  492.25  452.70 

 Labour contract  1,539.19  1,352.68 

Total  5,939.47  5,464.59 

Note 33:   Finance costs 	
` Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Interest on borrowings  23.75  35.20 

 Interest others  -    -   

 Interest on lease liabilities  195.76  200.30 

 Financial charges  3.11  4.65 

Total  222.62  240.15 

Note 34:   Depreciation and amortisation expenses 	
` Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  1,040.20  963.65 

 Depreciation of right of use assets  413.95  361.03 

 Depreciation of investment property  103.30  103.94 

 Amortisation of intangible assets  6.96  7.61 

Total  1,564.42  1,436.23 
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Note 35: Other Expenses 	
` Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Consumption of stores and supplies including linen   617.17  704.61 

 Power and fuel  1,057.04  1,009.97 

 Rent (including Royalty)  3,203.35  2,953.86 

 Repairs and maintenance  

  - Buildings  282.72  344.98 

  - Machinery  379.83  416.94 

  - Others   305.81  367.98 

 Insurance  68.12  94.78 

 Rates and taxes  488.13  497.60 

 Corporate social responsibility expenses  1.00  -   

 Other Operating expenses  549.66  448.65 

 Communication   62.96  56.94 

 Travelling and conveyance   126.28  142.92 

 Guest transport  348.36  352.14 

 Printing and stationary  48.26  41.33 

 Reservation fee  135.48  125.18 

 Sales & credit card commission   1,033.36  743.83 

 Business promotion   861.45  1,064.97 

 Legal and professional *  453.93  407.54 

 Directors' sitting fees  24.00  21.00 

 Provision/write-off of trade and other receivables  3.49  6.10 

 Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  6.62  4.04 

 Foreign Exchange Loss  -    1.47 

 Loss on derecognition of Financial Instrument/Assets  -    1.58 

 Miscellaneous expenses   33.53  27.15 

 Total  10,090.55  9,835.56 

 * includes Auditors' remuneration: 

 Statutory audit  12.00  12.00 

 Tax audit  3.00  3.00 

 Other services  10.77  10.44 

 Total  25.77  25.44 

Note 36: Exceptional items - profit/(loss) 	
` Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

 Provision for Impairment of assets  (14.34)  -   

 Profit / (Loss) on sale of Assets held for sale  231.26  -   

 Income from joint development of property  (135.36)  -   

Total  81.56  -   
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37.	 Additional information to the Financial Statements

37.1 	D isputes with Airports Authority of India (AAI)

	 (a)	 The lease agreement with Airports Authority of India (AAI) for leasing of 18000 sq mtrs of land for Mumbai hotel was valid till 11th July, 
2012. AAI vide letter dated 31st March, 2011, had offered to extend the lease for another 30 years, on the revised terms, which the 
Company had accepted. Pending execution of the lease agreement, AAI had been provisionally extending the lease for 3 to 6 months 
at a time and the latest extension was till 11th January, 2016.  AAI has arbitrarily increased the lease rental payable for the Mumbai hotel, 
effective from 1st October 2014, the increased rentals on the basis of such arbitrary increase works out to ` 15,380 lakhs for the period 
upto 31st March 2025 (upto 31st March 2024 ` 13,359 lakhs). The Company has objected to this increase and therefore not provided 
for the same. AAI has unilaterally terminated the lease and commenced eviction proceedings. The Company is legally contesting 
the same and Hon’ble Bombay High Court vide interim order dated 30th June, 2021 directed to AAI not to proceed in the matter of 
eviction. The final judgement in the matter of eviction has not yet been passed. Depreciation on Mumbai hotel building is provided at 
the applicable rate, on the assumption that the lease will be renewed.

		  Further Resources of Aviation Redressal Association (ROAR) has filed a Public interest writ petition (PIL) before Hon’ble Bombay High 
Court against Union of India through Secretary, Ministry of Civil Aviation (Respondent no.1), Airport Authority of India (Respondent 
No.2) and the Company (Respondent No.3) assailing the action of respondents no.1 & 2 in granting ad-hoc and unlawful extension of 
lease of 18000 Sq. Mtr. land without calling for public bids and/or involving any form of competitive bidding process. Hon’ble Bombay 
High Court disposed of said PIL on technical ground. The ROAR filed Special Leave Petition before Hon’ble Supreme Court of India 
contesting the said Order. The matter is pending at the hearing stage. 

	 (b)	 The Company had also entered into another lease agreement on 7th February, 1996 with the AAI for a land admeasuring 11,000 sqmt 
intended for the construction of a 150-room Hotel at Mumbai. A Supplementry Agreement dated 7th February 1996 entered into 
between the Company and AAI. The terms of the agreements was royalty on Gross Turnover with minimum guaranteed amount (MG) 
for a specfied period and Ground Rent. The terms and conditions specified in the Supplemental Agreement, became impossible of 
performance for various reasons and therefore the project could not come through and the 150 room hotel could not be constructed. 
The Company vide letter dated 6th April, 2017 requested AAI to take over immediate physical possession of the land pending restoration 
of FSI by the Company. No Provision has been made for the cost of FSI as it is not ascertainable. However, AAI commenced the eviction 
proceedings with their claim of MG on projected turnover and enhanced rent. As per the revised claim filed by the AAI  in February 2019  
before the eviction officer, the amount claimed by AAI as on 31st  January 2019 is ` 80,705 lakhs towards royalty on projected turnover 
and rent including interest as against ` 28,537 lakhs as on 31st January 2017 claimed earlier by AAI, which the Company is disputing. 
The Company is legally contesting the same and Hon’ble Bombay High Court vide it’s interim order dated 30th June, 2021 directed to 
AAI not to proceed in the matter of eviction. The final judgement in the matter of eviction has not yet been passed. According to legal 
opinion received, the liability is contingent in nature and hence no provision is made for the disputed claim in the books.

	 c)	 The above disputes reffered to the Settlement Advisory Committee duly constituted by the Board of AAI. The Company in the various 
meetings held with them, putforth their submisions against the demand raised by them arbitrarily and requested for the renewal of 
lease for further period. The Company has received an offer letter dated 01/12/2023 from AAI for the renewal of lease of land for 18,000 
sq.mt. subject to certain terms and conditions. The Company had made submissions and representation to reconsider certain terms 
and condition. The Company is awaiting for the final decision. 				  

	 d)	 In view of the above the company has not adopted IND AS-116 on the above leased transactions.

37.2 	 An appeal filed by one of the shareholder claiming to be minority shareholder viz. ITC Ltd. with Supreme Court of India against the order 
of Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) in the matter of transfer of Business Undertaking to Brookfield Group is pending for hearing. The 
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai has passed an order dated 24/01/2024 for the petition filed by said ITC Limited and it’s 
subsidiary alleging oppression and mismanagement, waiving the minimum threshold of 10% shareholding for filing petition under section 
241 of Companies Act, 2013. The Company has filed an appeal against the said order before The National Company Law Appellate Tribunal 
(NCLAT). The matter is under the hearing stage.

37.3 	 Going Concern Basis

	 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a ‘Going concern basis’ on the assumption that the Company shall get 
favourable judgements and settlements in respect of matters referred in Note No.37.1(a) and (b) including the renewal of lease and continue 
the business.
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37.4 	 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)	

`  Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Contingent liabilities:

(a)		 Disputed liability with AAI

     		 (i) 	 refer note 37.1 (a)  15,380.00  13,359.00 

     		 (ii) 	 refer note 37.1 (b)  80,705.00  80,705.00 

(b) 	 Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt  1,353.20  1,379.85 

(c) 		 Disputed Statutory Liabilities  3,280.96  3,181.36 

Commitment:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for  18,808.32  17,576.00 

37.5 	 The information required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the 
extent such parties had been identified on the basis of information available with the Company in this regard.

			   `  Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

(i) 	 Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 62.17 95.11

(ii) 	 Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year -  - 

(iii) 	 The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day

 -  - 

(iv) 	 The amount of interest due and payable for the year -  - 

(v) 	 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year  - -

(vi) 	 The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such 
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

Nil Nil

	 Disclosures of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is based on the 
information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received 
from them on requests made by the Company.	

37.6 	 Employee benefit plans

	D efined contribution plans

	 The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is 
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable under these plans by the 
Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

	D efined benefit plans

	 The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees :

	 (i)	 Gratuity

		  The Company has a tie-up under Employees’ Trust Deed Group Gratuity- cum-Life Assurance Scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation 
of India, and has partly funded the defined benefit plan for eligible employees. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to eligible 
employees on retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment, of an amount equivalent to 15 days’ salary 
payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject to a limit of ` 20 lakhs. The unfunded portion 
as well as the amounts in excess of the limit are to be borne by the Company, as per policy. Eligibility occurs upon completion of five 
years of service.

		  The present value of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with 
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
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		  a)	 Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation	  
`  Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year  1,196.96  1,295.90 

Current service cost  56.77  64.42 

Past service cost

Interest cost  77.16  87.69 

Actuarial (gain)/loss  139.60  (124.02)

Benefits paid  (171.36)  (127.02)

Liabilities assumed/(settled)

Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year  1,299.14  1,196.96 

		  b)	 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets	

`  Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year  866.29  1,066.68 

Expected return of plan assets  89.35  107.72 

Employer contribution  5.32  3.50 

Benefits paid  (171.36)  (127.02)

Fair value of plan assets at year end  760.27  866.29 

Assets acquired/ (settled)  -    (142.83)

Actual return on plan assets  (29.34)  (41.77)

		  c)	 Reconciliation of fair value of Assets and Obligations	

`  Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Fair value of plan assets  760.27  866.29 

Present value of obligation  1,299.14  1,196.96 

Amount recognised in balance sheet ((surplus)/deficit)  538.87  330.67 

		  d)	 Expenses recognised during the year	

`  Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

In income statement

Current service cost  56.77  64.42 

Past service cost

Interest cost  (12.19)  (20.04)

Net cost  44.58  44.38 

In other comprehensive income

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  139.60  (124.02)

Return on plan assets  29.34  41.77 

Net (income)/expense for the period recognised in OCI  168.94  (82.25)



HLV Limited      81

	 (ii)	 Compensated absence liabilities

		  Present value of compensated absence liabilities (unfunded) recognised in  Balance Sheet as per actuarial valuation under Projected 
Unit Credit Method.

37.7 	 Segment Information

	 The Company has identified single reportable segment, i.e., hotel, as its business. Accordingly, disclosures relating to the segmentation 
under Ind AS 108, “Operating Segment” is not required.

37.8 	 Leases

	 a)	 The Company’s lease asset primarily consist of lease for buildings. The Company has applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-
use assets and liabilities for leases with:

		  i)	 less than 12 months of lease term on the date of contract inception.

		  ii)	 either low value or cancellable at the option of lessee.

		  iii)	 lease already expired and not renewed till date.

		  iv)	 Variable lease payments (including deposit given to the lessor) that do not depend on an index or a rate.

		  v)	 Lease payment related to discontinued operations.

	 b)	 The Company incurred ` 491.84 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2025 towards expenses related to either short-term leases or low 
value lease or variable lease .

	 c)	 The Company incurred ` 2,609.96 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2025 towards lease with AAI is which is expired and not 
renewed.

	 d)	 The weighted average effective interest rate applied to lease liabilities is 9%.	

	 e)	 Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability.

`  In Lakhs

Particulars Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

Less than 1 year  376.78  307.63 

Between 1 and 2 years  441.85  336.48 

Between 2 and 5 years  1,468.01  1,210.96 

Over 5 years  -    256.14 

Total  2,286.65  2,111.21 

	 f)	 The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the 
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.				  

	 g)	 The Company has entered into Agreement to take land at Vellimon lake side near Kollam on lease basis to construct and operate a 
resort hotel subject to the condition that lessor shall purchase additional land adjacent to the leased land and lease it to the Company. 
Hence it is considered as short term.
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37.9	 Related party transactions

	 (i)	D etails of related parties:

	 Entities in which Directors / KMP are interested

Leela Lace Holdings Pvt Ltd. Fransisco Hospitality Pvt Ltd. LSL Capital Limited (Formerly LMV Associates Ltd.) 

Leela Fashions Pvt Ltd. Leela Capital and Finance Ltd. LSL Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 

Rockfort Estate Developers Pvt Ltd. Araiya Hospitality Private Ltd Season Apparels Pvt. Ltd. 

LSL Holdings Pvt. Ltd.  Leela IT Projects Pvt Ltd. Universal Hotels & Resorts Pvt Ltd 

Doyen Hotels Pvt. Ltd. Leela Lace Estates Pvt Ltd. Vibgyor Leasing Pvt Ltd. 

Elegant Eateries Pvt Ltd. Leela Realty Ltd. Zillion Hotels & Resorts Pvt Ltd. 

Krishana Hotels and Resorts Pvt Ltd Leela Krishnan Nair Foundation L Lifestyle Services Pvt Ltd 

Boden Builders Pvt Ltd(Formerly Leela 
Lace Builders Pvt Ltd) 

LSL Housing Pvt Ltd. (Formerly 
Leela Housing Pvt Ltd.) 

LSL Realty Pvt Ltd. (Formerly Pleasant Realty Pvt Ltd.) 

Rockfort Property Management 
Services Pvt Ltd. 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Non-Executive Directors Relatives of Key Management 
Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Vivek Nair 

(Chairman & Managing Director)

Mr. Dinesh Nair

(Co-Chairman & Managing Director)

Mrs. Madhu Nair

Ms. Amruda  Nair

Ms. Saija Nair

Mr. Ashok Rajani

Mr. Vijay Sharma  (upto 8th May, 2023)	  
Mr. Shereveer Vakil

Mr. Vinay Kapadia  (w.e.f. 10th November, 2023)

Ms. Niranjana Unnikrishnan (w.e.f. 8th May, 2023)

Mrs. Lakshmi Nair

Mrs. Aishwarya Nair

Ms. Samyukta Nair

Mr. Aushim Nair

Ms. Anisha Rajani

	 (II)	 Transactions carried out with Related Parties & KMP
`  In Lakhs

Particulars Entities in which Directors / KMP 
are interested

Key Management Personnel

Year ended                                            
31st March 2025

Year ended                                           
31st March 2024

Year ended                                            
31st March 2025

Year ended                                           
31st March 2024

Sale of room, food, goods and other services

Mr. Ashok Rajani  1.99  2.13 

Expenses towards goods & services

LSL Holdings Pvt. Ltd.  10.17  13.64 

Leela Fashions Pvt. Ltd  40.00  -   

Income from rental & related services

Leela Fashions Pvt. Ltd  90.55  96.52 

Expense towards lease rent

Leela Lace Holdings Pvt. Ltd.  942.10  852.82 

Leela Fashions Pvt. Ltd  0.25  0.25 

Mr. Dinesh Nair  2.76  -   

Remunerations

Mr.Vivek Nair  120.00  120.00 

Mr.Dinesh Nair  120.00  120.00 

Ms. Anisha Rajani  2.61  -   

Deposit Given

Rockfort Estate Developers Pvt Ltd.  -    1,500.00 
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Particulars Entities in which Directors / KMP 
are interested

Key Management Personnel

Year ended                                            
31st March 2025

Year ended                                           
31st March 2024

Year ended                                            
31st March 2025

Year ended                                           
31st March 2024

Directors' Sitting Fees

Ms. Saija Nair  3.60  4.50 

Mr. Vinay Kapadia  4.20  1.20 

Mr. Vijay Sharma  -    0.30 

Mr. Ashok Rajani  4.20  4.80 

Mrs. Madhu Nair  0.90  1.20 

Mr. Shereveer Vakil  4.20  1.80 

Ms. Amruda Nair  2.70  3.60 

Ms. Niranjana Unnikrishnan  4.20  3.60 

Debit balance outstanding

Leela Fashions Pvt. Ltd  35.16  25.94  -    -   

Mr. Ashok Rajani  -    -    0.32  0.19 

Credit balance outstanding

Leela Lace Holdings Pvt. Ltd  224.41  161.81  -    -   

Deposits given

Leela Lace Holdings Pvt. Ltd.  3,276.83  3,000.00  -    -   

Rockfort Estate Developers Pvt Ltd  1,500.00  1,500.00  -    -   

Dinesh Nair  3.00 

	 (iii)	 The Company has not given any loans to the directors or to entities in which they are interested, but there are dues towards 
regular transactions which are repayable in the normal course of the business.	

37.10	 Earnings per share

`  In Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

Basic & Diluted earning per share

Net profit/(loss) for the year (` in Lakhs)  2,612.49  2,380.29 

Weighted average number of equity shares  659,259,899  659,259,899 

Par value per share (`)  2.00  2.00 

Earnings per share (`)  0.40  0.36 

37.11	 Tax Disclosure

`  In Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

Current Tax

In respect of the current year  -    -   

In respect of the earlier year  -    -   

Total Tax expenses recognised in the current year  -    -   

	 In pursuance to Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 announced by Government of India through Taxation Laws (Amendment) 
Ordinance, 2019, Company has an irrevocable option of shifting to a lower tax rate along with consequent reduction in certain tax incentives 
including lapse of the accumulated MAT credit. In view of huge accumulated losses of earlier years, Company has exercised this option, 
hence no provision for Income Tax and deffered tax has been made.
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37.12	 CSR Disclosure

	 The Board of Directors has adopted a CSR Policy but did not form the CSR Committee. The Board has decided to discharge the functions 
of CSR Committee till the amount required to be spent on CSR activities exceeds the limits provided under section 135(9) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for any financial year. The Disclosure on CSR Expenditure are as under:

	 `  In Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

(a)	 Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year  0.88  -   

(b)	 Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year  1.00  -   

(c)	 Amount spent during the year on:

	 (i) 	 Construction/acquisition of any assets  -    -   

	 (ii) 	 On purchase other than (i) above  1.00  -   

 1.00  -   

	 Less: Excess amount spent carried forward to next year -  -   

	 Total  1.00  -   

(d)	 Amount unspent -  -   

(e)	 Nature of CSR activities Nationally recognised sports 

37.13	 Additional Disclosure under regulatory requirements

	 a)	 Transaction with struck off companies for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

Name of the struck off company Nature of  transactions Amount in Lakhs

NIL

	 b)	 (i) 	 The Company had not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMP’s and the related 
parties defined (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with any other person.

		  (ii) 	 The operations of the Company are classified as “”Infrastructure Facilities”” as defined under Schedule VI to the Act. Accordingly, 
the disclosure requirements specified in sub-section 4 of Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans given, guarantee given, 
security provided and the related disclosure on purposes/utilisation by recipient companies, are not applicable to the company.”

	 c)	 The Company was not holding any benami property and no proceeding was initiated or pending against the Company for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988.

	 d)	 The Company has used funds borrowed for the specific purposes only for the purposes which it has been borrowed.

	 e)	 Borrowings as reported in financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, we confirm that all charges created/ satisfied during 
FY 2024-25 have been registered with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

	 f)	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds), to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

	 	 − 	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by 
or on behalf of the Company or

	 	 − 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

	 g)	 The Company has not received any funds from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

	 	 − 	 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

	 h)	 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currencies or virtual currencies during the year ended 31st March, 2025.
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	 i)	 Audit Trail:

		  The Company has audit trail feature enabled from April 01, 2023 with respect to application layer changes in Payroll, Material 
Management and revenue related software which has worked effectively throughout the year except software related to maintenance 
of property, plant & equipment, Intangible assets and Investment property.There is no option in the software to disable this features at 
application layer. Further, no instance of audit trail feature being tampered was noted in respect of these softwares. In addition to these 
the Company is using two database software namely Oracle and SQL, for which no information on audit trail being featured within 
these  softwares at data base level.

37.14	 Disclosure of Ratios

Sl. 
No.

Particulars  Numerator Denominator  Year ended                                            
31st March 

2025

 Year ended                                           
31st March 

2024 

% Variance Remarks for 
variance more than 

25%

1 Current Ratio Current Asset Current Liability 1.78 1.80 -1.14 -

2 Debt-Equity 
Ratio

Borrowings and 
lease liability

Total equity 0.088 0.074 18.97 -

3 Debt Service 
Coverage 
Ratio

Net profit 
before tax + 
Interest cost on 
borrowings

 Interest cost on borrowing 
+ Principal repayment of 
borrowing 

16.58 15.31 8.26 -

4 Return on 
Equity Ratio

Net profit after 
Tax

 Average shareholder's 
fund 

5.73% 5.52% 3.85 -

5 Inventory 
turnover ratio

Food and 
beverage 
consumed

 Average Inventory of food 
and beverages 

3.66 4.36 -15.93 -

6 Trade 
Receivables 
turnover ratio

Revenue from 
Operations

 Average trade receivables 14.87 14.11 5.33 -

7 Trade 
payables 
turnover ratio

Purchases + 
other expenses

 Average trade payables 1.32 1.51 -12.90 -

8 Net capital 
turnover ratio

Revenue from 
Operations

 Working Capital 2.01 2.27 -11.45 -

9 Net profit ratio Net profit after 
Tax

Total income 11.96% 11.39% 4.98 -

10 Return on 
Capital 
employed

Profit before tax 
+ finance costs

Total equity 6.06% 5.91% 2.54 -

11 Return on 
investment

Income 
generated from 
investments

 Average funds invested in 
investment 

0.00% 0.00% - -

Note	 38: Fair  value measurement:

	 1	 The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.				  

	 2	 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:				  

		  a.	 The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities are considered to be equal to 
the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature. Where such items are non-current in nature, the same has 
been classified as Level 3.				  

		  b.	 The fair  value of security deposits are calculated using effective interest rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair 
value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs.				  
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		  c.	 Considering the contracted rate of interest, the carrying amounts of all other term borrowings that are measured at fair value are 
reasonable approximation of fair value .				  

		  d.	 For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to their fair values.

	 3	 Analysis of fair value measurement :

		  a.	 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation 
technique:

			   Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

			   Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 
directly or indirectly.

			   Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 
market data.

		  b.	 Financial Instruments by category:	

` Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

FVPL Amortised cost FVPL Amortised cost

Financial assets

Non-current:

Investments: 

Equity investment in a subsidiary  -    -    -    -   

Other equity investment  -    -    -    -   

Loans  -    1,525.00  850.00 

Other non current financial assets   2,870.05  2,166.16 

Current:

Trade receivables  -    1,238.97  -    1,496.22 

Cash & cash equivalents  -    5,959.08  -    253.49 

Other balances with banks   -    7,872.92  -    11,150.34 

Loans  -    -    -    250.00 

Other financial assets  -  2,175.84  -    1,840.11 

Total  -    21,641.86  -    18,006.32 

Financial liabilities

Non current:

Borrowings   -    499.99  -    143.86 

Lease liabilities  -    1,909.86  -    1,803.58 

Other liabilities   -    155.36  -    143.52 

Current:

Borrowings  -    1,318.89  -    1,015.56 

Lease liabilities  -    376.78  -    307.63 

Trade payables  -    9,510.52  -    7,926.58 

 Other financial liabilities  -    718.75  -    694.71 

Total  -    14,490.16  -    12,035.44 
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Note	 39: Financial Risk Management

	 Risk Management Framework

	 The activities of the Company expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

	 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise, long term security deposits received, trade and other payables. The group has trade 
and other receivables and cash and short term deposits that arrive directly from its operations. The Company has also paid long term lease 
deposits.

	 The Company’s Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 
framework. The company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the company,to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market conditions and the companys activities. The company’s Audit Committee overseas how management monitors compliance 
with the company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the 
risks faced by the company.

	 A	 Market Risk:

		  Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial 
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates 
and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial 
instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency, payables and loans and borrowings.

		  The Company manages market risks through finance department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire 
process of market risk management. The finance department recommends risk management objectives and policies which are 
approved by the finance committee and Audit Committee. The activities of the department includes management of cash resources, 
borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

		  - Interest rate risk

		  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk changes in the market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt 
obligations which is fully repaid during the year as a part of settlement with lenders.

		  The borrowings in terms of fixed rate and floating rate are as follows:

`  In Lakhs

Particulars 31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

Fixed rate of borrowings  1,131.88  279.13 

Variable rate of borrowings  687.00  880.29 

Total borrowings  1,818.88  1,159.43 

		  As at the reporting period, the Company had the following variable average interest rate borrowing outstanding :

Particulars  Year ended                                            
31st March 2025

 Year ended                                           
31st March 2024

Weighted average interest rate 12.4% 12.3%

Balance ` lakhs  687.00  880.29 

		  -	 Interest Sensitivity					  

		  The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans. With all other 
variables held constant, the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows :

		  Impact on profit/(loss) 	
`  In Lakhs

Particulars 31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

 Interest rates - increase by 100 basis points  (7.84)  (6.83)

 Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points  7.84  6.83 
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		  - 	 Foreign currency  risk					   

		  Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in 
the foreign exchange rates. However, as on the date of balance sheet, the Company has no foreign currency denominated assets and 
liabilities except nominal trade payable which does not have any major impact on the financial statement.

	 B	 Credit  Risk:

		  Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligation as agreed.  Customer credit 
risk is managed by each business unit subject to Company’s established policy, procedure and control relating to customer risk 
management. Further, the Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counter parties, taking into 
account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts  and ageing of  financial assets. Individual 
risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the  basis of such information.

		  Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such debtor failing to engage in a repayment 
plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity 
to attempt to recover the receivables due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised as income in the statement of profit and 
loss.

		  The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and advances based on historical trend, industry practices and 
the business environment in which the entity operates. Based on the historical data the provision for loss on receivables is made.

		  Ageing of Account receivables: 	

`  In Lakhs

Particulars 31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

0-3 months  1,119.37  1,163.65 

3-6 months  39.30  182.60 

beyond 6 months  80.30  149.97 

		  Movement in provisions for doubtful receivables	

`  In Lakhs

Particulars 31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

Opening provision  281.22  275.10 

Add: Additional provision made  -    6.10 

Less: Provision write off  45.49  -   

Less: Provision reversed  -    -   

Closing provisions  235.73  281.22 

	 C	 Liquidity Risk :					   

		  The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. 
Competitive intensity has adversely impacted revenue and consequent cash accruals during the year. The Company closely monitors 
its liquidity position to ensure that the operations of the Company are not affected adversely due to liquidity and is attempting to 
enhance its sources of funding by increasing cash flow generated from its operations and realisations from other proposed measures.
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		  The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual obligations.

		  `  In Lakhs

As at 31 March 2025  Total Less than 
6 months

 6 to12 
months 

 1 to 3 years  beyond  
3 years 

Trade payables*  9,510.52  9,510.52  -    -    -   

Borrowings  1,818.89  1,247.64  71.24  358.36  141.64 

Lease Liability  2,286.65  179.34  197.44  844.42  1,065.44 

Other current financial liabilities  717.82  717.82  -    -    -   

Total  11,655.32  268.69  1,202.78  1,207.08 

* Undispued trade payables are normally payable within 60 days.

				    `  In Lakhs

As at 31 March 2024  Total Less than 
6 months

 6 to12 
months 

 1 to 3 years  beyond 3 
years 

Trade payables*  7,926.59  7,926.59  -    -    -   

Borrowings  1,159.43  946.39  69.17  64.94  78.92 

Lease Liability  2,111.21  150.37  157.26  704.53  1,099.05 

Other current financial liabilities  693.75  693.75  -    -    -   

Total  9,717.11  226.43  769.47  1,177.97 

* Trade payables are payable within 60 days

	D	  Capital Risk Management:					   

		  The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns 
to our shareholders and to service debt obligations, whilst maintaining maximum operational flexibility. Consistent with others in the 
industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by Equity. Net debt 
is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and current investments.

In terms of our report attached 
For N. S. Shetty & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No : 110101W 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vivek Nair
DIN: 00005870

Chairman and Managing Director

Rohit Shetty
Partner
Membership No. 135463
Mumbai, 22nd May 2025

Dinesh Nair
DIN: 00006609

Co-Chairman and Managing Director

Savitri Yadav 
Company Secretary

Umesh Dombe Chief Financial Officer
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NOTICE is hereby given that the FORTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING (“AGM”) of HLV LIMITED will be held on Tuesday,  

23rd September, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. Indian Standard Time (“IST”), 

through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means (“VC / OAVM”), 

to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 and 
the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Salini Madhu Nair  
(DIN: 00011223), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.	 Appointment of Secretarial Auditors of the Company. 

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 

modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modifications or 

re-enactment thereof for the time being in force and pursuant to 

Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, and based 

on the recommendations of the Audit Committee and Board 

of Directors, the consent of the Members be and is hereby 

accorded to the appointment of M/s. RAAM & Associates LLP, 

Company Secretaries (Unique Code No. L2021MH011800), as 

the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five (5) 

consecutive financial years (“FY”) commencing from FY 2025-26 

to FY 2029-30, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company 

and to furnish the Secretarial Audit Report on such remuneration 

as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors 

of the Company and the Secretarial Auditors from time to time. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company (including its Committee thereof) or the Company 

Secretary be and are hereby authorized to finalize the terms and 

conditions of appointment, including the remuneraion and do 

all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be considered 

necessary, proper, expedient or incidental to give effect to this 

Resolution.”

4.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Vivek Nair (DIN:00005870) as Chairman 
& Managing Director 

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 

modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 

196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and any other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) 

or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and on the 

recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and the Board of Directors, approval of Members of the Company 

be and is hereby provided for the re-appointment of Mr. Vivek 

Nair (DIN:00005870) aged 73 years as the Chairman & Managing 

Director of the Company for a further period of five (5) years from 

3rd October, 2025 to 2nd October, 2030, on such remuneration, 

perquisites and benefits, as set out in the annexed Explanatory 

Statement. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vivek Nair shall not be liable 

to determination by retirement by rotation during his tenure as 

Chairman and Managing Director. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company be and is hereby authorized to alter or vary the terms of 

appointment of Mr. Vivek Nair, including relating to remuneration, 

as it may, at its discretion, deem fit, from time to time, provided 

however that the remuneration after the alteration/variation shall 

not exceed the overall ceilings specified in Section 197 read 

with Schedule V in to the Act, or any statutory amendment or  

re-enactment thereof. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as may be amended from time 

to time (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereof for the time being in force), consent of the Members of the 

Company be and is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration 

to Mr. Vivek Nair, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company 

in excess of the limits specified under the said Regulation 17(6)

(e), during the tenure of his appointment from 3rd October, 2025 

to 2nd October, 2030.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to all the applicable 

provisions of the Act, the remuneration, as set out in the annexed 

Explanatory Statement to this Notice, be paid as minimum 

remuneration to Mr. Vivek Nair, in the event of absence or 

inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of his 

appointment. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all 

such documents, instruments and writings as may be required 

and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any 

Committee of Directors or Director(s) or Officer(s) of the Company 

to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

5.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Dinesh Nair (DIN:00006609) as  
Co-Chairman & Managing Director

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 

modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

NOTICE
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	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and any 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force) and on the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, approval 
of Members of the Company be and is hereby provided for 
the re-appointment of Mr. Dinesh Nair (DIN:00006609) as the  
Co-Chairman & Managing Director of the Company for a further 
period of five (5) years from 3rd October, 2025 to 2nd October, 2030, 
on such remuneration, perquisites and benefits, as set out in the 
annexed Explanatory Statement. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 196(3)(a) read 
with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Act, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded 
for the continuation of the appointment of Mr. Dinesh Nair 
(DIN:00006609) who will attain the age of Seventy (70) years on 
24th December, 2025 as the Co-Chairman and Managing Director 
till the expiry of his term of office.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Dinesh Nair shall not be liable 
to determination by retirement by rotation during his tenure as 
Co-Chairman and Managing Director. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby authorized to alter or vary the terms of 
appointment of Mr. Dinesh Nair, including relating to remuneration, 
as it may, at its discretion, deem fit, from time to time, provided 
however that the remuneration after the alteration/variation shall 
not exceed the overall ceilings specified in Section 197 read 
with Schedule V in to the Act, or any statutory amendment or  
re-enactment thereof. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as may be amended from time 
to time (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force), consent of the Members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for payment of 
remuneration to Mr. Dinesh Nair, Co-Chairman & Managing 
Director of the Company in excess of the limits specified under 
the said Regulation 17(6)(e), during the tenure of his appointment 
from 3rd October, 2025 to 2nd October, 2030.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to all the applicable 
provisions of the Act, the remuneration, as set out in the annexed 
Explanatory Statement to this Notice, be paid as minimum 
remuneration to Mr. Dinesh Nair, in the event of absence or 
inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of his 
appointment. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all 

such documents, instruments and writings as may be required 
and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any 
Committee of Directors or Director(s) or Officer(s) of the Company 
to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

Savitri Yadav

Company Secretary

ACS No. 21994

Registered Office:

The Leela, Sahar, Mumbai - 400 059

CIN: L55101MH1981PLC024097

Mumbai, 22nd May, 2025

NOTES:

1.	 In view of the General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 and 
subsequent circulars, the latest being 09/2024 dated September 
19, 2024 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA 
Circulars”) and Circular dated May 12, 2020 and subsequent 
circulars, the latest being October 3, 2024 issued by Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circulars”) and in compliance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the 44th AGM of 
the Company is being held through VC/OAVM facility, without 
physical presence of members at a common venue. The deemed 
venue for the 44th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the 
Company.

2.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes 
before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the 
Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in this Notice. The 
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available for 1,000 Members on first come first served basis. 
This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 
2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the 
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first 
come first served basis.

3.	 Pursuant to MCA Circulars, the facility to appoint proxy to attend 
and cast vote for the Members will not be available for the AGM 
and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed 
to this Notice. However, Corporate Members and Institutional 
Investors may appoint their authorized representatives pursuant 
to Section 113 of the Act to attend the AGM through VC or OAVM 
and to vote through remote e-Voting. Since the AGM will be held 
through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map of the venue of AGM is 
not annexed to this Notice.
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4.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through  
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

5.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act 
setting out all material facts concerning the business under Item 
Nos. 3 to 5 of the Notice is annexed hereto.

6.	 Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment 
at the forthcoming AGM pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings are annexed hereto as Annexure to this Notice.

7.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the 
Company will remain closed from Thursday, the 18th September, 
2025 to Tuesday, the 23rd September, 2025 (both days inclusive).

8.	 SEBI vide its Circular dated March 16, 2023, mandated furnishing 
of PAN, KYC details (i.e. Postal Address with Pin Code, mobile 
number, bank account details) and Nomination/Opt-out of 
Nomination by holders of physical securities by submitting Form 
ISR-1, Form ISR-2, Form ISR-3, Form SH-13 and Form SH-14 
(as applicable). The said forms are available on the Company’s 
website at https://www.hlvltd.com/assets/investors_relations/
Investor%20Service%20Forms%20and%20Instructions_
JUL2024.pdf and on the website of the RTA at   https://www.
mcsregistrars.com/downloads.php . Towards this the Company 
is sending letters to the Members holding shares in physical 
form, in relation to applicable SEBI Circular(s). Members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to ensure that their PAN is 
linked to their Aadhaar card.

9.	 Members are also requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining 
to their name, postal address, e-mail address, telephone/ mobile 
numbers, PAN, registration of nomination, power of attorney 
registration, Bank Mandate details, etc. to their DPs in case the 
shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case the 
shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio number. 
Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected 
in the Company’s records.

10.	 Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular dated 
January 25, 2022 has mandated the Listed Companies to issue 
securities in dematerialised form only while processing service 
requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from 
Unclaimed Suspense Account; Renewal/ Exchange of securities 
certificate; Endorsement; Sub-division/ Splitting of securities 
certificate; Consolidation of securities certificates/ folios; 
Transmission and Transposition. Accordingly, Shareholders are 
requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled 
and signed Form ISR – 4, the format of which is available on 
the website of the Company at https://www.hlvltd.com/assets/
investors_relations/Investor%20Service%20Forms%20and%20
Instructions_JUL2024.pdf and on the website of the RTA at 
https://www.mcsregistrars.com/downloads.php . It may be noted 
that any service request can be processed only after the folio is 
KYC Compliant.

11.	 Members who have not registered their email addresses or who 
want to update their email addresses are required to register 
the same with the RTA / Depository Participant to receive all 
communications including Annual Report, Notices and Circulars 
etc. from the Company electronically.

12.	 The Company has designated an exclusive email ID viz. 
investor.service@hlvltd.com to enable the investors to post their 
grievances, if any, and monitor its redressal.

13.	 Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), all unclaimed dividend up to 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2011 has been transferred 
by the Company to the Investor Education & Protection Fund 
(IEPF) established by the Central Government. Shares in respect 
of which dividend remained unclaimed for seven consecutive 
years or more have also been transferred to the IEPF Demat 
Account. After the Financial year ended 31st March, 2011 the 
Company did not declare any dividend. As on date the Company 
does not have any unclaimed dividend to be transferred to 
the Investors Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) and thus no 
shares are required to be transferred to IEPF Authority. The 
shares transferred to the IEPF authority can be claimed by the 
concerned members from the IEPF authority after complying with 
the procedure prescribed under the IEPF rules.

14.	 The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and 
their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act 
and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the 
Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act 
will be available electronically for inspection by the Members. 
All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available 
for electronic inspection without any fee by the members 
from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of  
44th AGM, i.e. Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025. Members seeking to 
inspect such documents can send an email to investor.service@
hlvltd.com stating their name and DP/ Client ID/ Folio No.

15.	 In line with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the electronic copy 
of Annual Report including the Notice of AGM for the financial 
year 2024-25 is being sent to all the Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the RTA / Depositories / Depository 
Participants. In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Company has sent a letter to those shareholders 
who have not registered their e-mail addresses with the 
Company or Depositoties / Depository Participants containing the  
web-link, along with the exact path, to access the complete 
Annual Report, including the Notice of the AGM. Members are 
requested to access the Annual Report electronically to support 
the Green Initiative. The Company shall send a physical copy of 
the Annual Report to those Members who specifically request for 
the same at investor.service@hlvltd.com mentioning their Folio 
No. /DP ID and Client ID. The Notice convening the AGM has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.hlvltd.
com/investor_relation.html, the websites of the Stock Exchanges 
i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
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at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com  respectively. The 
AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL at https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ .

16.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations and the MCA 
Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting 
and e-voting at the AGM to its Members in respect of the business 
to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has 
entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as 
the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member 
using remote e-voting system as well as during the AGM will be 
provided by NSDL.

17.	 A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or 
in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories 
as on the cut-off date, i.e. Tuesday, 16th September, 2025 only 
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting. A person 
who is not a member as on the Cut-off date should treat this 
notice for information purpose only.

18.	 The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, 19th September, 
2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Monday, 22nd September, 2025 at 
5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 
for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the 
Member, he / she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members 
/ Beneficial Owners as on the cut-off, date i.e. Tuesday,  
16th September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The 
voting right of Members shall be in proportion to their share in 
the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 
date, being Tuesday, 16th September, 2025.

19.	 Members will be provided with the facility for voting through 
remote e-voting system during the AGM. Members participating 
at the AGM, who have not already cast their vote by remote 
e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, will be 
eligible to exercise their right to vote through remote e-voting 
system during the meeting and till 15 minutes after the conclusion 
of the meeting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 

NSDL for voting 15 minutes after the conclusion of the meeting. 
Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to 
the AGM will be eligible to participate at the AGM but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again on such resolution(s) for which the 
member has already cast the vote through remote e-Voting.

20.	 M/s. RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries (Unique Code 
No. L2021MH011800) have been appointed as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner.

21.	 The Scrutinizer shall make, not later than two working days of 
the conclusion of the AGM, a scrutinizer’s report of the total 
votes cast in favour or against (votes cast during the AGM and 
votes cast through remote e-voting), to the Chairman or a person 
authorised by him in writing, who will countersign the same and 
declare the result of the voting forthwith.

22.	 The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall 
be placed on the website of the Company at www.hlvltd.com and 
on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately 
after the declaration of results by the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately 
forwarded to the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited, Mumbai.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND 
JOINING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER : -

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two 
Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access 
e-Voting facility.
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below :

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL.

1.	 For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter 
your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/
mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you 
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or 
on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to 
see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able 
to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

3.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register 
Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

4.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on 
a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name 
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.	

5.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience.

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

1.	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to 
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing myeasi 
username & password.

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is 
in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting 
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the 
user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on 
login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 
& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where 
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through 
their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/
CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected 
to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Important note : Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at 
abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. 
NSDL and CDSL.
Login type Helpdesk details

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.com or 
call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode with 
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911

B)	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. 

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

         	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. 
Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 135429 then user ID is 135429001***

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

	 a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

	 b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to 
you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your 
password.

	 c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

		  (i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. 
Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 
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		  (ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps 
mentioned below in process for those shareholders 
whose email ids are not registered. 

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial 
password” or have forgotten your password:

	 a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are 
holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

	 b)	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares 
in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.
com.

	 c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two 
options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.com 
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

	 d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) 
based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of 
NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and 
Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will 
open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on 
NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on 
NSDL e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the 
companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose 
voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during 
the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click 
on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or 
dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish 
to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be 
displayed. 

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking 
on the print option on the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be 
allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 
are required to send scan copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized 
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to raamassociatesllp@gmail.
com / rakesh@csrakeshsanghani.com  with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution 
/ Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload 
Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” 
tab in their login.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with 
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such 
an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/
Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for 
Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.
nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. 
Rimpa Bag at evoting@nsdl.com 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered 
with the depositories for procuring user id and password and 
registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in 
this notice :

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio 
No., Name of shareholder, scan copy of the share certificate (front 
and back), PAN (self-attested scan copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self-attested scan copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investor.
service@hlvltd.com .

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-
CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, 
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN 
(self-attested scan copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scan copy of Aadhar Card) to investor.service@hlvltd.com. If you 
are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, 
you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 
1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3.	 Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to 
evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for 
e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4.	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
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Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile 
number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY 
OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER :

1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the 
instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members / shareholders, who will be present in the 
AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on 
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
system in the AGM.

3.	 Members who have voted through remote e-Voting will be eligible 
to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the 
AGM.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances 
connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM 
shall be the same person mentioned for remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM 
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER :

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through 
VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may 
access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to 
NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of 
“VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company 
name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under 
Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be 
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the 
User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User 
ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote 
e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute 
rush.

2.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for 
better experience.

3.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use 
Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the 
meeting.

4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or 
Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may 
experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective 
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN 
Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5.	 Members are encouraged to submit their questions in advance 
with regard to the financial statements or any other matter 
to be placed at the AGM, from their registered email address, 
mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID number / folio number 
and mobile number, to reach the Company’s email address at 
investor.service@hlvltd.com by Monday, 15th September, 2025. 
Queries that remain unanswered at the AGM will be appropriately 
responded by the Company at the earliest post the conclusion of 
the AGM.

6.	 Members who would like to express their views/ask questions as 
a speaker at the Meeting may pre-register themselves by sending 
a request from their registered email address mentioning their 
name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN and mobile number 
at investor.service@hlvltd.com by Monday, 15th September, 2025. 
Only those Members who have pre-registered themselves as 
a speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask questions 
during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the 
number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the 
AGM.

By order of the Board of Directors

Savitri Yadav

Company Secretary

ACS No. 21994

Registered Office:

The Leela, Sahar, Mumbai - 400 059

CIN: L55101MH1981PLC024097

Mumbai, 22nd May, 2025
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

[Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)]

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the special 
business mentioned at Item Nos. 3 to 5 of the accompanying Notice.

Item No.3

In terms of Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations, every listed entity 
shall undertake Secretarial Audit by a Secretarial Auditor who shall be 
a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary and shall annex a Secretarial 
Audit Report in such form as specified, with the annual report of the 
listed entity. Further, the Secretarial Auditor shall be appointed on the 
recommendation of the Board with the approval of shareholders of the 
listed entity.

Accordingly, the Board has recommended the appointment of  
M/s. RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries, a peer reviewed 
firm as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five (5) 
consecutive financial years (“FY”) commencing from FY 2025-26 to  
FY 2029-30, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company and to 
furnish the Secretarial Audit Report.

M/s. RAAM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries (Unique Code 
No. L2021MH011800)), is a peer reviewed firm of Practicing Company 
Secretaries, engaged in providing corporate advisory, legal services and 
compliances under various Corporate Laws. The firm is well exposed 
to the procedural compliances falling under various regulatory statues 
such as Corporate Laws, Securities and Exchange Board of India, Stock 
Exchanges and FEMA.

The terms and conditions of the appointment of M/s. RAAM & Associates 
LLP include a tenure of five (5) consecutive years, commencing from  
FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 at a remuneration of ` 60,000/- (Rupee 
Sixty Thousand only) for FY 2025-26 and as may be mutually agreed 
between the Board and the Secretarial Auditors for subsequent years. 
Additional fees for statutory certifications and other professional services 
will be determined separately by the management, in consultation with  
M/s. RAAM & Associates LLP, and will be subject to approval by the 
Board of Directors and/ or the Audit Committee.

M/s. RAAM & Associates LLP has provided its consent to act as the 
Secretarial Auditors of the Company and has confirmed that the 
proposed appointment, if made, will be in compliance with the provisions 
of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. Accordingly, approval of the 
shareholders is sought for appointment of M/s. RAAM & Associates LLP 
as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

None of the Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and/ or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution at Item No. 3 for the 
approval of the Members.

Item No. 4

The members had appointed Mr. Vivek Nair (DIN: 00005870) as Chairman 
and Managing Director for a period of three (3) years from 3rd October, 2022 
to 2nd October, 2025. In view of Mr. Vivek Nair’s present term expiring on  
2nd October, 2025, the members’ approval is sought to re-appoint him 

for a further period of five (5) years from 3rd October, 2025 to 2nd October, 
2030 and pay him the remuneration as laid down herein.

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the Board of Directors have at their meeting held on 22nd May, 2025  
re-appointed Mr. Vivek Nair (DIN: 00005870) as the Chairman and 
Managing Director of the Company in accordance with Sections 
196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the Act read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
for a period of five years commencing from 3rd October, 2025 upto 2nd 
October, 2030 on the terms and conditions as specified below subject to 
approval of the Members of the Company.

The remuneration and other terms and conditions as approved by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board for 
appointment of Mr. Vivek Nair are as follows :

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Proposed Remuneration

1 Basic pay ` 120 Lakhs per annum

2 Perquisites:

(i) Use of chauffer driven Company 
car and telecommunication 
facilities at residence (valued as 
per Income Tax Act / Rules)

As per the Rules of the 
Company

(ii) Leave Encashment, Personal 
Accident Insurance Policy, 
Mediclaim Policy for self and 
family

As per the Rules of the 
Company

(iii) Other benefits: 

Reimbursement of entertainment 
expenses

At actuals

Food and beverages At actuals / As per the 
Rules of the Company

3 Annual increment As may be decided by 
the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 
and the Board of Directors 
subject to the provisions of 
section 197 and schedule 
V of the Companies Act 
2013.

The monetary value of the perquisites shall be valued as per the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act / Rules wherever applicable and in 
absence of any such provision, perquisites shall be valued at actual cost.

Mr. Vivek Nair shall not be entitled to any sitting fee for attending 
meetings of the Board and/or Committee(s) of Directors. He shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation.

A draft of the Agreement proposed to be entered into between the 
Company and Mr. Vivek Nair in connection with his appointment and 
remuneration as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, 
is available for electronic inspection without any fee by the 
members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of  
AGM i.e. Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025. Members seeking to inspect 
such documents can send an email to investor.service@hlvltd.com .
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The Service Agreement proposed to be executed with the Managing 
Directors provides for a notice period of six months. Severance fees 
have not been defined in the proposed service agreements.

The brief resume and the nature of expertise of Mr. Vivek Nair is as under:

Mr. Vivek Nair aged 73 years is a graduate from St. Xavier’s College, 
Mumbai and underwent a post graduate program in hotel management 
from Cornell University’s School of Hotel Administration in Ithaca, 
New York, USA. He was a Council Member of the World Travel and 
Tourism Council, India Initiative (WTTC-II) and a Central Governing 
Council Member of the Services Export Promotion Council (SEPC) of 
the Government of India. He has also served as the Secretary of the 
Federation of Hotel & Restaurant Associations of India (FHRAI).

Mr. Vivek Nair, was the Managing Director of the Company since 1983 
and the Vice Chairman & Managing Director of the Company since 1996 
and was the Chairman & Managing Director from 7th February, 2013 to 
31st March, 2021.  He was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company 
from 1st April, 2021 up to 30th September, 2022 and was again appointed 
as the Chairman and Managing Director from 3rd October, 2022 to  
2nd October, 2025. Under Mr. Vivek Nair’s able leadership, the Company 
could achieve phenomenal growth and could set up hotels at various 
locations in the past. Due to his expertise in the overall management of 
the Company, the Company could build enviable brand equity through 
sustained quality standards and marketing arrangements.

Mr. Vivek Nair is not disqualified from being appointed as a director, 
under provisions of Section 164 of the Act, nor debarred from holding 
the office of director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other such 
authority and has given his consent to be re-appointed as Chairman and 
Managing Director of the Company.

According to Section 196 (3)(a) and Schedule V of the Act appointment 
of a person who has attained the age of seventy years may be made by 
passing a special resolution of members. Mr. Vivek Nair, has very rich and 
extensive experience and knowledge in Hotel Industry. The Company 
could be benefited by his knowledge and experience if appointed as 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

In view of the above, the members’ approval is sought to re-appoint  
Mr. Vivek Nair as the Chairman & Managing Director for a period of five 
years with effect from 3rd October, 2025 to 2nd October, 2030 and pay him 
the remuneration as mentioned above.

The provisions of Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 
prescribe that the fee or compensation payable to all the Executive 
Directors who are promoters or members of the promoter group, shall 
be subject to the approval of the Shareholders by special resolution in 
General Meeting, if the remuneration payable to any such Executive 
Director in any year exceeds ` 5 crores or 2.5% of the net profits of the 
Company, whichever is higher or the aggregate annual remuneration of 
all the Executive Directors exceeds 5% of the net profits of the Company 
calculated as per the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, during the currency of the tenure of the Executive Director.  
Mr. Vivek Nair is a part of promoter group and the remuneration payable  
to him as per the terms stated herein above together with the 
remuneration payable to all the other Executive Directors exceeds 5% of 
the net profits of the Company. Hence, the approval of shareholders by 
way of Special Resolution is being sought at the ensuing AGM.

In accordance with Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standard - 2, Mr. Vivek Nair’s other particulars are given in 
Annexure to this Notice.

Except, Mr. Vivek Nair, Mr. Dinesh Nair, Mrs. Madhu Nair and Ms. Amruda 
Nair, the promoter directors and their relatives, none of the other Directors 
or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, in any way, are concerned 
or interested in the resolution as set out in this Notice at item no. 4.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution at Item No.4 for approval 
of the Members.

Item No. 5

The members had appointed Mr. Dinesh Nair (DIN: 00006609) as  
Co-Chairman and Managing Director for a period of three (3) years 
from 3rd October, 2022 to 2nd October, 2025. In view of Mr. Dinesh Nair’s  
present term expiring on 2nd October, 2025, the members’ approval 
is sought to re-appoint him for a further period of five (5) years  from  
3rd October, 2025 to 2nd October, 2030 and pay him the remuneration as 
laid down herein.

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the Board of Directors have at their meeting held on 22nd May, 2025 
re-appointed Mr. Dinesh Nair (DIN: 00006609) as the Co-Chairman 
and Managing Director of the Company in accordance with Sections 
196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the Act read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
for a period of five years commencing from 3rd October, 2025 upto  
2nd October, 2030 on the terms and conditions as specified below 
subject to approval of the Members of the Company.

The remuneration and other terms and conditions as approved by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board for 
appointment of Mr. Dinesh Nair are as follows :

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Proposed Remuneration

1 Basic pay ` 120 Lakhs per annum

2 Perquisites:

(i) Use of chauffer driven Company 
car and telecommunication 
facilities at residence (valued as 
per Income Tax Act / Rules)

As per the Rules of the 
Company

(ii) Leave Encashment, Personal 
Accident Insurance Policy, 
Mediclaim Policy for self and 
family

As per the Rules of the 
Company

(iii) Other benefits: 

Reimbursement of entertainment 
expenses

At actuals

Food and beverages At actuals / As per the 
Rules of the Company
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Sr. 
No.

Particulars Proposed Remuneration

3 Annual increment As may be decided by 
the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 
and the Board of Directors 
subject to the provisions of 
section 197 and schedule 
V of the Companies Act 
2013.

The monetary value of the perquisites shall be valued as per the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act / Rules wherever applicable and in 
absence of any such provision, perquisites shall be valued at actual cost.

Mr. Dinesh Nair shall not be entitled to any sitting fee for attending 
meetings of the Board and/or Committee(s) of Directors. He shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation.

A draft of the Agreement proposed to be entered into between the 
Company and Mr. Dinesh Nair in connection with his appointment and 
remuneration as Co-Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, is 
available for electronic inspection without any fee by the members from 
the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM i.e. Tuesday, 
23rd September, 2025. Members seeking to inspect such documents can 
send an email to investor.service@hlvltd.com .

The Service Agreement proposed to be executed with the Managing 
Directors provides for a notice period of six months. Severance fees 
have not been defined in the proposed service agreements.

The brief resume and the nature of expertise of Mr. Dinesh Nair is as 
under:

Mr. Dinesh Nair, aged 69, is a graduate in Commerce. He took over 
management of Leela Scottish Lace Private Limited in the early 1980s 
and focused on the American Juniors Sportswear market. He was 
instrumental in ensuring rapid growth in sales, transforming Leela 
Scottish Lace Private Limited into one of the largest manufacturers and 
exporters of fashion garments from India to the United States. Mr. Dinesh 
Nair has been associated with the Company since its inception, and has 
over 44 years of experience in management, administration, exports, 
marketing, materials and hotel management.

Mr. Dinesh Nair, was the Joint Managing Director of the Company since 
1989 and Co-Chairman & Managing Director from 7th February, 2013 to 
31st March, 2021.  He was the Joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company 
from 1st April, 2021 up to 30th September, 2022. He was again appointed 
as Co-Chairman and Managing Director from 3rd October, 2022 till  
2nd October, 2025. Under Mr. Dinesh Nair’s able leadership, the Company 
could achieve phenomenal growth and could set up hotels at various 
locations in the past. Due to his expertise in the overall management of 
the Company, the Company could build enviable brand equity through 
sustained quality standards and marketing arrangements.

Mr. Dinesh Nair is not disqualified from being appointed as a 
director, under provisions of Section 164 of the Act, nor debarred 
from holding the office of director by virtue of any SEBI order or any 
other such authority and has given his consent to be re-appointed as  
Co-Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

According to Section 196 (3)(a) and Schedule V of the Act appointment 
of a person who has attained the age of seventy years may be made 
by passing a special resolution of members. Mr. Dinesh Nair, aged 
69 years, will attain the age of 70 years on 24th December, 2025 and 
hence continuation of his office till 2nd October, 2030 requires approval 
of members by way of Special Resolution. Mr. Dinesh Nair, has very 
rich and extensive experience and knowledge in management, exports, 
marketing, materials and hotel management. The Company could 
be benefited by his knowledge and experience if re-appointed as  
Co-Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

In view of the above, the members’ approval is sought to re-appoint  
Mr. Dinesh Nair as the Co-Chairman & Managing Director for a period of 
five years from 3rd October, 2025 to 2nd October, 2030 and pay him the 
remuneration as mentioned above.

The provisions of Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 
prescribe that the fee or compensation payable to all the Executive 
Directors who are promoters or members of the promoter group, shall 
be subject to the approval of the Shareholders by special resolution in 
General Meeting, if the remuneration payable to any such Executive 
Director in any year exceeds ` 5 crores or 2.5% of the net profits of the 
Company, whichever is higher or the aggregate annual remuneration of 
all the Executive Directors exceeds 5% of the net profits of the Company 
calculated as per the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, during the currency of the tenure of the Executive Director.  
Mr. Dinesh Nair is a part of promoter group and the remuneration 
payable to him as per the terms stated herein above together with the 
remuneration payable to all the other Executive Directors exceeds 5% of 
the net profits of the Company. Hence, the approval of shareholders by 
way of Special Resolution is being sought at the ensuing AGM.

In accordance with Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standard - 2, Mr. Dinesh Nair’s other particulars are given in 
Annexure to this Notice.

Except, Mr. Vivek Nair, Mr. Dinesh Nair, Mrs. Madhu Nair and Ms. Amruda 
Nair, the promoter directors and their relatives, none of the other Directors 
or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, in any way, are concerned 
or interested in the resolution as set out in this Notice at item no. 5.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution at Item No.5 for approval 
of the Members.
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ANNEXURE

Additional Information of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are provided herein below:

Name of Director Mr. Vivek Nair Mr. Dinesh Nair Mrs. Salini Madhu Nair

Date of Birth (Age) 03rd January, 1952 (73 Years) 24th December,1955 (69 Years) 01st November, 1961 (63 Years)

Date of first appointment on the Board 03rd October, 2022 03rd October, 2022 10th February,2020

Designation Chairman & Managing Director Co-Chairman & Managing Director Non-Executive Director

Qualifications B.A. (Hons) and Post Graduate in Hotel 
Management.

B.Com. B.A. (Hons.) Sociology

Brief Resume and Expertise in specific 
functional areas

Over 44 years of rich experience in 
Hotel Industry

Over 44 years of rich experience in 
management, exports, marketing, 
materials and hotel management

Over four decades of wide and 
varied experience in the field of 
interior design, project coordination 
and business administration.

Chairman/Director of Other Companies 1.	 Leela Fashions Private Limited.
2.	 Leela Lace Holdings Private 

Limited.
3.	 Rockfort Estate Developers Private 

Limited.

1.	 Leela Fashion Private Limited.
2.	 Leela Lace Holdings Private 

Limited.
3.	 Rockfort Estate Developers Private 

Limited.
4.	 LSL Holdings Private Limited.
5.	 LSL Hotels & Resorts Private 

Limited.

1.	 Leela Realty Ltd.
2.	 Leela Capital and Finance 

Limited.
3.	 Universal Hotels & Resorts 

Private Limited.
4.	 Leela lace Holdings Private 

Limited.
5.	 Season Apparels Private 

Limited.
6.	 Rockfort Estate Developers 

Private Limited.
7.	 Leela Lace Estate Developers 

Private Limited.
8.	 LSL Hotels & Resorts Private 

Limited.
9.	 LSL Holdings Private Limited.
10.	LSL Housing Private Limited.
11.	Elegant Eateries Private Limited.
12.	Krishnan Hotels & Resorts 

Private Limited.
13.	Leela Krishnan Nair Foundation.

Chairman/Member of the committees 
of the Company and other Company(s)

NIL NIL NIL

Name of the listed entities from which 
the person has resigned in the past 
three years

NIL NIL NIL

No. of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year

3 3 3

No. of shares held 5,14,960 shares (0.08%) 4,81,680 shares (0.06%) 360 shares (0.00%)

Relationship with other Directors, 
Manager and other key managerial 
personnel of the Company

Mr. Vivek Nair is related with Mr. Dinesh 
Nair, Co-Chairman and Managing 
Director, Mrs. Salini Madhu Nair, Non- 
Executive Director and Ms. Amruda 
Nair, Non- Executive Director

Mr. Dinesh Nair is related with Mr. Vivek 
Nair, Chairman and Managing Director, 
Mrs. Salini Madhu Nair, Non- Executive 
Director and Ms. Amruda Nair, Non- 
Executive Director

Mrs. Salini Madhu Nair is related 
with Mr. Vivek Nair, Chairman and 
Managing Director, Mr. Dinesh Nair, 
Co-Chairman and Managing Director 
and Ms. Amruda Nair, Non- Executive 
Director

Terms and conditions of appointment 
or re-appointment

Re–appointment as Chairman and 
Managing Director not liable to retire 
by rotation

Re – appointment as Co-Chairman and 
Managing Director not liable to retire by 
rotation

Re–appointment as Non-Executive 
Director liable to retire by rotation

Details of remuneration sought to be 
paid

` 120 Lakhs p.a. ` 120 Lakhs p.a. Sitting Fees for attending meetings 
of the Board or Committees thereof 
and reimbursement of expenses for 
participating in the Board and other 
meetings. 

Remuneration last drawn ` 120 Lakhs p.a. ` 120 Lakhs p.a. Sitting fee for the FY 2024-25 –  
` 90,000/-
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